
         

 

 

AVENIR 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

CITY OF PALM BEACH GARDENS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

& PUBLIC HEARING 
OCTOBER 24, 2024 

12:30 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Special District Services, Inc. 

The Oaks Center 
2501A Burns Road 

Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.avenircdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 
AGENDA 

AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
2501A Burns Road 

Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING & PUBLIC HEARING 

October 24, 2024 
12:30 p.m. 

 
A. Call to Order  

B. Proof of Publication  

C. Establish Quorum  

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda 

E. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

F. Approval of Minutes 

1. August 22, 2024 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing Minutes  

G. Public Hearing 

1. Proof of Publication 

2. Receive Public Comments on Amending Clubhouse Rates 

3. Consider Resolution No. 2024-13 – Amending Club Rates 

H. Old Business 

I. New Business 

1. Discussion Regarding Storm Cleanup (Insurance & FEMA) 

2. Consider Ratification of Temporary Clubhouse Access for Regency Residents 

3. Consider Approval of Eight Supplemental Engineer’s Report (A-10, A-11, A-21) (TBD) 

4. Consider Approval of Methodology Report (A-10, A-11, A-21) (TBD) 

5. Consider Resolution No. 2024-14 – Declaring Special Assessments (A-10, A-11, A21) (A Bonds) (TBD) 

6.  Consider Resolution No. 2024-15 – Declaring Special Assessments (A-10, A-11, A21) (A Bonds) (TBD) 

7. Consider Resolution No. 2024-16 – Setting Public Hearing on the Levy of Non Ad-Valorem Assessments 

170.07 FS  (A-10, A-11, A21) (B Bonds) (TBD) 

8.  Consider Resolution No. 2024-17 – Setting Public Hearing on the Levy of Non Ad-Valorem Assessments 

170.07 FS  (A-10, A-11, A21) (B Bonds) (TBD) 

9. Consider Award of Contract for Pod 21 Lift Station Project  

10. Consider Landscaping Proposal (Arazoza) 

11. Reconsider Approval of Arazoza Brothers Landscape Install 2nd Amendment 2024 

12. Consider Request for Fountain (Akel) 

13. Discussion Regarding Board Appointment 

J. Change Orders 

1. Consider Approval of CO No. 8 – Northlake Ph 2 (Cheatham) ($226,441.20) 

2. Consider Ratification of Northlake Phase 1 CO No 6 (Cheatham) ($41,663.00) 

K. Consent Agenda 

1. Consider Ratification of Pod 10 Plat 

2. Consider Ratification of Pod 11 Plat 

 



 

3. Consider Ratification of Pod 21 Plat 

4. Consider Ratification of Walgreens Drainage Easement Dedication 

5. Consider Ratification of Bypass Road Public Utility Easement 

6. Consider Ratification of Avenir Town Center Phase 1 Easements (either FPL or Public Utility) 

7. Consider Approval of Public Grade Xing Maintenance Agreement (CSXT) 

8. Consider Approval of FPL Lighting Agreement – Northlake Pkwy 

9. Consider Ratification of Avenir Bypass Road – FPL Backbone (SPF Underground Agreement) 

10. Consider Ratification of Town Center Bypass Road Public U.E. 

L. Clubhouse 

1. Clubhouse Management Update 

2. Consider Landscaping Proposal (Arazoza) 

M. Administrative Matters 

N. Board Member Comments 

O. Adjourn 



Page 1



 

Page 1 of 6 
 

AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

PUBLIC HEARING & REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
AUGUST 22, 2024 

 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The August 22, 2024, Regular Board Meeting of the Avenir Community Development District (the 
“District”) was called to order at 12:30 p.m. in the offices of Special District Services, Inc. located at 
2501A Burns Road, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented which indicated that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been 
published in the Palm Beach Post on August 2, 2024, and August 9, 2024, as legally required.  
 
C.  ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
A quorum was established with the following Supervisors in attendance: Chairperson Virginia Cepero 
and Supervisors Daniel Lopez and Rosa Schechter and it was in order to proceed with the meeting.  
 
Also in attendance were Jason Pierman of Special District Services, Inc.; District Counsel Scott Cochran 
of Billing, Cochran, Lyles, Mauro & Ramsey, P.A.; District Engineer Carlos Ballbe of Ballbe & 
Associates (via phone); Developer Rep. Tanya McConnell; and Clubhouse Reps Rick Salvatore and 
Patrice Chiaramonte. 
 
Also present was Michael McElligott of Special District Services, Inc. and District residents Rebecca 
Oliver-Remshifski and Mitchell Kay. 
 
D.  ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
E.  COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  July 1, 2024, Regular Board Meeting 
 
The minutes of the July 1, 2024, Regular Board Meeting were presented for consideration. 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Cepero, seconded by Ms. Schechter and passed unanimously approving the 
minutes of the July 1, 2024, Regular Board Meeting, as presented. 
 
Mr. Pierman then recessed the Regular Board Meeting and opened the Public Hearing. 
 
G. PUBLIC HEARING 
 1.  Proof of Publication 

Page 2



 

Page 2 of 6 
 

Proof of publication was presented which indicated that notice of the Public Hearing had been published 
in the Palm Beach Post on August 2, 2024, and August 9, 2024, as legally required.  
 
 2.  Receive Public Comment on Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Final Budget 
 
Mr. Pierman explained the budget process, the line items within the budget and answered general 
questions from those in attendance.  He read a letter from resident Deborah Steckis objecting to the 
assessment increase, noting that the annual increase would be $242. 
 
 3.  Consider Resolution No. 2024-10 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Final Budget 
 
Resolution No. 2024-10 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-10 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT ADOPTING A FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025 BUDGET.  

 
A motion was made by Ms. Cepero, seconded by Ms. Schechter and passed unanimously adopting 
Resolution No. 2024-10, as presented. 
 
Mr. Pierman then closed the Public Hearing and reconvened the Regular Board Meeting. 
 
H. OLD BUSINESS 
 
There were no Old Business items to come before the Board. 
 
I. NEW BUSINESS 
 1.  Consider Resolution No. 2024-11 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Meeting Schedule 
 
Resolution No. 2024-11 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-11 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE AVENIR 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, ESTABLISHING A REGULAR 
MEETING SCHEDULE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025 AND SETTING THE 
TIME AND LOCATION OF SAID DISTRICT MEETINGS; AND PROVIDING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
A motion was made by Ms. Schechter, seconded by Ms. Cepero and passed unanimously adopting 
Resolution No. 2024-11, as presented. 
 
 2.  Consider Resolution No. 2024-12 – Adopting Goals and Objectives 
 
Resolution No. 2024-12 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-12 
 

Page 3



 

Page 3 of 6 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE AVENIR 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT ADOPTING GOALS, 
OBJECTIVES, AND PERFORMANCE MEASURES AND STANDARDS; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
A motion was made by Ms. Schechter, seconded by Ms. Cepero and passed unanimously adopting 
Resolution No. 2024-12, as presented. 
 
 3.  Consider SUA Western Service Area Model Development and Fire Flow Analysis Scope 
of Services and Corresponding Consulting Services Agreement 
 
Mr. Ballbe explained that the agreement was for an overall study of the master infrastructure for water 
flow and fire line pressure in the amount of $29,770.   
 
A motion was made by Ms. Cepero, seconded by Ms. Schechter and passed unanimously approving the 
SUA Western Service Area Model Development and Fire Flow Analysis Scope of Services and 
Corresponding Consulting Services Agreement in the amount of $29,770, as presented. 
 
 4.  Consider Land Swap Agreement and Corresponding Engineer’s Report 
 
Mr. Ballbe explained that the District previously acquired property for lakes and rights of way from the 
developer, but that the District now needs to return certain areas to the developer in exchange for 
additional parcels.  Although a total of 15.213 acres is being returned to the developer, the District is 
gaining a net 8.424 acres.   
 
A motion was made by Ms. Schechter, seconded by Ms. Cepero and passed unanimously approving the 
Land Swap Agreement and corresponding Engineer’s Report, as presented. 
 
 5.  Consider PBGPD License Plate Reader Request and Flock Safety Property Agreement 
 
Mr. Pierman explained that the Palm Beach Gardens Police Department had requested that they be 
allowed to install, through Flock Safety, license plate readers in the community. 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Schechter, seconded by Mr. Lopez and passed unanimously approving the 
PBGPD License Plate Reader request and Flock Safety Property Agreement, as presented. 
 
 6.  Consider Ratification of Execution of Avenir Charter School Plat 
 
Mr. Ballbe noted that the charter school had purchased the land and the plan was going through planning.  
 
A motion was made by Ms. Schechter, seconded by Mr. Lopez and passed unanimously ratifying the 
execution of the Avenir Charter School Plat, as presented.   
 
 7.  Consider SPF Underground Agreement (Bypass Road) 
 
Mr. Ballbe explained that this agreement was to install dry utilities and lighting for the bypass road, 
which is land owned by the District and was in the amount of $225,000. 
 

Page 4



 

Page 4 of 6 
 

A motion was made by Ms. Cepero, seconded by Ms. Schechter and passed unanimously approving the 
SPF Underground Agreement (Bypass Road) in the amount of $225,000, as presented. 
 
 8.  Consider Acceptance of Annual Engineer’s Report 
 
Mr. Ballbe presented the Annual Engineer’s Report, noting that the bulk of the infrastructure in 
Assessment Areas 1, 2 and 3 had been completed.   
 
A motion was made by Ms. Schechter, seconded by Mr. Lopez and passed unanimously accepting the 
Annual Engineer’s Report, as presented. 
 
 9.  Consider Arazoza Amendment 
 
Mr. Ballbe explained that the agreement amendment was for additional landscaping and irrigation work, 
adding the bypass road to the parkway agreement. 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Cepero, seconded by Ms. Schechter and passed unanimously approving the 
Arazoza Amendment, as presented. 
 
 10.  Discussion Regarding Basketball Court 
 
Mr. Pierman presented Mr. Diamond’s request to add a basketball court to the facilities.  Following 
discussion, the Board consensus was that the item had not been budgeted, so no action was taken.  
 
 11.  Legislative Update 
 
Mr. Cochran noted that most of the updates had already been presented to the Board, but that the 
Legislature had added a human trafficking amendment, which requires all government agencies to obtain 
an anti-human trafficking affidavit for new contracts.  
 
J. CHANGE ORDERS 
  
Mr. Ballbe presented the following change order: 
 

1. Latite Roofing Additional Work Authorization for the Coconut entrance roofing work 
in the amount of $16,396. 

2. Hawkins Construction CO No 001 For plan revisions in the amount of $177,972.80. 
3. Hawkins Construction CO No 002 for the FPL primary conduit in the amount of 

$54,193.19. 
4. Hawkins Construction CO No 003 for installation of a fire hydrant water main during 

construction in the amount of $17,484.48. 
5. Hawkins Construction CO No 004 for roof downspout drainage in the amount of 

$89,166.86. 
6. Hawkins Construction CO No 005 for added dry retention areas and landscaping in the 

amount of $79,985.50. 
7. Hawkins Construction CO No 007 for irrigation pump station landscaping, irrigation 

and fencing, in the amount of $34,148.09. 
8. Hawkins Construction CO No 008 for fountain light changes in the amount of 

$10,986.92. 

Page 5



 

Page 5 of 6 
 

9. Hawkins Construction CO No 009 for landscape changes due to plan revisions in the 
amount of $11,084.63. 

10. Hawkins Construction CO No 010 for site lighting revisions, including additional 
roadway and parking lot lighting and style changes, required by the city in the amount 
of  $1,105,079.95. 

11. SPF Underground CO No 3 for Spine Road 5 dry utility additions in the amount of 
$13,280.80. 

 
A motion was made by Ms. Cepero, seconded by Mr. Lopez and passed unanimously approving Change 
Orders 1-11, as presented. 
 
K. CLUBHOUSE 
 1.  Clubhouse Management Update 
 
Mr. Salvatore noted that the clubhouse landscaping had been mulched and the access control project had 
begun.  The fence has been installed and the electric has been permitted and started.  He also presented 
a proposal from Prosecco Café to conduct a trial run serving food at the clubhouse at no cost to the 
District.  Following discussion, a motion was made by Mr. Lopez, seconded by Ms. Cepero and 
unanimously passed allowing the trial run, subject to licensing, insurance and legal review.  
 
Ms. Chiaramonte highlighted several events that had taken place at the clubhouse, noting that 
programming was lighter over the summer.   
 
 2.  Discussion Regarding Proposed Club Fee Schedule for Fiscal Year 2024/2025 
 
Mr. Pierman presented the proposal club fee schedule, noting that the District would need to advertise a 
public hearing to formally accept the new rate.  Board consensus was to accept the new rates and proceed 
with advertising the public hearing.   
 
 L. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 
Mr. Pierman noted that there would be one vacant seat on the Board in November and asked how the 
Board would like to approach the seat’s appointment.  Following discussion, the Board consensus was 
to request resumes from residents who express interest in the position.   
 
M. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
There were no further comments from the Board Members. 
 
N. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Ms. Cepero, seconded 
by Mr. Lopez and passed unanimously adjourning the Regular Board Meeting at 1:36 p.m.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



 

Page 6 of 6 
 

 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
________________________________  _________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary    Chairperson/Vice-Chair 

Page 7



WE-40424978

AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER REVISING THE RATES  
FOR CLUBHOUSE AMENITIES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025 AND  

NOTICE OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING.

The Board of Supervisors of the Avenir Community Development District will hold a Public Hearing (‘public hearing”) and Regular Board Meeting 
(“meeting”) on October 24, 2024, at 12:30 p.m. in the offices of Special District Services, Inc. located at The Oaks Center, 2501A Burns Road, Palm Beach 
Gardens, Florida 33410.  The purpose of the public hearing is for the Board to consider revising and updating the rates for clubhouse amenities.  A regular 
board meeting of the District will also be held at that time where the Board may consider any other business that may properly come before it.  Specific 
legal authority for the revisions to the rate referenced below is Section 190.35, Florida Statutes, and the Amenity Rules Handbook of the Avenir Community 
Development District.  

A copy of the agendas may be obtained from the District’s website or at the offices of the District Manager, 2501A Burns Road, Palm Beach Gardens, 
Florida 33410, Telephone: (561) 630-4922 and/or toll free at 1-877-737-4922, during normal business hours.  

The public hearing and meeting are open to the public and will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of Florida law for community 
development districts.  The public hearing and meeting may be continued to a date, time, and place to be specified on the record at the meeting. There may 
be occasions when staff or Supervisors may participate by speaker telephone.  

Any person requiring special accommodations at this meeting because of a disability or physical impairment should contact the District Office at 
(561) 630-4922 at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the meeting.  If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Florida Relay Service at 1-800-
955-8770, for aid in contacting the District Office.

Each person who decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at the public hearing or meeting is 
advised that person will need a record of proceedings and that accordingly, the person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, 
including the testimony and evidence upon which such appeal is to be based.

Meetings may be cancelled from time to time without advertised notice.

Avenir Community Development District

Fee Schedule FY 2024/2025

CATEGORY PATRON NON-PROFIT NON-PATRON

ANNUAL MEMBER CLUB FEE – Non-Residents $ 3,500 N/A N/A 
LEASE APPLICATION PROCESSING FEE $ 50 N/A N/A 
MEMBERSHIP CARD/FOB REPLACEMENT FEE $ 25  N/A N/A 
Afterhours Staffing Fee (After 10 p.m.) $ 55/hr $ 55/hr $ 55/hr

CLUB RENTAL FEES AND DEPOSITS

EVENT HALL – Non-Refundable Fee (6 Hours) $ 1,500 $ 1,500 $ 2,250 

EVENT HALL – Non-Refundable Fee (All Day) $ 2,800 $ 2,800 $ 4,760 
EVENT HALL – Refundable Deposit $ 500 $ 500 $ 500 
CLUBROOM – Non-Refundable Fee (6 Hours) $ 650 $ 650 $ 950 
CLUBROOM – Non-Refundable Fee (All Day) $ 1,350 $ 1,350 $ 1,850 
CLUBROOM – Refundable Deposit $ 500 $ 500 $ 500 

CAFE PAVILION – Non-Refundable Fee (6 Hours) $ 1,000 $ 1,250 $ 1,250
CAFE PAVILION – Refundable Deposit $ 250 $ 250 $ 250
LARGE PAVILION – Non-Refundable Fee (6 Hours) $ 800 $ 1,000 $ 1,000
LARGE PAVILION – Refundable Deposit $ 250 $ 250 $ 250
SMALL PAVILION – Non-Refundable Fee (6 Hours) $ 500 $ 625 $ 625
SMALL PAVILION – Refundable Deposit $ 250 $ 250 $ 250 

TENNIS COURT (2 hours) $ 5 $ 5 $ 5 

AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

www.avenircdd.org

PUBLISH:  PALM BEACH POST  10/09/24 & 10/16/24

Page 8



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-13 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE AVENIR 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT INCREASING THE 
ANNUAL MEMBER CLUB FEE; APPROVING THE AVENIR 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT FEE SCHEDULE FY 
2023/2024; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 WHEREAS, the Avenir Community Development District (the “District”) is a local unit 
of special purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, 
being situated in Palm Beach Gardens, Palm Beach County, Florida; and 

WHEREAS, the District is the owner of the Avenir Clubhouse and Recreational 
Amenities, located at 12255 Avenir Road, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida (the “Club Property”); 
and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 190.011, Florida Statutes, the District is authorized to 
adopt and modify rules, regulations, and rates pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 120, Florida 
Statutes, prescribing the conduct of the business of the District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 190.035, Florida Statutes, authorizes the District to prescribe, fix, 
establish, modify, and collect rates, fees and other charges for facilities and services furnished by 
the District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution 2022-12, adopted by the District Board of 
Supervisors (the “District Board”) at its meeting of October 27, 2022, the Avenir Community 
Development District Fee Schedule, including applicable District rates, fees and charges was 
modified and re-adopted, which fee schedule was amended and supplemented with Resolution 
No. 2023-13, adopted September 28, 2023; and  
 
 WHEREAS, as part of the approved Final Budget for Fiscal Year 2024/2025 (the “Final 
Budget”), the District Board of Supervisors increased the assessment pertaining to the operation 
and management of the Avenir Club and related facilities in order to cover increased costs, as set 
forth in said Final Budget; and 

WHEREAS, the District Board of Supervisors has determined that it is also necessary to 
increase the Annual Member Club Fee as set forth in the Fee Schedule in order to address the 
increased costs that have been placed on Members of the Avenir Club, as set forth in the Final 
Budget; and 

WHEREAS, the District’s Amenities Rules Handbook requires that the charges, rates, 
deposits, and fees applicable to the Club Property, and any changes thereto, be adopted by 
Resolution of the District Board of Supervisors in accordance with Section 190.035, Florida 
Statutes, and after a public hearing advertised at least ten (10) days prior to the public hearing; 
and 

Page 9



 WHEREAS, the public hearing to consider the increase in the Annual Member Club Fee 
and the and adoption of the fee schedule for Fiscal Year 2024/2025 pertaining to the use of the 
Club Property was advertised at least ten (10) days prior to the public hearing; and 

 WHEREAS, after a public hearing held in accordance with Section 190.035, Florida 
Statutes, the Board of Supervisors desires to amend and adopt the fee schedule for Fiscal Year 
2024/2025 pertaining to the use of the Club Property. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, THAT: 

 Section 1. The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated as the findings of fact of 
the District Board of Supervisors. 

 Section 2. The Annual Member Club Fee is hereby increased from $3,200 to $3,500. 

Section 3. The Avenir Community Development District Fee Schedule is hereby 
amended and replaced with that which is attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “A”.  
Any fees, rates, or charges not specifically modified by this Resolution shall be unchanged and 
shall remain in effect as previously adopted and approved by the District Board of Supervisors.  

 Section 4. The District Manager is hereby directed to take all actions consistent with 
this Resolution. 

 Section 5. All Resolutions or parts of Resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

 Section 6. If any clause, section or other part or application of this Resolution is held 
by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, in part or as applied, it shall 
not affect the validity of the remaining portions or applications of this Resolution. 

 Section 7. This Resolution shall take effect on November 1, 2024.   

 PASSED AND ADOPTED in the Public Session of the Board of Supervisors of the 
Avenir Community Development District, this 24th day of October, 2024. 

       AVENIR COMMUNITY  
Attest:       DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 

_________________________                                     ___________________________ 
Jason Pierman, Secretary                  Virginia Cepero, Chair  

 

 

Page 10



Avenir Community Development District 
Fee Schedule FY 2024/2025 

CATEGORY PATRON NON-PROFIT NON-PATRON 
ANNUAL MEMBER CLUB FEE – Non-Residents  $      3,500   N/A   N/A  
LEASE APPLICATION PROCESSING FEE  $           50   N/A   N/A  
MEMBERSHIP CARD/FOB REPLACEMENT FEE  $           15   N/A   N/A  
Afterhours Staffing Fee (After 10 p.m.)   $       55/hr        $       55/hr $       55/hr 

CLUB RENTAL FEES AND DEPOSITS 
EVENT HALL – Non-Refundable Fee (6 Hours)  $      1,500   $           1,500   $             2,250  
EVENT HALL – Non-Refundable Fee (All Day)  $      2,800   $           2,800   $             4,760  
EVENT HALL – Refundable Deposit  $         500   $              500   $                500  
CLUBROOM – Non-Refundable Fee (6 Hours)  $         650   $              650   $                950  
CLUBROOM – Non-Refundable Fee (All Day)  $      1,350   $           1,350   $             1,850  
CLUBROOM – Refundable Deposit  $         500   $              500   $                500  
CAFE PAVILION – Non-Refundable Fee (6 Hours)  $      1,000   $           1,250  $            1,250 
CAFE PAVILION – Refundable Deposit  $         250  $             250  $               250 
LARGE PAVILION – Non-Refundable Fee (6 Hours)  $         800  $          1,000  $            1,000 
LARGE PAVILION – Refundable Deposit  $         250   $              250  $                250 
SMALL PAVILION – Non-Refundable Fee (6 Hours)  $         500   $             625 $              625  
SMALL PAVILION – Refundable Deposit  $         250   $             275  $             275 
TENNIS COURT (2 hours)  $             5   $                  5   $                    5  

 

Last revised November 1, 2024 

 

* ANY FEES, RATES, AND CHARGES NOT SPECIFICALLY MODIFIED OR 
ADDRESSED IN THIS FEE SCHEDULE SHALL BE UNCHANGED AND SHALL 
REMAIN IN EFFECT AS PREVIOUSLY ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT.  THIS FEE SCHEDULE SHALL REMAIN IN PLACE BEYOND FISCAL 
YEAR 2024/2025 UNTIL OTHERWISE CHANGED OR MODIFIED BY 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE AVENIR 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT. 

Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



 

Jackson Land Development, LLC. 
1888 N. W. 21st Street, Pompano Beach, Florida 33069 

Broward (954) 973-3060 / 24 Hour Emergency (954) 973-3405 / Fax (954) 960-1679 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL 
**ELECTRONIC BID PACKAGE ENCLOSED** 

 
 

BID TITLE: AVENIR POD 21 LIFT STATION PROJECT 
PROJECT NUMBER: 202036 

 
TO:     Jason Pierman, District Manager 
   jpierman@sdsinc.org 

AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

 
FROM:    JACKSON LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLC. 
   1888 NW 21st Street 

Pompano Beach, FL 33069 
 
BID DATE/TIME:  July 17, 2024 at 11:30 A.M. 

Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



1888 NW 21 STREET
POMPANO BEACH, FL 33069

Current Principal  Place of Business:

Current Mailing Address:
1888 NW 21 STREET
POMPANO BEACH, FL 33069 US

Entity Name: JACKSON LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLC

DOCUMENT# L09000032518

FEI Number: 26-4606776 Certificate of Status Desired:
Name and Address of Current Registered Agent:
LAWRENCE, JOSEPH W  II
350 EAST LAS OLAS BLVD
SUITE 1130
FORT LAUDERDALE, FL 33301 US

The above named entity submits this statement for the purpose of changing its registered office or registered agent, or both, in the State of Florida.

SIGNATURE:

Electronic Signature of Registered Agent Date

Authorized Person(s) Detail :

I hereby certify that the information indicated on this report or supplemental report is true and accurate and that my electronic signature shall have the same legal effect as if made under 
oath; that I am a managing member or manager of the limited liability company or the receiver or trustee empowered to execute this report as required by Chapter 605, Florida Statutes; and 
that my name appears above, or on an attachment with all other like empowered.

SIGNATURE:

Electronic Signature of Signing Authorized Person(s) Detail Date

JOSEPH W. LAWRENCE, II

FILED
Feb 01, 2024

Secretary of State
1241587522CC

JEREMY JACKSON MANAGER 02/01/2024

2024 FLORIDA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ANNUAL REPORT

No

02/01/2024

Title MGR

Name JACKSON, KENNETH R 

Address 1888 NW 21 STREET

City-State-Zip: POMPANO BEACH FL 33069

Title MGR

Name FOSS, EDWARD

Address 1888 NW 21 STREET

City-State-Zip: POMPANO BEACH FL 33069

Title MGR

Name POSSANZA, PAUL

Address 1888 NW 21 STREET

City-State-Zip: POMPANO BEACH FL 33069

Title MGR

Name JACKSON, JEREMY C 

Address 1888 NW 21 STREET

City-State-Zip: POMPANO BEACH FL 33069

Title MGR

Name BUCK, RICHARD

Address 1888 NW 21 STREET

City-State-Zip: POMPANO BEACH FL 33069

Page 81



Page 82



Name Title License # Years with Company # Years Experience

KENNETH JACKSON MANAGER/PARTNER, SR. PROJECT MGR. GC 15 YEARS 40+
JEREMY JACKSON MANAGER/PARTNER, PROJECT MGR. 15 YEARS 25 +
EDWARD FOSS MANAGER/PARTNER; SR. ESTIMATOR/PM CUC/Fire V 15 YEARS 25 +
RICHARD BUCK MANAGER/PARTNER; SR. PROJECT MGR 12 YEARS 26 +
PAUL POSSANZA MANAGER/PARTNER, SR. PROJECT MGR. 9 YEARS 30+

ROBIN IVESTER OFFICE ASSISTANT 12 YEARS 36+

ANGELO PUGLISI SUPERINTENDENT, UTILITIES 7 YEARS 25+
JOHN McCABE SUPERINTENDENT, UTILITIES 15 YEARS 30+
NATE KRICK SUPERINTENDENT, UTILITIES 15 YEARS 25+
JOHN SPIVEY SUPERINTENDENT, EARTHWORK
JAKE DANENS SUPERINTENDENT, UTILITIES 2 MONTHS

KEY PERSONNEL

Page 83



 
RICHARD BUCK 

Jackson Land Development, LLC 
1888 N.W. 21st Street 

Pompano Beach, FL  33069 
 
 
EDUCATION 
 
B.S. Degree Advertising & Public Relations  
Grand Valley State University, Allendale, MI  1991-1993 
 
Undergraduate Studies 
West Virginia University, Morgantown, WV  1989-1991   
 
CERTIFICATIONS 
 
STATE LICENSING: Certified General Contractor – CGC1507487 
OSHA (30) hour Construction Safety and Health Course 
 
 
CAREER SKILLS/KNOWLEDGE 

 
 General Accounting     Financial Management 
 Underground Utility Construction   Budgeting/Accountability  
 Land Development/Earthwork   Road Construction 
 Construction Scheduling (Microsoft Project) Quality Management       
 Project Management     Project Estimating - HCSS Software 

      
 
CAREER EXPERIENCE 
 
JACKSON LAND DEVELOPMENT - 2009 to Present 
Project Manager / Manager/Partner   
 
Responsible for negotiating client contracts, creating estimates, and preparing proposals. 
Negotiate revisions, changes and additions to contractual agreements as needed.  Collaborate 
with clients, engineers, subcontractors, vendors, and municipalities.   Contract administration. 
Manage budgets, schedules, and cost objectives. Address equipment and material needs and 
acquire to meet job scope requirements and adhere to budget.  Oversee supervisory field staff 
and oversee daily operations. 
 
W. JACKSON AND SONS - 1994-2009 
Project Manager 
 

 Project Management 
 Project Estimating 
 Job Budgeting and Costing 

 Scheduling 
 Client Relations 
 Oversee day to day Operations 

Page 84



RESUME - RICHARD BUCK 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 
 
EXTRACURRICULAR:  GRAND VALLEY STATE UNIVERSITY 

 
 Assisted in the coordination of weekend activities for football recruiting visits. 
 Football:  West Virginia University and Grand Valley State University 
 Full Athletic Scholarship – Position: Defensive Back 
 1989 MAZDA Gator Bowl, Jacksonville, FL 
 1991 NCAA Division II National Playoffs 
 1992 MIFC Conference Champs 
 Vice President of the Public Relations and Advertising Club, GVSV 

 
 
REFERENCES 
 
Anthony LoFurno, Director of Land Development, G.L. Land Development 
Phone: (954) 753-1730 Ext.385; E-mail: anthony.lofurno@glhomes.com 
 
Jared Shaver, Land Development Manager, Lennar Homes 
Phone: (415) 599-9937; E-mail: jared.shaver@lennar.com 
 
Keith F. Leonard, Land Development Manager, D. R. Horton 
Phone: (954) 949-3000; E-mail: KFLeonard@drhorton.com 

Page 85



Angelo Puglisi, Superintendent 
3580 Chesapeake Circle 

Boynton Beach, FL 33436 
Phone:  561-969-6167 
puglisi51@yahoo.com 

 
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE: 
 
Jackson Land Development LLC 
Pompano Beach, FL  
2016 -Present  

Pipe Superintendent 
 
 Manage out  and Palm Beach 

 
 Delegate  
 Build  
 Order  materials 
 -

 
   to meet all health 

  
 

Pipecon  
Pompano Beach, FL 
2007-2016  

Vice President 
 

  
 - 

 
 
American Engineering & Development Corp 
Hialeah, FL 
1994-2007   

Assistant   
 
 through, Miami- Dade, Palm 

Beach,  
    
 s and closeout 
  
 - ,  

   
  r  

 

Page 86



 
Resume - Angelo Puglisi - Page 2 of 2 
 
 

Jackson & Sons  
Pompano Beach, FL 
1992-1994 (2 Years)    

 
 
 , 

 
 Handled all aspects d conveyance 
 Operate ,  

 
  

Ft. Lauderdale, FL 
1986-1992 

Pipelayer 
 

systems. 
 
EDUCATION: 
 
1986 - High School Diploma – Miami Norland Senior High   
 
CERTIFICATIONS: 
 
  
 NUCA Competent  Program 
  
 Entry 

 FABA  nd Repair 
  
 Open Water Diver 

 
PROFESSIONAL REFERENCES: 
 

1.  
Phone: (954) 319-6952; E-mail:  

 
2. Jeremy Jackson, President, Jackson Land Development, LLC 

Phone: (954) 973-3050; E-mail:   
 

3.  
Phone: (954) 971-2288; E-mail:  Larry@triodevelopment.com 

 
SUMMARY: 
 
With over 37 

 

Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

INSURER F :

INSURER E :

INSURER D :

INSURER C :

INSURER B :

INSURER A :

NAIC #

NAME:
CONTACT

(A/C, No):
FAX

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

PRODUCER

(A/C, No, Ext):
PHONE

INSURED

REVISION NUMBER:CERTIFICATE NUMBER:COVERAGES

IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

OTHER:

(Per accident)

(Ea accident)

$

$

N / A

SUBR
WVD

ADDL
INSD

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

$

$

$

$PROPERTY DAMAGE

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

AUTOS ONLY

AUTOSAUTOS ONLY
NON-OWNED

SCHEDULEDOWNED

ANY AUTO

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

Y / N
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below
If yes, describe under

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

$

$

$

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

ER
OTH-

STATUTE
PER

LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EFF

POLICY NUMBERTYPE OF INSURANCELTR
INSR

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

EXCESS LIAB

UMBRELLA LIAB $EACH OCCURRENCE

$AGGREGATE

$

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

DED RETENTION $

$PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$GENERAL AGGREGATE

$PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

$MED EXP (Any one person)

$EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED

$PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY
PRO-
JECT LOC

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CANCELLATION

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

Page 90



CNA PARAMOUNT

Contractors' General Liability Extension Endorsement

It is understood and agreed that this endorsement amends the COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
as follows. If any other endorsement attached to this policy amends any provision also amended by this endorsement,
then that other endorsement controls with respect to such provision, and the changes made by this endorsement with
respect to such provision do not apply.

TABLE OF CONTENTS
1. Additional Insureds
2. Additional Insured - Primary And Non-Contributory To Additional Insured's Insurance
3. Bodily Injury – Expanded Definition
4. Broad Knowledge of Occurrence/ Notice of Occurrence
5. Broad Named Insured
6. Broadened Liability Coverage For Damage To Your Product And Your Work
7. Contractual Liability - Railroads
8. Electronic Data Liability
9. Estates, Legal Representatives and Spouses
10. Expected Or Intended Injury – Exception for Reasonable Force
11. General Aggregate Limits of Insurance – Per Project
12. In Rem Actions
13. Incidental Health Care Malpractice Coverage
14. Joint Ventures/Partnership/Limited Liability Companies
15. Legal Liability – Damage To Premises / Alienated Premises / Property In The Named Insured's Care,

Custody or Control
16. Liquor Liability
17. Medical Payments
18. Non-owned Aircraft Coverage
19. Non-owned Watercraft
20. Personal And Advertising Injury – Discrimination or Humiliation
21. Personal And Advertising Injury - Contractual Liability
22. Property Damage - Elevators
23. Supplementary Payments
24. Unintentional Failure To Disclose Hazards
25. Waiver of Subrogation – Blanket
26. Wrap-Up Extension: OCIP CCIP, or Consolidated (Wrap-Up) Insurance Programs

6080361351CNA74705XX (1-15) Policy No:
1Page 1 of 17 Endorsement No:

The Continental Insurance Co. Effective Date: 04/30/202
JACKSON LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLCInsured Name:

Copyright CNA All Rights Reserved. Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

10
02

00
05

16
08

03
61

35
13

12
4

Page 91



CNA PARAMOUNT

Contractors' General Liability Extension Endorsement

1. ADDITIONAL INSUREDS

a. WHO IS AN INSURED is amended to include as an Insured any person or organization described in paragraphs
A. through H. below whom a Named Insured is required to add as an additional insured on this Coverage Part
under a written contract or written agreement, provided such contract or agreement:

(1) is currently in effect or becomes effective during the term of this Coverage Part; and

(2) was executed prior to:

(a) the bodily injury or property damage; or

(b) the offense that caused the personal and advertising injury,

for which such additional insured seeks coverage.

b. However, subject always to the terms and conditions of this policy, including the limits of insurance, the Insurer
will not provide such additional insured with:

(1) a higher limit of insurance than required by such contract or agreement; or

(2) coverage broader than required by such contract or agreement, and in no event broader than that described
by the applicable paragraph A. through H. below.

Any coverage granted by this endorsement shall apply only to the extent permissible by law.

A. Controlling Interest

Any person or organization with a controlling interest in a Named Insured, but only with respect to such person or
organization's liability for bodily injury, property damage or personal and advertising injury arising out of:

1. such person or organization's financial control of a Named Insured; or

2. premises such person or organization owns, maintains or controls while a Named Insured leases or
occupies such premises;

provided that the coverage granted by this paragraph does not apply to structural alterations, new construction or
demolition operations performed by, on behalf of, or for such additional insured.

B. Co-owner of Insured Premises

A co-owner of a premises co-owned by a Named Insured and covered under this insurance but only with respect
to such co-owner's liability for bodily injury, property damage or personal and advertising injury as co-owner
of such premises.

C. Lessor of Equipment

Any person or organization from whom a Named Insured leases equipment, but only with respect to liability for
bodily injury, property damage or personal and advertising injury caused, in whole or in part, by the Named
Insured's maintenance, operation or use of such equipment, provided that the occurrence giving rise to such
bodily injury, property damage or the offense giving rise to such personal and advertising injury takes place
prior to the termination of such lease.

D. Lessor of Land

Any person or organization from whom a Named Insured leases land but only with respect to liability for bodily
injury, property damage or personal and advertising injury arising out of the ownership, maintenance or use
of such land, provided that the occurrence giving rise to such bodily injury, property damage or the offense
giving rise to such personal and advertising injury takes place prior to the termination of such lease. The

6080361351CNA74705XX (1-15) Policy No:
1Page 2 of 17 Endorsement No:

The Continental Insurance Co. Effective Date: 04/30/202
JACKSON LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLCInsured Name:

Copyright CNA All Rights Reserved. Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission. Page 92



CNA PARAMOUNT

Contractors' General Liability Extension Endorsement

coverage granted by this paragraph does not apply to structural alterations, new construction or demolition
operations performed by, on behalf of, or for such additional insured.

E. Lessor of Premises

An owner or lessor of premises leased to the Named Insured, or such owner or lessor's real estate manager, but
only with respect to liability for bodily injury, property damage or personal and advertising injury arising out of
the ownership, maintenance or use of such part of the premises leased to the Named Insured, and provided that
the occurrence giving rise to such bodily injury or property damage, or the offense giving rise to such personal
and advertising injury, takes place prior to the termination of such lease. The coverage granted by this
paragraph does not apply to structural alterations, new construction or demolition operations performed by, on
behalf of, or for such additional insured.

F. Mortgagee, Assignee or Receiver
A mortgagee, assignee or receiver of premises but only with respect to such mortgagee, assignee or receiver's
liability for bodily injury, property damage or personal and advertising injury arising out of the Named
Insured's ownership, maintenance, or use of a premises by a Named Insured.

The coverage granted by this paragraph does not apply to structural alterations, new construction or demolition
operations performed by, on behalf of, or for such additional insured.

G. State or Governmental Agency or Subdivision or Political Subdivisions – Permits
A state or governmental agency or subdivision or political subdivision that has issued a permit or authorization but
only with respect to such state or governmental agency or subdivision or political subdivision's liability for bodily
injury, property damage or personal and advertising injury arising out of:

1. the following hazards in connection with premises a Named Insured owns, rents, or controls and to which
this insurance applies:

a. the existence, maintenance, repair, construction, erection, or removal of advertising signs, awnings,
canopies, cellar entrances, coal holes, driveways, manholes, marquees, hoistaway openings, sidewalk
vaults, street banners, or decorations and similar exposures; or

b. the construction, erection, or removal of elevators; or

c. the ownership, maintenance or use of any elevators covered by this insurance; or

2. the permitted or authorized operations performed by a Named Insured or on a Named Insured's behalf.

The coverage granted by this paragraph does not apply to:

a. Bodily injury, property damage or personal and advertising injury arising out of operations performed
for the state or governmental agency or subdivision or political subdivision; or

b. Bodily injury or property damage included within the products-completed operations hazard.

With respect to this provision's requirement that additional insured status must be requested under a written
contract or agreement, the Insurer will treat as a written contract any governmental permit that requires the
Named Insured to add the governmental entity as an additional insured.

H. Trade Show Event Lessor

1. With respect to a Named Insured's participation in a trade show event as an exhibitor, presenter or displayer,
any person or organization whom the Named Insured is required to include as an additional insured, but only
with respect to such person or organization's liability for bodily injury, property damage or personal and
advertising injury caused by:

6080361351CNA74705XX (1-15) Policy No:
1Page 3 of 17 Endorsement No:

The Continental Insurance Co. Effective Date: 04/30/202
JACKSON LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLCInsured Name:

Copyright CNA All Rights Reserved. Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

10
02

00
05

16
08

03
61

35
13

12
5

Page 93



CNA PARAMOUNT

Contractors' General Liability Extension Endorsement

a. the Named Insured's acts or omissions; or

b. the acts or omissions of those acting on the Named Insured's behalf,

in the performance of the Named Insured's ongoing operations at the trade show event premises during the
trade show event.

2. The coverage granted by this paragraph does not apply to bodily injury or property damage included within
the products-completed operations hazard.

2. ADDITIONAL INSURED - PRIMARY AND NON-CONTRIBUTORY TO ADDITIONAL INSURED'S INSURANCE

The Other Insurance Condition in the COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY CONDITIONS Section is amended to
add the following paragraph:

If the Named Insured has agreed in writing in a contract or agreement that this insurance is primary and non-
contributory relative to an additional insured's own insurance, then this insurance is primary, and the Insurer will not
seek contribution from that other insurance. For the purpose of this Provision 2., the additional insured's own
insurance means insurance on which the additional insured is a named insured. Otherwise, and notwithstanding
anything to the contrary elsewhere in this Condition, the insurance provided to such person or organization is excess
of any other insurance available to such person or organization.

3. BODILY INJURY – EXPANDED DEFINITION

Under DEFINITIONS, the definition of bodily injury is deleted and replaced by the following:

Bodily injury means physical injury, sickness or disease sustained by a person, including death, humiliation, shock,
mental anguish or mental injury sustained by that person at any time which results as a consequence of the physical
injury, sickness or disease.

4. BROAD KNOWLEDGE OF OCCURRENCE/ NOTICE OF OCCURRENCE

Under CONDITIONS, the condition entitled Duties in The Event of Occurrence, Offense, Claim or Suit is amended
to add the following provisions:

A. BROAD KNOWLEDGE OF OCCURRENCE

The Named Insured must give the Insurer or the Insurer's authorized representative notice of an occurrence,
offense or claim only when the occurrence, offense or claim is known to a natural person Named Insured, to a
partner, executive officer, manager or member of a Named Insured, or an employee designated by any of the
above to give such notice.

B. NOTICE OF OCCURRENCE

The Named Insured's rights under this Coverage Part will not be prejudiced if the Named Insured fails to give
the Insurer notice of an occurrence, offense or claim and that failure is solely due to the Named Insured's
reasonable belief that the bodily injury or property damage is not covered under this Coverage Part. However,
the Named Insured shall give written notice of such occurrence, offense or claim to the Insurer as soon as the
Named Insured is aware that this insurance may apply to such occurrence, offense or claim.

5. BROAD NAMED INSURED

WHO IS AN INSURED is amended to delete its Paragraph 3. in its entirety and replace it with the following:

3. Pursuant to the limitations described in Paragraph 4. below, any organization in which a Named Insured has
management control:

a. on the effective date of this Coverage Part; or

6080361351CNA74705XX (1-15) Policy No:
1Page 4 of 17 Endorsement No:

The Continental Insurance Co. Effective Date: 04/30/202
JACKSON LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLCInsured Name:

Copyright CNA All Rights Reserved. Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission. Page 94



CNA PARAMOUNT

Contractors' General Liability Extension Endorsement

b. by reason of a Named Insured creating or acquiring the organization during the policy period,

qualifies as a Named Insured, provided that there is no other similar liability insurance, whether primary,
contributory, excess, contingent or otherwise, which provides coverage to such organization, or which would have
provided coverage but for the exhaustion of its limit, and without regard to whether its coverage is broader or
narrower than that provided by this insurance.

But this BROAD NAMED INSURED provision does not apply to:

(a) any partnership, limited liability company or joint venture; or

(b) any organization for which coverage is excluded by another endorsement attached to this Coverage Part.

For the purpose of this provision, management control means:

A. owning interests representing more than 50% of the voting, appointment or designation power for the
selection of a majority of the Board of Directors of a corporation; or

B. having the right, pursuant to a written trust agreement, to protect, control the use of, encumber or transfer or
sell property held by a trust.

4. With respect to organizations which qualify as Named Insureds by virtue of Paragraph 3. above, this insurance
does not apply to:

a. bodily injury or property damage that first occurred prior to the date of management control, or that first
occurs after management control ceases; nor

b. personal or advertising injury caused by an offense that first occurred prior to the date of management
control or that first occurs after management control ceases.

5. The insurance provided by this Coverage Part applies to Named Insureds when trading under their own names
or under such other trading names or doing-business-as names (dba) as any Named Insured should choose to
employ.

6. BROADENED LIABILITY COVERAGE FOR DAMAGE TO YOUR PRODUCT AND YOUR WORK

A. Under COVERAGES, Coverage A – Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liability, the paragraph entitled
Exclusions is amended to delete exclusions k. and I. and replace them with the following:

This insurance does not apply to:

k. Damage to Your Product

Property damage to your product arising out of it, or any part of it except when caused by or resulting from:

(1) fire;

(2) smoke;

(3) collapse; or

(4) explosion.

I. Damage to Your Work

Property damage to your work arising out of it, or any part of it and included in the products-completed
operations hazard.

This exclusion does not apply:

(1) If the damaged work, or the work out of which the damage arises, was performed on the Named
Insured's behalf by a subcontractor; or

6080361351CNA74705XX (1-15) Policy No:
1Page 5 of 17 Endorsement No:

The Continental Insurance Co. Effective Date: 04/30/202
JACKSON LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLCInsured Name:

Copyright CNA All Rights Reserved. Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

10
02

00
05

16
08

03
61

35
13

12
6

Page 95



CNA PARAMOUNT

Contractors' General Liability Extension Endorsement

(2) If the cause of loss to the damaged work arises as a result of:

(a) fire;

(b) smoke;

(c) collapse; or

(d) explosion.

B. The following paragraph is added to LIMITS OF INSURANCE:

Subject to 5. above, $100,000 is the most the Insurer will pay under Coverage A for the sum of damages arising
out of any one occurrence because of property damage to your product and your work that is caused by fire,
smoke, collapse or explosion and is included within the product-completed operations hazard. This sublimit
does not apply to property damage to your work if the damaged work, or the work out of which the damage
arises, was performed on the Named Insured's behalf by a subcontractor.

C. This Broadened Liability Coverage For Damage To Your Product And Your Work Provision does not apply if
an endorsement of the same name is attached to this policy.

7. CONTRACTUAL LIABILITY – RAILROADS

With respect to operations performed within 50 feet of railroad property, the definition of insured contract is replaced
by the following:

Insured Contract means:

a. A contract for a lease of premises. However, that portion of the contract for a lease of premises that indemnifies
any person or organization for damage by fire to premises while rented to a Named Insured or temporarily
occupied by a Named Insured with permission of the owner is not an insured contract;

b. A sidetrack agreement;

c. Any easement or license agreement;

d. An obligation, as required by ordinance, to indemnify a municipality, except in connection with work for a
municipality;

e. An elevator maintenance agreement;

f. That part of any other contract or agreement pertaining to the Named Insured's business (including an
indemnification of a municipality in connection with work performed for a municipality) under which the Named
Insured assumes the tort liability of another party to pay for bodily injury or property damage to a third person
or organization. Tort liability means a liability that would be imposed by law in the absence of any contract or
agreement.

Paragraph f. does not include that part of any contract or agreement:

(1) That indemnifies an architect, engineer or surveyor for injury or damage arising out of:

(a) Preparing, approving or failing to prepare or approve maps, shop drawings, opinions, reports, surveys,
field orders, change orders or drawings and specifications; or

(b) Giving directions or instructions, or failing to give them, if that is the primary cause of the injury or
damage;

(2) Under which the Insured, if an architect, engineer or surveyor, assumes liability for an injury or damage
arising out of the insured's rendering or failure to render professional services, including those listed in (1)
above and supervisory, inspection, architectural or engineering activities.

8. ELECTRONIC DATA LIABILITY

6080361351CNA74705XX (1-15) Policy No:
1Page 6 of 17 Endorsement No:

The Continental Insurance Co. Effective Date: 04/30/202
JACKSON LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLCInsured Name:

Copyright CNA All Rights Reserved. Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission. Page 96



CNA PARAMOUNT

Contractors' General Liability Extension Endorsement

A. Under COVERAGES, Coverage A – Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liability, the paragraph entitled
Exclusions is amended to delete exclusion p. Electronic Data and replace it with the following:

This insurance does not apply to:

p. Access Or Disclosure Of Confidential Or Personal Information And Data-related Liability

Damages arising out of:

(1) any access to or disclosure of any person's or organization's confidential or personal information,
including patents, trade secrets, processing methods, customer lists, financial information, credit card
information, health information or any other type of nonpublic information; or

(2) the loss of, loss of use of, damage to, corruption of, inability to access, or inability to manipulate
electronic data that does not result from physical injury to tangible property.

However, unless Paragraph (1) above applies, this exclusion does not apply to damages because of bodily
injury.

This exclusion applies even if damages are claimed for notification costs, credit monitoring expenses,
forensic expenses, public relation expenses or any other loss, cost or expense incurred by the Named
Insured or others arising out of that which is described in Paragraph (1) or (2) above.

B. The following paragraph is added to LIMITS OF INSURANCE:

Subject to 5. above, $100,000 is the most the Insurer will pay under Coverage A for all damages arising out of
any one occurrence because of property damage that results from physical injury to tangible property and
arises out of electronic data.

C. The following definition is added to DEFINITIONS:

Electronic data means information, facts or programs stored as or on, created or used on, or transmitted to or
from computer software (including systems and applications software), hard or floppy disks, CD-ROMS, tapes,
drives, cells, data processing devices or any other media which are used with electronically controlled equipment.

D. For the purpose of the coverage provided by this ELECTRONIC DATA LIABILITY Provision, the definition of
property damage in DEFINITIONS is replaced by the following:

Property damage means:

a. Physical injury to tangible property, including all resulting loss of use of that property. All such loss of use
shall be deemed to occur at the time of the physical injury that caused it;

b. Loss of use of tangible property that is not physically injured. All such loss of use shall be deemed to occur at
the time of the occurrence that caused it; or

c. Loss of, loss of use of, damage to, corruption of, inability to access, or inability to properly manipulate
electronic data, resulting from physical injury to tangible property. All such loss of electronic data shall be
deemed to occur at the time of the occurrence that caused it.

For the purposes of this insurance, electronic data is not tangible property.

E. If Electronic Data Liability is provided at a higher limit by another endorsement attached to this policy, then the
$100,000 limit provided by this ELECTRONIC DATA LIABILITY Provision is part of, and not in addition to, that
higher limit.

9. ESTATES, LEGAL REPRESENTATIVES, AND SPOUSES

The estates, heirs, legal representatives and spouses of any natural person Insured shall also be insured under this
policy; provided, however, coverage is afforded to such estates, heirs, legal representatives, and spouses only for

6080361351CNA74705XX (1-15) Policy No:
1Page 7 of 17 Endorsement No:

The Continental Insurance Co. Effective Date: 04/30/202
JACKSON LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLCInsured Name:

Copyright CNA All Rights Reserved. Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

10
02

00
05

16
08

03
61

35
13

12
7

Page 97



CNA PARAMOUNT

Contractors' General Liability Extension Endorsement

claims arising solely out of their capacity or status as such and, in the case of a spouse, where such claim seeks
damages from marital community property, jointly held property or property transferred from such natural person
Insured to such spouse. No coverage is provided for any act, error or omission of an estate, heir, legal
representative, or spouse outside the scope of such person's capacity or status as such, provided however that the
spouse of a natural person Named Insured and the spouses of members or partners of joint venture or partnership
Named Insureds are Insureds with respect to such spouses' acts, errors or omissions in the conduct of the Named
Insured's business.

10. EXPECTED OR INTENDED INJURY – EXCEPTION FOR REASONABLE FORCE

Under COVERAGES, Coverage A – Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liability, the paragraph entitled
Exclusions is amended to delete the exclusion entitled Expected or Intended Injury and replace it with the following:

This insurance does not apply to:

Expected or Intended Injury

Bodily injury or property damage expected or intended from the standpoint of the Insured. This exclusion does not
apply to bodily injury or property damage resulting from the use of reasonable force to protect persons or property.

11. GENERAL AGGREGATE LIMITS OF INSURANCE - PER PROJECT

A. For each construction project away from premises the Named Insured owns or rents, a separate Construction
Project General Aggregate Limit, equal to the amount of the General Aggregate Limit shown in the Declarations,
is the most the Insurer will pay for the sum of:

1. All damages under Coverage A, except damages because of bodily injury or property damage included in
the products-completed operations hazard; and

2. All medical expenses under Coverage C,

that arise from occurrences or accidents which can be attributed solely to ongoing operations at that construction
project. Such payments shall not reduce the General Aggregate Limit shown in the Declarations, nor the
Construction Project General Aggregate Limit of any other construction project.

B. All:

1. Damages under Coverage B, regardless of the number of locations or construction projects involved;

2. Damages under Coverage A, caused by occurrences which cannot be attributed solely to ongoing
operations at a single construction project, except damages because of bodily injury or property damage
included in the products-completed operations hazard; and

3. Medical expenses under Coverage C caused by accidents which cannot be attributed solely to ongoing
operations at a single construction project,

will reduce the General Aggregate Limit shown in the Declarations.

C. The limits shown in the Declarations for Each Occurrence, for Damage To Premises Rented To You and for
Medical Expense continue to apply, but will be subject to either the Construction Project General Aggregate Limit
or the General Aggregate Limit shown in the Declarations, depending on whether the occurrence can be
attributed solely to ongoing operations at a particular construction project.

D. When coverage for liability arising out of the products-completed operations hazard is provided, any payments
for damages because of bodily injury or property damage included in the products-completed operations
hazard will reduce the Products-Completed Operations Aggregate Limit shown in the Declarations, regardless of
the number of projects involved.

6080361351CNA74705XX (1-15) Policy No:
1Page 8 of 17 Endorsement No:

The Continental Insurance Co. Effective Date: 04/30/202
JACKSON LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLCInsured Name:

Copyright CNA All Rights Reserved. Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission. Page 98



CNA PARAMOUNT

Contractors' General Liability Extension Endorsement

E. If a single construction project away from premises owned by or rented to the Insured has been abandoned and
then restarted, or if the authorized contracting parties deviate from plans, blueprints, designs, specifications or
timetables, the project will still be deemed to be the same construction project.

F. The provisions of LIMITS OF INSURANCE not otherwise modified by this endorsement shall continue to apply as
stipulated.

12. IN REM ACTIONS

A quasi in rem action against any vessel owned or operated by or for the Named Insured, or chartered by or for the
Named Insured, will be treated in the same manner as though the action were in personam against the Named
Insured.

13. INCIDENTAL HEALTH CARE MALPRACTICE COVERAGE

Solely with respect to bodily injury that arises out of a health care incident:

A. Under COVERAGES, Coverage A – Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liability, the paragraph entitled
Insuring Agreement is amended to replace Paragraphs 1.b.(1) and 1.b.(2) with the following:

b. This insurance applies to bodily injury provided that the professional health care services are incidental to
the Named Insured's primary business purpose, and only if:

(1) such bodily injury is caused by an occurrence that takes place in the coverage territory.

(2) the bodily injury first occurs during the policy period. All bodily injury arising from an occurrence will
be deemed to have occurred at the time of the first act, error, or omission that is part of the occurrence;
and

B. Under COVERAGES, Coverage A – Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liability, the paragraph entitled
Exclusions is amended to:

i. add the following to the Employers Liability exclusion:

This exclusion applies only if the bodily injury arising from a health care incident is covered by other
liability insurance available to the Insured (or which would have been available but for exhaustion of its
limits).

ii. delete the exclusion entitled Contractual Liability and replace it with the following:

This insurance does not apply to:

Contractual Liability

the Insured's actual or alleged liability under any oral or written contract or agreement, including but not
limited to express warranties or guarantees.

iii. add the following additional exclusions:

This insurance does not apply to:

Discrimination

any actual or alleged discrimination, humiliation or harassment, including but not limited to claims based on
an individual's race, creed, color, age, gender, national origin, religion, disability, marital status or sexual
orientation.

Dishonesty or Crime

Any actual or alleged dishonest, criminal or malicious act, error or omission.

Medicare/Medicaid Fraud
6080361351CNA74705XX (1-15) Policy No:

1Page 9 of 17 Endorsement No:
The Continental Insurance Co. Effective Date: 04/30/202

JACKSON LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLCInsured Name:
Copyright CNA All Rights Reserved. Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

10
02

00
05

16
08

03
61

35
13

12
8

Page 99



CNA PARAMOUNT

Contractors' General Liability Extension Endorsement

any actual or alleged violation of law with respect to Medicare, Medicaid, Tricare or any similar federal, state
or local governmental program.

Services Excluded by Endorsement

Any health care incident for which coverage is excluded by endorsement.

C. DEFINITIONS is amended to:

i. add the following definitions:

Health care incident means an act, error or omission by the Named Insured's employees or volunteer
workers in the rendering of:

a. professional health care services on behalf of the Named Insured or

b. Good Samaritan services rendered in an emergency and for which no payment is demanded or received.

Professional health care services means any health care services or the related furnishing of food,
beverages, medical supplies or appliances by the following providers in their capacity as such but solely to
the extent they are duly licensed as required:

a. Physician;

b. Nurse;

c. Nurse practitioner;

d. Emergency medical technician;

e. Paramedic;

f. Dentist;

g. Physical therapist;

h. Psychologist;

i. Speech therapist;

j. Other allied health professional; or

Professional health care services does not include any services rendered in connection with human clinical
trials or product testing.

ii. delete the definition of occurrence and replace it with the following:

Occurrence means a health care incident. All acts, errors or omissions that are logically connected by any
common fact, circumstance, situation, transaction, event, advice or decision will be considered to constitute a
single occurrence;

iii. amend the definition of Insured to:

a. add the following:

the Named Insured's employees are Insureds with respect to:

(1) bodily injury to a co-employee while in the course of the co-employee's employment by the
Named Insured or while performing duties related to the conduct of the Named Insured's
business; and

6080361351CNA74705XX (1-15) Policy No:
1Page 10 of 17 Endorsement No:

The Continental Insurance Co. Effective Date: 04/30/202
JACKSON LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLCInsured Name:

Copyright CNA All Rights Reserved. Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.Page 100



CNA PARAMOUNT

Contractors' General Liability Extension Endorsement

(2) bodily injury to a volunteer worker while performing duties related to the conduct of the
Named Insured's business;

when such bodily injury arises out of a health care incident.

the Named Insured's volunteer workers are Insureds with respect to:

(1) bodily injury to a co-volunteer worker while performing duties related to the conduct of the
Named Insured's business; and

(2) bodily injury to an employee while in the course of the employee's employment by the Named
Insured or while performing duties related to the conduct of the Named Insured's business;

when such bodily injury arises out of a health care incident.

b. delete Subparagraphs (a), (b), (c) and (d) of Paragraph 2.a.(1) of WHO IS AN INSURED.

D. The Other Insurance condition is amended to delete Paragraph b.(1) in its entirety and replace it with the
following:

Other Insurance

b. Excess Insurance

(1) To the extent this insurance applies, it is excess over any other insurance, self insurance or risk transfer
instrument, whether primary, excess, contingent or on any other basis, except for insurance purchased
specifically by the Named Insured to be excess of this coverage.

14. JOINT VENTURES / PARTNERSHIP / LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANIES

WHO IS AN INSURED is amended to delete its last paragraph and replace it with the following:

No person or organization is an Insured with respect to the conduct of any current or past partnership, joint venture or
limited liability company that is not shown as a Named Insured in the Declarations, except that if the Named Insured
was a joint venturer, partner, or member of a limited liability company and such joint venture, partnership or limited
liability company terminated prior to or during the policy period, such Named Insured is an Insured with respect to
its interest in such joint venture, partnership or limited liability company but only to the extent that:

a. any offense giving rise to personal and advertising injury occurred prior to such termination date, and the
personal and advertising injury arising out of such offense first occurred after such termination date;

b. the bodily injury or property damage first occurred after such termination date; and

c. there is no other valid and collectible insurance purchased specifically to insure the partnership, joint venture or
limited liability company; and

If the joint venture, partnership or limited liability company is or was insured under a consolidated (wrap-up)
insurance program, then such insurance will always be considered valid and collectible for the purpose of paragraph
c. above. But this provision will not serve to exclude bodily injury, property damage or personal and advertising
injury that would otherwise be covered under the Contractors General Liability Extension Endorsement provision
entitled WRAP-UP EXTENSION: OCIP, CCIP, OR CONSOLIDATED (WRAP-UP) INSURANCE PROGRAMS.
Please see that provision for the definition of consolidated (wrap-up) insurance program.

15. LEGAL LIABILITY – DAMAGE TO PREMISES / ALIENATED PREMISES / PROPERTY IN THE NAMED
INSURED'S CARE, CUSTODY OR CONTROL

A. Under COVERAGES, Coverage A – Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liability, the paragraph entitled
Exclusions is amended to delete exclusion j. Damage to Property in its entirety and replace it with the following:

This insurance does not apply to:

6080361351CNA74705XX (1-15) Policy No:
1Page 11 of 17 Endorsement No:

The Continental Insurance Co. Effective Date: 04/30/202
JACKSON LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLCInsured Name:

Copyright CNA All Rights Reserved. Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

10
02

00
05

16
08

03
61

35
13

12
9

Page 101



CNA PARAMOUNT

Contractors' General Liability Extension Endorsement

j. Damage to Property

Property damage to:

(1) Property the Named Insured owns, rents, or occupies, including any costs or expenses incurred by you,
or any other person, organization or entity, for repair, replacement, enhancement, restoration or
maintenance of such property for any reason, including prevention of injury to a person or damage to
another's property;

(2) Premises the Named Insured sells, gives away or abandons, if the property damage arises out of any
part of those premises;

(3) Property loaned to the Named Insured;

(4) Personal property in the care, custody or control of the Insured;

(5) That particular part of real property on which the Named Insured or any contractors or subcontractors
working directly or indirectly on the Named Insured's behalf are performing operations, if the property
damage arises out of those operations; or

(6) That particular part of any property that must be restored, repaired or replaced because your work was
incorrectly performed on it.

Paragraphs (1), (3) and (4) of this exclusion do not apply to property damage (other than damage by fire) to
premises rented to the Named Insured or temporarily occupied by the Named Insured with the permission of
the owner, nor to the contents of premises rented to the Named Insured for a period of 7 or fewer
consecutive days. A separate limit of insurance applies to Damage To Premises Rented To You as described
in LIMITS OF INSURANCE.

Paragraph (2) of this exclusion does not apply if the premises are your work.

Paragraphs (3), (4), (5) and (6) of this exclusion do not apply to liability assumed under a sidetrack
agreement.

Paragraph (6) of this exclusion does not apply to property damage included in the products-completed
operations hazard.

Paragraphs (3) and (4) of this exclusion do not apply to property damage to:

i. tools, or equipment the Named Insured borrows from others, nor

ii. other personal property of others in the Named Insured's care, custody or control while being used in the
Named Insured's operations away from any Named Insured's premises.

However, the coverage granted by this exception to Paragraphs (3) and (4) does not apply to:

a. property at a job site awaiting or during such property's installation, fabrication, or erection;

b. property that is mobile equipment leased by an Insured;

c. property that is an auto, aircraft or watercraft;

d. property in transit; or

e. any portion of property damage for which the Insured has available other valid and collectible
insurance, or would have such insurance but for exhaustion of its limits, or but for application of one of its
exclusions.

A separate limit of insurance and deductible apply to such property of others. See LIMITS OF INSURANCE
as amended below.

6080361351CNA74705XX (1-15) Policy No:
1Page 12 of 17 Endorsement No:

The Continental Insurance Co. Effective Date: 04/30/202
JACKSON LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLCInsured Name:

Copyright CNA All Rights Reserved. Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.Page 102



CNA PARAMOUNT

Contractors' General Liability Extension Endorsement

B. Under COVERAGES, Coverage A – Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liability, the paragraph entitled
Exclusions is amended to delete its last paragraph and replace it with the following:

Exclusions c. through n. do not apply to damage by fire to premises while rented to a Named Insured or
temporarily occupied by a Named Insured with permission of the owner, nor to damage to the contents of
premises rented to a Named Insured for a period of 7 or fewer consecutive days.

A separate limit of insurance applies to this coverage as described in LIMITS OF INSURANCE.

C. The following paragraph is added to LIMITS OF INSURANCE:

Subject to 5. above, $25,000 is the most the Insurer will pay under Coverage A for damages arising out of any
one occurrence because of the sum of all property damage to borrowed tools or equipment, and to other
personal property of others in the Named Insured's care, custody or control, while being used in the Named
Insured's operations away from any Named Insured's premises. The Insurer's obligation to pay such property
damage does not apply until the amount of such property damage exceeds $1,000. The Insurer has the right but
not the duty to pay any portion of this $1,000 in order to effect settlement. If the Insurer exercises that right, the
Named Insured will promptly reimburse the Insurer for any such amount.

D. Paragraph 6., Damage To Premises Rented To You Limit, of LIMITS OF INSURANCE is deleted and replaced by
the following:

6. Subject to Paragraph 5. above, (the Each Occurrence Limit), the Damage To Premises Rented To You Limit
is the most the Insurer will pay under Coverage A for damages because of property damage to any one
premises while rented to the Named Insured or temporarily occupied by the Named Insured with the
permission of the owner, including contents of such premises rented to the Named Insured for a period of 7
or fewer consecutive days. The Damage To Premises Rented To You Limit is the greater of:

a. $500,000; or

b. The Damage To Premises Rented To You Limit shown in the Declarations.

E. Paragraph 4.b.(1)(a)(ii) of the Other Insurance Condition is deleted and replaced by the following:

(ii) That is property insurance for premises rented to the Named Insured, for premises temporarily occupied by
the Named Insured with the permission of the owner; or for personal property of others in the Named
Insured's care, custody or control;

16. LIQUOR LIABILITY

Under COVERAGES, Coverage A – Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liability, the paragraph entitled
Exclusions is amended to delete the exclusion entitled Liquor Liability.

This LIQUOR LIABILITY provision does not apply to any person or organization who otherwise qualifies as an
additional insured on this Coverage Part.

17. MEDICAL PAYMENTS

A. LIMITS OF INSURANCE is amended to delete Paragraph 7. (the Medical Expense Limit) and replace it with the
following:

7. Subject to Paragraph 5. above (the Each Occurrence Limit), the Medical Expense Limit is the most the
Insurer will pay under Coverage C – Medical Payments for all medical expenses because of bodily injury
sustained by any one person. The Medical Expense Limit is the greater of:

(1) $15,000 unless a different amount is shown here: $N,NNN,NNN,NNN; or

(2) the amount shown in the Declarations for Medical Expense Limit.

6080361351CNA74705XX (1-15) Policy No:
1Page 13 of 17 Endorsement No:

The Continental Insurance Co. Effective Date: 04/30/202
JACKSON LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLCInsured Name:

Copyright CNA All Rights Reserved. Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

10
02

00
05

16
08

03
61

35
13

13
0

Page 103



CNA PARAMOUNT

Contractors' General Liability Extension Endorsement

B. Under COVERAGES, the Insuring Agreement of Coverage C – Medical Payments is amended to replace
Paragraph 1.a.(3)(b) with the following:

(b) The expenses are incurred and reported to the Insurer within three years of the date of the accident; and

18. NON-OWNED AIRCRAFT

Under COVERAGES, Coverage A – Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liability, the paragraph entitled
Exclusions is amended as follows:

The exclusion entitled Aircraft, Auto or Watercraft is amended to add the following:

This exclusion does not apply to an aircraft not owned by any Named Insured, provided that:

1. the pilot in command holds a currently effective certificate issued by the duly constituted authority of the United
States of America or Canada, designating that person as a commercial or airline transport pilot;

2. the aircraft is rented with a trained, paid crew to the Named Insured; and

3. the aircraft is not being used to carry persons or property for a charge.

19. NON-OWNED WATERCRAFT

Under COVERAGES, Coverage A – Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liability, the paragraph entitled
Exclusions is amended to delete subparagraph (2) of the exclusion entitled Aircraft, Auto or Watercraft, and
replace it with the following.

This exclusion does not apply to:

(2) a watercraft that is not owned by any Named Insured, provided the watercraft is:

(a) less than 75 feet long; and

(b) not being used to carry persons or property for a charge.

20. PERSONAL AND ADVERTISING INJURY –DISCRIMINATION OR HUMILIATION

A. Under DEFINITIONS, the definition of personal and advertising injury is amended to add the following tort:

Discrimination or humiliation that results in injury to the feelings or reputation of a natural person.

B. Under COVERAGES, Coverage B – Personal and Advertising Injury Liability, the paragraph entitled
Exclusions is amended to:

1. delete the Exclusion entitled Knowing Violation Of Rights Of Another and replace it with the following:

This insurance does not apply to:

Knowing Violation of Rights of Another

Personal and advertising injury caused by or at the direction of the Insured with the knowledge that the act
would violate the rights of another and would inflict personal and advertising injury. This exclusion shall not
apply to discrimination or humiliation that results in injury to the feelings or reputation of a natural person, but
only if such discrimination or humiliation is not done intentionally by or at the direction of:

(a) the Named Insured; or

(b) any executive officer, director, stockholder, partner, member or manager (if the Named Insured is a
limited liability company) of the Named Insured.

2. add the following exclusions:

6080361351CNA74705XX (1-15) Policy No:
1Page 14 of 17 Endorsement No:

The Continental Insurance Co. Effective Date: 04/30/202
JACKSON LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLCInsured Name:

Copyright CNA All Rights Reserved. Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.Page 104



CNA PARAMOUNT

Contractors' General Liability Extension Endorsement

This insurance does not apply to:

Employment Related Discrimination

Discrimination or humiliation directly or indirectly related to the employment, prospective employment, past
employment or termination of employment of any person by any Insured.

Premises Related Discrimination

discrimination or humiliation arising out of the sale, rental, lease or sub-lease or prospective sale, rental,
lease or sub-lease of any room, dwelling or premises by or at the direction of any Insured.

Notwithstanding the above, there is no coverage for fines or penalties levied or imposed by a governmental entity
because of discrimination.

The coverage provided by this PERSONAL AND ADVERTISING INJURY –DISCRIMINATION OR HUMILIATION
Provision does not apply to any person or organization whose status as an Insured derives solely from

Provision 1. ADDITIONAL INSURED of this endorsement; or

attachment of an additional insured endorsement to this Coverage Part.

This PERSONAL AND ADVERTISING INJURY –DISCRIMINATION OR HUMILIATION Provision does not apply to
any person or organization who otherwise qualifies as an additional insured on this Coverage Part.

21. PERSONAL AND ADVERTISING INJURY - CONTRACTUAL LIABILITY

A. Under COVERAGES, Coverage B –Personal and Advertising Injury Liability, the paragraph entitled
Exclusions is amended to delete the exclusion entitled Contractual Liability.

B. Solely for the purpose of the coverage provided by this PERSONAL AND ADVERTISING INJURY -
CONTRACTUAL LIABILITY provision, the following changes are made to the section entitled
SUPPLEMENTARY PAYMENTS – COVERAGES A AND B:

1. Paragraph 2.d. is replaced by the following:

d. The allegations in the suit and the information the Insurer knows about the offense alleged in such suit
are such that no conflict appears to exist between the interests of the Insured and the interests of the
indemnitee;

2. The first unnumbered paragraph beneath Paragraph 2.f.(2)(b) is deleted and replaced by the following:

So long as the above conditions are met, attorneys fees incurred by the Insurer in the defense of that
indemnitee, necessary litigation expenses incurred by the Insurer, and necessary litigation expenses incurred
by the indemnitee at the Insurer's request will be paid as defense costs. Such payments will not be deemed
to be damages for personal and advertising injury and will not reduce the limits of insurance.

C. This PERSONAL AND ADVERTISING INJURY - CONTRACTUAL LIABILITY Provision does not apply if
Coverage B –Personal and Advertising Injury Liability is excluded by another endorsement attached to this
Coverage Part.

This PERSONAL AND ADVERTISING INJURY - CONTRACTUAL LIABILITY Provision does not apply to any
person or organization who otherwise qualifies as an additional insured on this Coverage Part.

22. PROPERTY DAMAGE – ELEVATORS

A. Under COVERAGES, Coverage A – Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liability, the paragraph entitled
Exclusions is amended such that the Damage to Your Product Exclusion and subparagraphs (3), (4) and (6) of
the Damage to Property Exclusion do not apply to property damage that results from the use of elevators.

6080361351CNA74705XX (1-15) Policy No:
1Page 15 of 17 Endorsement No:

The Continental Insurance Co. Effective Date: 04/30/202
JACKSON LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLCInsured Name:

Copyright CNA All Rights Reserved. Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

10
02

00
05

16
08

03
61

35
13

13
1

Page 105



CNA PARAMOUNT

Contractors' General Liability Extension Endorsement

B. Solely for the purpose of the coverage provided by this PROPERTY DAMAGE – ELEVATORS Provision, the
Other Insurance conditions is amended to add the following paragraph:

This insurance is excess over any of the other insurance, whether primary, excess, contingent or on any other
basis that is Property insurance covering property of others damaged from the use of elevators.

23. SUPPLEMENTARY PAYMENTS

The section entitled SUPPLEMENTARY PAYMENTS – COVERAGES A AND B is amended as follows:

A. Paragraph 1.b. is amended to delete the $250 limit shown for the cost of bail bonds and replace it with a $5,000.
limit; and

B. Paragraph 1.d. is amended to delete the limit of $250 shown for daily loss of earnings and replace it with a
$1,000. limit.

24. UNINTENTIONAL FAILURE TO DISCLOSE HAZARDS

If the Named Insured unintentionally fails to disclose all existing hazards at the inception date of the Named
Insured's Coverage Part, the Insurer will not deny coverage under this Coverage Part because of such failure.

25. WAIVER OF SUBROGATION - BLANKET

Under CONDITIONS, the condition entitled Transfer Of Rights Of Recovery Against Others To Us is amended to
add the following:

The Insurer waives any right of recovery the Insurer may have against any person or organization because of
payments the Insurer makes for injury or damage arising out of:

1. the Named Insured's ongoing operations; or

2. your work included in the products-completed operations hazard.

However, this waiver applies only when the Named Insured has agreed in writing to waive such rights of recovery in
a written contract or written agreement, and only if such contract or agreement:

1. is in effect or becomes effective during the term of this Coverage Part; and

2. was executed prior to the bodily injury, property damage or personal and advertising injury giving rise to the
claim.

26. WRAP-UP EXTENSION: OCIP, CCIP, OR CONSOLIDATED (WRAP-UP) INSURANCE PROGRAMS

Note: The following provision does not apply to any public construction project in the state of Oklahoma, nor to any
construction project in the state of Alaska, that is not permitted to be insured under a consolidated (wrap-up)
insurance program by applicable state statute or regulation.

If the endorsement EXCLUSION – CONSTRUCTION WRAP-UP is attached to this policy, or another exclusionary
endorsement pertaining to Owner Controlled Insurance Programs (O.C.I.P.) or Contractor Controlled Insurance
Programs (C.C.I.P.) is attached, then the following changes apply:

A. The following wording is added to the above-referenced endorsement:

With respect to a consolidated (wrap-up) insurance program project in which the Named Insured is or was
involved, this exclusion does not apply to those sums the Named Insured become legally obligated to pay as
damages because of:

1. Bodily injury, property damage, or personal or advertising injury that occurs during the Named Insured's
ongoing operations at the project, or during such operations of anyone acting on the Named Insured's
behalf; nor

6080361351CNA74705XX (1-15) Policy No:
1Page 16 of 17 Endorsement No:

The Continental Insurance Co. Effective Date: 04/30/202
JACKSON LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLCInsured Name:

Copyright CNA All Rights Reserved. Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.Page 106



CNA PARAMOUNT

Contractors' General Liability Extension Endorsement

2. Bodily injury or property damage included within the products-completed operations hazard that arises
out of those portions of the project that are not residential structures.

B. Condition 4. Other Insurance is amended to add the following subparagraph 4.b.(1)(c):
This insurance is excess over:

(c) Any of the other insurance whether primary, excess, contingent or any other basis that is insurance available
to the Named Insured as a result of the Named Insured being a participant in a consolidated (wrap-up)
insurance program, but only as respects the Named Insured's involvement in that consolidated (wrap-up)
insurance program.

C. DEFINITIONS is amended to add the following definitions:

Consolidated (wrap-up) insurance program means a construction, erection or demolition project for which the
prime contractor/project manager or owner of the construction project has secured general liability insurance
covering some or all of the contractors or subcontractors involved in the project, such as an Owner Controlled
Insurance Program (O.C.I.P.) or Contractor Controlled Insurance Program (C.C.I.P.).

Residential structure means any structure where 30% or more of the square foot area is used or is intended to
be used for human residency, including but not limited to:

1. single or multifamily housing, apartments, condominiums, townhouses, co-operatives or planned unit
developments; and

2. the common areas and structures appurtenant to the structures in paragraph 1. (including pools, hot tubs,
detached garages, guest houses or any similar structures).

However, when there is no individual ownership of units, residential structure does not include military housing,
college/university housing or dormitories, long term care facilities, hotels or motels. Residential structure also
does not include hospitals or prisons.

This WRAP-UP EXTENSION: OCIP, CCIP, OR CONSOLIDATED (WRAP-UP) INSURANCE PROGRAMS Provision
does not apply to any person or organization who otherwise qualifies as an additional insured on this Coverage Part.

All other terms and conditions of the Policy remain unchanged.

This endorsement, which forms a part of and is for attachment to the Policy issued by the designated Insurers, takes effect
on the effective date of said Policy at the hour stated in said Policy, unless another effective date is shown below, and
expires concurrently with said Policy.

6080361351CNA74705XX (1-15) Policy No:
1Page 17 of 17 Endorsement No:

The Continental Insurance Co. Effective Date: 04/30/202
JACKSON LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLCInsured Name:

Copyright CNA All Rights Reserved. Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

10
02

00
05

16
08

03
61

35
13

13
2

Page 107



CNA PARAMOUNT

Blanket Additional Insured - Owners, Lessees or
Contractors - with Products-Completed

Operations Coverage Endorsement

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

It is understood and agreed as follows:

I. WHO IS AN INSURED is amended to include as an Insured any person or organization whom you are required by
written contract to add as an additional insured on this coverage part, but only with respect to liability for bodily
injury, property damage or personal and advertising injury caused in whole or in part by your acts or omissions, or
the acts or omissions of those acting on your behalf:

A. in the performance of your ongoing operations subject to such written contract; or

B. in the performance of your work subject to such written contract, but only with respect to bodily injury or
property damage included in the products-completed operations hazard, and only if:

1. the written contract requires you to provide the additional insured such coverage; and

2. this coverage part provides such coverage.

II. But if the written contract requires:

A. additional insured coverage under the 11-85 edition, 10-93 edition, or 10-01 edition of CG2010, or under the 10-
01 edition of CG2037; or

B. additional insured coverage with "arising out of" language; or

C. additional insured coverage to the greatest extent permissible by law;

then paragraph I. above is deleted in its entirety and replaced by the following:

WHO IS AN INSURED is amended to include as an Insured any person or organization whom you are required by
written contract to add as an additional insured on this coverage part, but only with respect to liability for bodily
injury, property damage or personal and advertising injury arising out of your work that is subject to such written
contract.

III. Subject always to the terms and conditions of this policy, including the limits of insurance, the Insurer will not provide
such additional insured with:

A. coverage broader than required by the written contract; or

B. a higher limit of insurance than required by the written contract.

IV. The insurance granted by this endorsement to the additional insured does not apply to bodily injury, property
damage, or personal and advertising injury arising out of:

A. the rendering of, or the failure to render, any professional architectural, engineering, or surveying services,
including:

1. the preparing, approving, or failing to prepare or approve maps, shop drawings, opinions, reports, surveys,
field orders, change orders or drawings and specifications; and

2. supervisory, inspection, architectural or engineering activities; or

B. any premises or work for which the additional insured is specifically listed as an additional insured on another
endorsement attached to this coverage part.

V. Under COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY CONDITIONS, the Condition entitled Other Insurance is amended to
add the following, which supersedes any provision to the contrary in this Condition or elsewhere in this coverage
part:

6080361351CNA75079XX (10-16) Policy No:
6Page 1 of 2 Endorsement No:

The Continental Insurance Co. Effective Date: 04/30/202
JACKSON LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLCInsured Name:

Copyright CNA All Rights Reserved. Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

10
02

00
05

16
08

03
61

35
13

13
7

Page 108



CNA PARAMOUNT

Blanket Additional Insured - Owners, Lessees or
Contractors - with Products-Completed

Operations Coverage Endorsement

Primary and Noncontributory Insurance

With respect to other insurance available to the additional insured under which the additional insured is a named
insured, this insurance is primary to and will not seek contribution from such other insurance, provided that a written
contract requires the insurance provided by this policy to be:

1. primary and non-contributing with other insurance available to the additional insured; or

2. primary and to not seek contribution from any other insurance available to the additional insured.

But except as specified above, this insurance will be excess of all other insurance available to the additional insured.

VI. Solely with respect to the insurance granted by this endorsement, the section entitled COMMERCIAL GENERAL
LIABILITY CONDITIONS is amended as follows:

The Condition entitled Duties In The Event of Occurrence, Offense, Claim or Suit is amended with the addition of
the following:

Any additional insured pursuant to this endorsement will as soon as practicable:

1. give the Insurer written notice of any claim, or any occurrence or offense which may result in a claim;

2. send the Insurer copies of all legal papers received, and otherwise cooperate with the Insurer in the investigation,
defense, or settlement of the claim; and

3. make available any other insurance, and tender the defense and indemnity of any claim to any other insurer or
self-insurer, whose policy or program applies to a loss that the Insurer covers under this coverage part. However,
if the written contract requires this insurance to be primary and non-contributory, this paragraph 3. does not
apply to insurance on which the additional insured is a named insured.

The Insurer has no duty to defend or indemnify an additional insured under this endorsement until the Insurer receives
written notice of a claim from the additional insured.

VII. Solely with respect to the insurance granted by this endorsement, the section entitled DEFINITIONS is amended to
add the following definition:

Written contract means a written contract or written agreement that requires you to make a person or organization an
additional insured on this coverage part, provided the contract or agreement:

A. is currently in effect or becomes effective during the term of this policy; and

B. was executed prior to:

1. the bodily injury or property damage; or

2. the offense that caused the personal and advertising injury;

for which the additional insured seeks coverage.

Any coverage granted by this endorsement shall apply solely to the extent permissible by law.

All other terms and conditions of the Policy remain unchanged.

This endorsement, which forms a part of and is for attachment to the Policy issued by the designated Insurers, takes effect
on the effective date of said Policy at the hour stated in said Policy, unless another effective date is shown below, and
expires concurrently with said Policy.

6080361351CNA75079XX (10-16) Policy No:
6Page 2 of 2 Endorsement No:

The Continental Insurance Co. Effective Date: 04/30/202
JACKSON LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLCInsured Name:

Copyright CNA All Rights Reserved. Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Jobs Similar in scope and/or CDD related 
 
 
G. L. HOMES – LAND DEVELOPMENT 
8756 Boynton Beach Blvd., Suite 2100 
Boynton Beach, FL  33472 
Project:  Apex at Avenir Phase 1 POD 15 
Start 09/2023 – Finish 06/2024 
Final Contract Value: $7,521,246.00 
 
G. L. HOMES – LAND DEVELOPMENT 
8756 Boynton Beach Blvd., Suite 2100 
Boynton Beach, FL  33472 
Project:  Apex at Avenir Phase 2 POD 15 
Start  07/2024 – in progress 
Awarded Contract Value: $3,950,641.00 
 
AKEL HOMES 
Solana Bay at Avenir POD 9 
5300 West Atlantic Avenue, Suite 505 
Delray Beach, FL 33484 
Solana Bay at Avenir – 118 Unit Single Family Homes 
Scope included Water, Sewer, Paving, Drainage, Earthworks, Concrete Works 
Start 07/2022 – Finish 02/2024 
Final Contract Value:  $2,746,747.00 

TAMARAC VILLAGE CDD 
2300 Glades Road, Suite 410W 
Boca Raton, FL 33431 
Project:  57TH Street Roadway Improvements  
Scope included Utilities and Roadway 
Start:  07/2024 
Final Contract Value:  $1,850,118.00 
 
  

Page 120



ID
Ta

sk
 N

am
e

Du
ra

tio
n

St
ar

t
Fi

ni
sh

1
Er

os
io

n 
Co

nt
ro

ls
5 

da
ys

M
on

 8
/5

/2
4

Fr
i 8

/9
/2

4

2
Ea

rt
hw

or
k

20
 d

ay
s

M
on

 
8/

12
/2

4
Fr

i 9
/6

/2
4

3
Se

w
er

 
10

0 
da

ys
M

on
 9

/9
/2

4
Fr

i 1
/2

4/
25

4
Dr

ai
na

ge
32

 d
ay

s
M

on
 

1/
27

/2
5

Tu
e 

3/
11

/2
5

5
W

at
er

15
 d

ay
s

W
ed

 
3/

12
/2

5
Tu

e 
4/

1/
25

6
Ro

ad
w

ay
 

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n

35
 d

ay
s

W
ed

 4
/2

/2
5

Tu
e 

5/
20

/2
5

7
Co

nc
re

te
 C

ur
bs

12
 d

ay
s

W
ed

 
5/

21
/2

5
Th

u 
6/

5/
25

8
Ut

ili
ty

 T
es

tin
g

10
 d

ay
s

Fr
i 6

/6
/2

5
Th

u 
6/

19
/2

5

J
J

A
S

O
N

D
J

F
M

A
M

J
J

H
al

f 2
, 2

02
4

H
al

f 1
, 2

02
5

H
al

f 2
, 2

Ta
sk

Sp
lit

M
ile

st
on

e

Su
m

m
ar

y

Pr
oj

ec
t S

um
m

ar
y

In
ac

tiv
e 

Ta
sk

In
ac

tiv
e 

M
ile

st
on

e

In
ac

tiv
e 

Su
m

m
ar

y

M
an

ua
l T

as
k

Du
ra

tio
n-

on
ly

M
an

ua
l S

um
m

ar
y 

Ro
llu

p

M
an

ua
l S

um
m

ar
y

St
ar

t-
on

ly

Fi
ni

sh
-o

nl
y

Ex
te

rn
al

 T
as

ks

Ex
te

rn
al

 M
ile

st
on

e

De
ad

lin
e

Pr
og

re
ss

M
an

ua
l P

ro
gr

es
s

Pa
ge

 1

Pr
oj

ec
t: 

JL
D 

Av
en

ir 
Po

d 
21

 P
ha

s
Da

te
: T

ue
 7

/1
6/

24

Page 121



The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements. 

3 

Assets:
 Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,421,157
Contract receivables, net 11,299,478
Other receivables 30,360
Contract assets:
 Conditional retainage receivable 4,202,168
 Revenue earned in excess of amounts received or receivable 3,287,786
Prepaid expenses 493,193

Total current assets 22,734,142

 Property and equipment, at cost:
Machinery and equipment $ 13,874,682
Vehicles 552,773
Less: accumulated depreciation 4,732,847 9,694,608

 Other Assets:
Due from members $ 127,134
Due from related party 187,378 314,512

Total assets $ 32,743,262

Liabilities:
 Current liabilities:

Accounts payable, including retainage of $ 1,537,265 $ 6,896,172
Payroll taxes payable 2,889
Accrued expenses 587,699
Contract liability - payments received or receivable
 in excess of revenues earned 7,611,482
Debt, due within one year 2,637,417

Total current liabilities 17,735,659

 Long-term liabilities:
 Debt, net of current portion 2,782,694

Total long-term liabilities 2,782,694

Total liabilities 20,518,353

Members' Equity 12,224,909

Total liabilities and members' equity $ 32,743,262

Jackson Land Development, LLC

December 31, 2023
Balance Sheet

Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Arazoza Second Amendment 

Rev. 10-16-2024 

- 1 - 

SECOND AMENDMENT TO CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 
 (Landscape and Irrigation Improvements) 

 
THIS SECOND AMENDMENT TO CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT (the “Second 

Amendment”) is entered into as of the ____ day of October, 2024 (the “Effective Date”), by and 
between: 
 

AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local 
unit of special purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 
190, Florida Statutes, being situated in Palm Beach Gardens, Palm 
Beach County, Florida, whose mailing address is 2501A Burns Road, 
Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410 (the “CDD"), 
 

and 
 
ARAZOZA BROTHERS CORPORATION, a Florida corporation, 
whose business address is 7027 SW 87th  Court, Miami, FL 33173 
(the "Contractor"). 

 
WHEREAS, the Contractor and the CDD entered into a Construction Contract (Landscape 

and Irrigation Improvements) for Northlake Boulevard Parkway Buffer East, dated June 18, 2024 (the 
“Original Agreement”), as amended by the First Amendment to Construction Contract (Landscape and 
Irrigation Improvements), dated July  2024 (the “First Amendment,” together with the “Original 
Agreement,” the “Contract”); and  

 
WHEREAS, shortly after the First Amendment was executed, it was determined that the 

amount to be added to the Contract for the Additional Work was understated in Section 2 and should 
be revised to be consistent with that amount  for the Additional Work as set forth in Exhibit A-1 and 
Exhibit B-1 to the First Amendment; and  ; and  
 

WHEREAS, the parties agree to proceed pursuant to Article 16 of the Contract, and mutually 
agree to providing for such Additional Work pursuant to the First Amendment, as amended by this 
second Amendment, in lieu of but having the same effect under the Contract as a “Change Order”; and  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants contained 

herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which are 
acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 
 

Section 1. The parties agree that the foregoing recitals are true and correct and are hereby 
incorporated into this First Amendment. 

 
Section 2. That Section 2 of the First Amendment is hereby amended as follows: 
 

Page 130



Arazoza Second Amendment 

Rev. 10-16-2024 

- 2 - 

Section 2. The Additional Work is hereby added to the Contract in the 
amount of $920,850.00 $1,055,024.50, which shall be paid to Contractor as the 
Additional Work is completed in accordance with the terms of the Contract.  The 
Additional Work shall be completed in accordance with the Bypass Road Plans and 
Specifications, this the First Amendment, this Second Amendment, and the Contract. 
 Contractor acknowledges receipt of each of the four (4) documents constituting the 
Bypass Road Plans and Specifications, as identified in Exhibit C-1 hereof. 
 
Section 3. Except as otherwise set forth in this Second Amendment, all other terms of the 

Contract are hereby ratified, reaffirmed and shall remain in full force and effect as provided by their 
terms. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties execute this Second Amendment and further agree 
that it shall take effect as of the Effective Date first above written. 
 
Attest:      AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT, a local unit of special purpose 
government established pursuant to Chapter 190, 
Florida Statutes 

 
 
______________________________ By:_______________________________ 
Jason Pierman, Secretary    Virginia Cepero, Chairperson  
       Board of Supervisors 
 
      _____ day of October, 2024 

 
 

ARAZOZA BROTHERS CORPORATION, a 
Florida corporation 
 

 
______________________________ By: ________________________________ 
       Alberto Arazoza, President 
Print name:______________________   
              
 
______________________________ _____ day of October, 2024 
 
Print name:______________________ 
 
(CORPORATE SEAL) 

Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Mitch Kay 
10070 Regency Way 

Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33412 
P: 561-901-2522   E: mitch@wfpcc.com 

 
September 4, 2024 

 

Mr. Jason Pierman 
Special District Services, Inc. 
2501A Burns Rd 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 
 
Dear Jason, 

 
I am writing to express my strong interest in joining the Avenir Community Development District 
(ACDD) Board. As someone who has been an active and visible participant in the community, I am 
familiar with the board’s work and am eager to contribute to its continued success. 

  

With a background in entrepreneurship and real estate, I have a proven track record of strategic 
planning, leadership, and community engagement. I successfully led the transformation and sale 
of a family housewares business and later founded Resource International, an independent 
consumer electronic television and digital display manufacturer, expanding it into various 
industries, including RV, Yacht, Cruise Lines, and other Hospitality sectors. Currently, as a real 
estate professional at Waterfront Properties and Club Communities, I provide clients with expert 
market insights and innovative marketing strategies. 

  

My past roles as Director and President of the Trieste at Boca Raton Master Association HOA Board, 
along with my involvement in organizing the Regency at Avenir Turn Over Committee, have given me 
hands-on experience in governance, policy development, and representing resident interests. 

  

I am excited for the potential opportunity to bring my skills and experience to the ACDD Board by 
contributing to the strategic goals of sustainable growth and enhanced community engagement. I 
look forward to the opportunity to support the board’s efforts and work collaboratively to benefit the 
Avenir community. 

 

Thank you for considering me for this position. I appreciate your time and look forward to the 
possibility of joining the ACDD Board and contributing to the team. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Mitch Kay 
Avenir Resident 

Page 134



 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 135



Scot Workman

9965 Regency Way

Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33412

September 5, 2024

To Whom It May Concern,

My name is Scot Workman, and I reside at 9965 Regency Way, Palm Beach Gardens, FL, in the 

master-planned community of Avenir. I moved here in December 2022 from Long Island, New 

York, where I was involved in commercial and residential construction and real estate 

development for more than 45 years.

I am writing this letter to recommend Mitch Kay, who I understand is seeking a position on the 

supervisory board for the Avenir C.D.D. I have known Mitch both personally and professionally 

for the past year and a half as a neighbor in Regency. I cannot think of a more qualified person 

for a seat on the board. Mitch has organized many successful events for our community and is 

always polite and courteous to our fellow neighbors. He is consistently willing to lend a helping 

hand to any neighbor in need.

On a professional level, I have referred many friends to Mitch for his real estate services, and 

they could not be more pleased with his professionalism and knowledge. I believe Mitch has the 

qualities and expertise needed to contribute significantly to the success of Avenir. I fully endorse 

Mitch Kay to serve on the board for Avenir.

Sincerely,

Scot Workman

Page 136



Page 137



August 29, 2024

To Whom It May Concern,

It is my pleasure to write this letter of recommendation for Mitch Kay, a business professional and 
community leader whose integrity, strategic thinking, and commitment to excellence set him apart. I 
have known Mitch for many years, both as a business partner and a friend, and his unwavering 
dedication to his work has always been apparent.

As the former Vice President of Purchasing for Carnival Cruise Lines, I was responsible for sourcing 
televisions for our entire eet, a challenging task due to the high usage and demanding environment. 
Mitch reached out to me persistently, determined to introduce his company, Resource International. 
Despite our initial reliance on major brands, Mitch’s determination and deep understanding of our needs 
caught my attention. His persistence was not just about making a sale; it was about truly understanding 
and solving our unique challenges at scale.

When I rst met Mitch at an industry trade show, Mitch’s enthusiasm and passion for business were hard 
to miss. His proposal to supply televisions for our crew berths was compelling, o fering not only 
competitive pricing and quality products but also a warranty and support program tailored speci cally to 
our industry. Mitch demonstrated a clear grasp of the operational dynamics of a large public corporation, 
and his team's readiness to address our concerns made Resource International a trusted and valued 
supplier to our business for well over a decade. Mitch has always credited me with giving him an 
opportunity, but in reality, he earned every bit of success through his outstanding performance and 
integrity.

What started as a professional relationship has developed into a lasting friendship 
built on mutual respect and trust. Whenever we get together, Mitch is eager to chat about business and 
share developments in the real estate market. It's evident to me that Mitch's story is one of hard work, 
passion, and a relentless pursuit of excellence.

I wholeheartedly recommend Mitch Kay for the role of ACDD Board Supervisor, and any role with the 
ACDD that requires a strategic mind, a problem-solver, and a dedicated leader. His unique blend of 
professionalism, innovation, and personal integrity makes him a standout candidate, and I am con dent 
he will bring tremendous value to any board or organization.

Sincerely,

Joe Lavi

y

Page 138



 

 

Craig S. Distel, Esq., B.C.S. 
Email: cdistel@mcdonaldhopkins.com – Tel: (561) 847-2353 

 
EXPERIENCE 
McDonald Hopkins, LLC, West Palm Beach, FL  
Partner           October 2022 – Present  
Associate Attorney         November 2017 – September 2022 
Devote practice to construction law, including representation of developers, contractors, and subcontractors in construction defect 
claims, lien claims, and contract negotiations. 

 Represent clients in real estate litigation cases including landlord tenant. Assisted client in claim arising out of unpaid rent and 
conversion of company property. 

 Represent design professional in construction defect and fraud claim arising out of defective specifications, improper approval 
of pay applications, and improper approval of deficient work. 

 Defend window manufacturer in lawsuit arising out of purchase of defunct company, debtor’s attempts to avoid repayment 
obligations, and associated counterclaims.  

 Represent large national company in non-compete and internet defamation claim against former employee who instituted an 
online “smear campaign.” 

 Represent electrical contractor in several construction defect claims related to large condominium projects in South Florida.  
 Represent homeowner association in construction defect action, including management of Chapter 558 claims process. 
 Represent subcontractors in multi-million dollar Federal Construction Project delay claims 
 Draft and assert claims against bonds for public and private project for amounts in excess of $10 million. 
 Draft and argue dispositive motions for matters related to construction and data privacy claims. 
 Draft and negotiate construction contracts for single-family home construction, commercial development projects, and 

condominium renovations with emphasis on indemnification provisions, liability limitations, insurance coverage issues, and 
provisions governing changes to contractor scopes of work. Construction contracts including those based on the AIA standard 
forms and custom contract documents.  

 Negotiate construction contract for hotel complex in Delray Beach, Florida. Contract addressing use of Contractor Controlled 
Insurance Programs and Owner Controlled Insurance Programs that have recently become popular for Florida construction 
projects. Value of the project exceeded $100 million. 

 Negotiate construction contract for $15 million + luxury beachfront home in Palm Beach, Florida.  
 Negotiate multiple contracts for $1.5 million + luxury beachfront homes in Palm Beach, Florida 
 Negotiate several concrete restoration and window replacement contracts for client with condominium associations with values 

between $300,000 and $2,500,000.  
 Draft claim denial letters, settlement agreements, and other documentation associated with changes to construction projects. 
 Draft blog posts for developing blockchain and fin-tech practice group and regular contributor to construction blog. 
 Defend client against bar complaint seeking permanent disbarment for social media activity during personal litigation over 

three-day bench trial.  
 Defend client against defamation claim associated with tweets posted during divorce. Claims centered on photographs and 

statements posted online    
 Member of firm Pro Bono Committee, 2018 – 2019, 2019 – 2020, 2020 – 2021, and 2021 – 2022 fiscal years 
 Member of firm Professional Development Committee, 2022 – 2023 fiscal year  
 Supervise and train junior associates  

 
Cole, Scott, & Kissane P.A., West Palm Beach, FL      September 2013 – November 2017 
Associate Attorney,  

 Devoted practice to construction law, including representation of developers, contractors, and subcontractors in construction 
defect, contract, and lien claims. 

 Represented design professionals in complex construction defect claims. 
 Represented general contractors/developers as Third-Party Plaintiff in complex construction defect actions. 
 Argued complex motions in multi-party construction defect claims. 
 Represented defendants in personal injury claims. 
 Deposed plaintiffs, defendants, and consultants in complex, multi-party construction cases  
 Defended clients against FDUTPA, fraud, and negligent misrepresentation claims 
 Drafted and argued dispositive motions. 
 Analyzed coverage issues associated with third-party and multi-party defect claims. 
 Defend country club and homeowners’ association in lawsuit regarding devise of membership certificate. Obtained judgment 

in client’s favor following bench trial. 

Page 139



 

 

 Published article in The Lawyer Issue regarding effect of exculpatory provisions in contracts on the construction industry. 
 Contributed annually to construction blog. 
 Supervised and trained junior associate.  

EDUCATION  
University of Miami School of Law, Coral Gables, FL, Juris Doctor, cum laude,         May 2013 
Law Journal: University of Miami International & Comparative Law Review, Articles Editor   2012 – 2013 
  
Activities: Member of Phi Delta Phi Legal Honors Fraternity, Completion of University of Miami Pro Bono Challenge 
 
The George Washington University, Washington, DC, Bachelor of Arts: International Affairs, cum laude, May 2010, Minor in 
Economics 
Honors: Elliott School for International Affairs Special Honors; Presidential Academic Scholarship (4 years), 

Dean’s List (2 semesters) 
Activities: Study Abroad, Universidad Autonoma Madrid, Madrid, Spain, 2009; Mentor, Guides to Personal Success 

mentor program; Treasurer, Pi Kappa Alpha Fraternity (managed and allocated over $130,000 during the 
2008 calendar year). 

 
PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS AND AFFILIATIONS 

 Board Certified in Construction Law by the Florida Bar                                                                                   August 2020 
 Florida Bar / Southern District of Florida / Middle District of Florida  
 Palm Beach County Bar Association 

o Member of Membership Committee and Judicial Relations Committee    2015 – 2016  
o Member of Construction Law Committee and Professionalism Committee   2017 – 2021 
o Presented Continuing Legal Education course on Florida Lien Law       September  2018 
o Presented Continuing Legal Education course on condominium  

association and homeowner association construction claims         September  2019 
 Member of Palm Beach County planning committee for Construction Association of South Florida  2019 – 2020  
 Perrin National Construction Defect Conference 

o Panelist on Construction Issues in a Post-Surfside World     November 2021 
 Co-Chair, Board of Directors George Washington University South Florida Alumni Association   2018 – 2022 
 Member – Gold Coast Builders Association        2022 – 2023 

 

Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



” “ ” 

Page 201



“

”

Page 202



Page 203



Page 204



Page 205



Page 206



Page 207



Page 208



Page 209



Page 210



Page 211



Page 212



Page 213



Page 214



Page 215



Page 216



Page 217



Page 218



Page 219



Page 220



Page 221



Page 222



Page 223



Page 224



Page 225



” 

“ ” 

Page 226



Page 227



Page 228



Page 229



Page 230



Page 231



Page 232



Page 233



ACTIVE:35010070.2 
 

 

 

Prepared by and return to: 
 
Tyrone T. Bongard, Esq. 
Gunster, Yoakley & Stewart, P.A. 
777 South Flagler Drive, Suite 500 East 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 
 
 

___________________________________[Space Above This Line for Recording Data]______________________________________ 

 
DRAINAGE EASEMENT 

                                                                                                          
 THIS DRAINAGE EASEMENT (“Easement”) is made this 30th day of September, 2024, 
by AVENIR DEVELOPMENT, LLC, a Florida limited liability company, with an address of 777 
S. Flagler Drive, Suite 500 East, West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 (the “Grantor”), to AVENIR 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of special purpose government 
established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, with an address of Special District Services, 
Inc., 2501 Burns Road, Suite A, Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 (the “Grantee”). 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 

Grantor, for and in consideration of the sum of one dollar ($1.00) and other valuable 
consideration, receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged, hereby grants unto the Grantee, its 
successors and assigns, a permanent, non-exclusive easement on, over, under, and across that certain 
real property located in Palm Beach County, Florida, which is owned by Grantor and is more 
particularly described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and made a part hereof (the “Easement 
Area”) for the purpose of installing, maintaining, and operating underground stormwater drainage 
facilities.  
 

This Easement is expressly subject to Grantor’s reserved right to permit any other person, 
firm or corporation to lay cable, conduit, water and sewer lines, and other facilities within the 
Easement Area, and to make any other use of the Easement Area which is not inconsistent with this 
Easement. All drainage facilities within the Easement Area shall be underground and shall not, to the 
extent applicable, interfere with the use of the Easement Area. 
 
 By acceptance of this Easement, Grantee hereby agrees, to the extent allowed by law, to 
indemnify and hold Grantor and its successors and assigns harmless from and against any and all 
claims, liability, liens, costs, losses, damages, expenses and demands, including reasonable 
attorneys’ fees and costs at trial and all appellate levels, arising from, growing out of, or in 
connection with Grantee’s use of the Easement Area.   
 

All rights, benefits and burdens created by this Easement shall run with title to the Easement 
Area and shall be binding upon Grantor and its successors and assigns.   

[Signature page follows] 

Page 234



ACTIVE:35010070.2 
 

 

-2- 
 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has hereto set its hand and seal the day and year first 
above written. 
 
WITNESSES:      GRANTOR: 
 
Signed, sealed and delivered in the presence of: AVENIR DEVELOPMENT, LLC, a Florida 

limited liability company 
 
 
__________________________________  By:_______________________________ 
Witness #1 Signature      Name:  Rosa Eckstein Schechter 
             Title:    Vice President 
__________________________________    
Witness #1 Printed Name     
        
__________________________________  
 
__________________________________  
Witness #1 Address  
 
 
__________________________________     
Witness #2 Signature  
 
__________________________________ 
Witness #2 Printed Name  
 
__________________________________  
 
__________________________________  
Witness #2 Address  
 
STATE OF FLORIDA  ) 
COUNTY OF MIAMI-DADE  ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of  physical presence or □ 
online notarization this  day of September, 2024, by Rosa Eckstein Schechter, as Vice 
President of AVENIR DEVELOPMENT, LLC, a Florida limited liability company, of who  is 
personally known to me or who □ has produced    as identification.  

 
             
       Notary Signature 
 
             
       Print Name 
       Notary Public – State of Florida 
       My Commission Expires:__________ 

Page 235



ACTIVE:35010070.2 
 

 

-3- 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT “A”  
 

Easement Area 
 

[See attached] 

Page 236



ACTIVE:24288545.1 
 
 

FPL 0.053 ac 

This instrument prepared by: 
 
Tyrone T. Bongard, Esq. 
Gunster, Yoakley & Stewart, P.A. 
777 South Flagler Drive, Suite 500 East 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________[Space Above This Line for Recording Data]________________________________________ 
 

PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT 
                                                                                                          
 THIS PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT (“Easement”) is made this _____ day of 
_____________, 2024, by AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit 
of special purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, with an address 
of Special District Services, Inc., 2501 Burns Road, Suite A, Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 (the 
“Grantor”). 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 

Grantor, for and in consideration of the sum of one dollar ($1.00) and other valuable 
consideration, receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged, hereby grants a permanent, non-exclusive 
easement on, over, under, and across that certain real property located in Palm Beach County, 
Florida, which is owned by Grantor and is more particularly described in Exhibit “A” attached 
hereto and made a part hereof (the “Easement Area”), in favor of all applicable governmental 
authorities and all public utilities, and their successors and assigns (collectively “Grantee”) to 
install, operate, maintain, repair, replace and remove their respective utility facilities.   

 
This Easement is expressly subject to Grantor’s reserved right to permit any other person, 

firm or corporation to lay cable, conduit, water and sewer lines, and other facilities within the 
Easement Area, and to make any other use of the Easement Area which is not inconsistent with this 
Easement. All utility facilities installed by Grantee within the Easement Area shall not, to the extent 
applicable, interfere with Grantor’s use of the Easement Area. 
 
 Any party that uses the Easement Area for the purpose stated herein, to the extent allowed by 
law, shall indemnify and hold Grantor and its successors and assigns harmless from and against any 
and all claims, liability, liens, costs, losses, damages, expenses and demands, including reasonable 
attorneys’ fees and costs at trial and all appellate levels, arising from, growing out of, or in 
connection with such use of the Easement Area.   
 

All rights, benefits and burdens created by this Easement shall run with title to the Easement 
Area and shall be binding upon Grantor and its successors and assigns.   

 
[Signature page follows] 

Page 237



ACTIVE:24288545.1 
 

-2- 
 

[Signature Page to Public Utility Easement] 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has hereto set its hand and seal the day and year 
first above written. 
 
Witnesses:                  GRANTOR: 
 

AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
       DISTRICT, a local unit of special purpose  
       government established pursuant to Chapter  
       190, Florida Statutes 
       
Print Name:      
Address:      
       
       By: _______________________________ 
        Virginia Cepero, Chairperson 
        Board of Supervisors 
       
Print Name:      
Address:      
       
 

STATE OF FLORIDA ) 
 ) SS: 
COUNTY OF MIAMI-DADE ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of  physical presence or 
 online notarization, this _____ day of ___________, 2024, by Virginia Cepero, as Chairperson of 

the Board of Supervisors of Avenir Community Development District, a local unit of special purpose 
government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, on behalf of the District, who  
is personally known to me or who  has produced ______________ as identification. 

 
 
 
             

      Notary Public – State of Florida 
 
 
 
 

      Notary Stamp/Seal:     

      

Page 238



ACTIVE:24288545.1 
 

-3- 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Easement Area 
 

See Attached. 

Page 239



Page 240



Page 241



Page 242



Page 243



Page 244



Page 245



Page 246



Page 247



Page 248



Page 249



 
 

Palm Beach Gardens, Palm Beach County, FL 
New Crossing at Coconut Blvd  

977004C; Florida Zone  
Auburndale Subdivision; SX 953.61  

CSXT OP NO. FL2870  
 

 
Page 1 of 13 

GRADE CROSSING MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 
 
 

THIS GRADE CROSSING MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”), 

effective as of __________________________, 202__ (the “Effective Date”), is between 

CSX TRANSPORTATION, INC., a Virginia corporation with its principal place of business 

located at 500 Water St., Jacksonville, FL 32202, hereinafter called “CSXT,” and AVENIR 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of special purpose government 

established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, and a political subdivision of the State 

of  Florida, hereinafter called “AGENCY”. 

WITNESSETH: 
 

WHEREAS, by that certain Construction Agreement entered into between the 

AGENCY and CSXT, dated ____________________, 2024, hereinafter referred to as the 

“Construction Agreement”, AGENCY will construct or cause to be constructed the Project 

(as defined in the Construction Agreement) which includes an at-grade public road known as 

Coconut Boulevard crossing across and over the tracks, right-of-way and property of CSXT, 

at CSXT’s Milepost SX 953.61, DOT No.  977004C, hereinafter referred to as the 

“CROSSING” and warning devices at the CROSSING, including the fixed signs, flashing 

lights, bells and gates (collectively the “WARNING DEVICES”); and 

WHEREAS, upon completion of the Project, the AGENCY will use, maintain, repair, 

renew, replace and ultimately remove the CROSSING and WARNING DEVICES under the 

terms and conditions set forth herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein and 

other good and valuable consideration, the parties agree as follows: 

1)   The CROSSING includes but is not limited to, the track structure, grade 

Page 250



 
 

Palm Beach Gardens, Palm Beach County, FL 
New Crossing at Coconut Blvd  

977004C; Florida Zone  
Auburndale Subdivision; SX 953.61  

CSXT OP NO. FL2870  
 

 
Page 2 of 13 

crossing surface, any railroad crossing warning signs, and automatic grade crossing 

warning devices which are, or might be, located within or adjacent to the above-described 

location. Upon completion of the Project, the CROSSING shall be thereafter maintained as 

provided herein at the sole cost and expense of the AGENCY. 

a) AGENCY shall maintain and repair, at its sole cost and expense, all parts 

comprising the permanent aspects of the Project, as shown by the Plans, consisting 

of roadway pavement up to the outer ends of the railroad cross ties, sidewalks, 

guardrails, and curbs, in good and safe condition to CSXT’s satisfaction.  In the 

event AGENCY fails to do so after reasonable notice from CSXT (unless an 

emergency condition exists or is imminent in the opinion of CSXT that requires 

immediate action), CSXT may perform such maintenance and repair, at 

AGENCY’s sole cost and expense.  

b) CSXT shall maintain and repair the crossing surface between the ends of its cross 

ties and its signal facilities at the CROSSING, at AGENCY’s sole cost and expense.   

c) AGENCY shall not undertake any alteration, modification or expansion of the 

CROSSING, without the prior written approval of CSXT, which may be withheld 

for any reason, and the execution of such agreements as CSXT may require.  CSXT 

may undertake alterations and/or maintenance of its property, track or facilities and 

shall be reimbursed by AGENCY for the expenses incurred by CSXT with respect 

to the removal and restoration of the crossing in connections with such alteration 

and/or maintenance. 

2)   Notwithstanding any rights granted to the AGENCY herein, CSXT reserves 

the right to perform all work required on CSXT’s property and right-of-way at the 

Page 251



 
 

Palm Beach Gardens, Palm Beach County, FL 
New Crossing at Coconut Blvd  

977004C; Florida Zone  
Auburndale Subdivision; SX 953.61  

CSXT OP NO. FL2870  
 

 
Page 3 of 13 

CROSSING including construction, drainage, lighting and vegetation management, in 

which event AGENCY shall pay CSXT the entire cost and expense of labor, materials and 

equipment furnished by CSXT in performing such work.  CSXT agrees to furnish 

AGENCY with at least seven (7) days written notice that any such work is be performed 

by CSXT, except in those instances when CSXT reasonably determines that notice is not 

practicable and immediate action by CSXT is required. 

3) The CROSSING shall be used for public at-grade road crossing purposes only 

and no utility (including telecommunications facilities, pipes, wires, cables) or other line or 

structure, materials, vegetation or other improvements shall be placed in, on or over the 

CROSSING without the previous consent in writing of CSXT and the execution of such 

additional agreements as CSXT deems necessary.  

4) This Agreement shall terminate immediately on the date of termination of the 

easements rights granted and conveyed by CSXT to the AGENCY pursuant to that certain 

Deed of Easement granted by CSXT to Agency and recorded in the records of Palm Beach 

County, Florida.  

5)  RESERVED.   

6) Unless otherwise specified in this Agreement or the Project Agreement, the cost 

of and liability for installation, construction, maintenance, replacement and removal of all 

facilities at the CROSSING, including but not limited to the track structure, any railroad 

crossing warning signs, crossing surfaces and automatic crossing warning devices, whether 

performed by the AGENCY or CSXT, shall be the sole responsibility of the AGENCY. 

7) The WARNING DEVICES at the CROSSING are (or will be, after 

construction by CSXT pursuant to the Construction Agreement) a Type IV Class III 

installation as defined in the Florida Department of Transportation Schedule of Signal 

Page 252



 
 

Palm Beach Gardens, Palm Beach County, FL 
New Crossing at Coconut Blvd  

977004C; Florida Zone  
Auburndale Subdivision; SX 953.61  

CSXT OP NO. FL2870  
 

 
Page 4 of 13 

Installations by Type and Class attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

  The AGENCY shall pay unto CSXT annually the annual cost of maintenance of 

said WARNING DEVICES as provided in the Florida Department of Transportation’s 

SCHEDULE OF ANNUAL COST OF AUTOMATIC HIGHWAY GRADE CROSSING 

TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES, as may in the future be revised or amended, a copy of which 

is attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference.  The annual cost of 

maintenance is due on the anniversary date of the Effective Date of this Agreement. 

  The WARNING DEVICES shall remain at the CROSSING SITE until the Florida 

Department of Transportation (“FDOT”) decides that they are no longer needed or should be 

replaced, or until other legal requirements are imposed which shall eliminate or substantially 

change their operations. 

8) Pursuant to the Construction Agreement, CSXT will install a eighty-one foot 

(81’) crossing surface at the CROSSING (the “SURFACE”).  On each anniversary of the 

Effective Date until termination of this Agreement, AGENCY shall pay an annual fee to 

CSXT in the amount of  FIVE THOUSAND FIFTY-SIX AND 00/100 DOLLARS 

($5,056.00), towards the ongoing maintenance of the SURFACE (the “Annual Surface Fee”). 

The Annual Surface Fee shall be increased each year in accordance with Section 9. 

9)  The Annual Warning Device Fee and Annual Surface Fee (“Annual Fees”) 

shall be adjusted on an annual basis by three percent (3%) per annum. 

10) When CSXT determines that the replacement of the SURFACE is more 

economical than its continued maintenance, CSXT shall have the exclusive option to 

replace the SURFACE with its standard timber and asphalt surface. In the event AGENCY 

requests that CSXT install a different type of grade crossing surface and CSXT agrees to 

Page 253



 
 

Palm Beach Gardens, Palm Beach County, FL 
New Crossing at Coconut Blvd  

977004C; Florida Zone  
Auburndale Subdivision; SX 953.61  

CSXT OP NO. FL2870  
 

 
Page 5 of 13 

do so, the difference in cost between the then current estimated replacement cost of CSXT’s 

standard timber and asphalt surface and the AGENCY’s requested surface type shall be the 

sole responsibility of the AGENCY. 

11) The AGENCY shall, at its sole expense, maintain and replace the remainder of 

the road on either side of the SURFACE within CSXT’s right-of-way at the CROSSING, 

plus any paving which may be located between the ends of the ties. AGENCY shall perform 

such work in accordance with the time and operational requirements of CSXT. The 

AGENCY will give prior notice to CSXT of all work to be performed by it at or near the 

CROSSING and no such work shall be performed by AGENCY without the prior approval 

of CSXT and the execution of such additional agreements as CSXT deems necessary. All 

work performed by the AGENCY shall be conducted at such times and in such manner as 

to not interfere or impede the operations of CSXT. CSXT shall provide a construction 

watchman or other protective services at the CROSSING while work is being performed 

by the AGENCY under the provisions of this Agreement, at the sole expense of the 

AGENCY (at the time of this Agreement, the rate for this service is approxiamtely 

$1,680.00 per day). 

12) The AGENCY agrees, acknowledges and understands that CSXT reserves the 

right to make any changes at any future time in its existing tracks or other facilities, 

including the installation, maintenance and operation of any additional track or tracks or 

other facilities on its right-of-way at the CROSSING.  CSXT shall be reimbursed by 

AGENCY for the expenses incurred by CSXT with respect to the removal and restoration of 

the crossing in connections with such changes or alterations. The AGENCY agrees to 

promptly relocate any AGENCY facilities to accommodate any CSXT changes within 

thirty (30) days of a request by CSXT to do so, at AGENCY’s sole cost and expense.  

Page 254



 
 

Palm Beach Gardens, Palm Beach County, FL 
New Crossing at Coconut Blvd  

977004C; Florida Zone  
Auburndale Subdivision; SX 953.61  

CSXT OP NO. FL2870  
 

 
Page 6 of 13 

AGENCY may request a reasonable extension beyond this thirty (30) day period, which 

CSXT will make every effort to grant provided that the removal or relocation of AGENCY 

facilities is not necessary, in CSXT’s discretion, for CSXT to maintain its common carrier 

obligations to provide rail service safely and efficiently. 

13) The AGENCY agrees that it will install, maintain and replace all necessary 

drainage facilities to prevent the accumulation of surface water due to the existence of the 

CROSSING. Such facilities must first be approved by the CSXT and any governing bodies 

having jurisdiction thereof and operation of the facilities shall also be subject at all time to 

their approval. An additional license agreement may be required by the CSXT, depending 

upon the location of such drainage facilities and type, size, depth and other specifications 

of the proposed facilities. 

14) Lighting facilities adequate to comply with the requirements of the laws of the 

State of Florida covering illumination of the road crossing shall be installed, maintained 

and replaced at or near this CROSSING by and at the sole cost of AGENCY. 

15) Facilities at or near the CROSSING that are not specifically covered by this 

Agreement, including but not limited to pedestrian walkways, may not be constructed by 

AGENCY at or near the CROSSING without the prior written approval of CSXT, which 

approval is in CSXT’s sole discretion. The cost and liability for such facilities, including 

but not limited to claims for personal injury or death or damage to property of any person 

or persons whomsoever, shall be the sole responsibility of AGENCY. 

16) If at any time CSXT, at AGENCY’s request, performs work required to be 

performed by AGENCY hereunder, the cost and liability for such work arising out of claims 

for personal injury or death or damage to property of any person of persons whomsoever, 

Page 255



 
 

Palm Beach Gardens, Palm Beach County, FL 
New Crossing at Coconut Blvd  

977004C; Florida Zone  
Auburndale Subdivision; SX 953.61  

CSXT OP NO. FL2870  
 

 
Page 7 of 13 

to the extent caused by the intentional or negligent acts or omissions of the AGENCY, shall 

be the sole responsibility of AGENCY. 

17) The AGENCY further covenants to pay CSXT, within thirty (30) days after 

presentation of the same, all invoices submitted by CSXT under this Agreement.  Failure 

to promptly pay to CSXT amounts billed as due under this Agreement shall constitute 

default by the AGENCY.  In the event the AGENCY fails to pay CSXT any sums due to 

CSXT under this Agreement, AGENCY shall pay CSXT an interest rate at the lesser of 

1.0% per each month of delinquency or the maximum rate of interest permitted by 

applicable law on the delinquent amount until paid in full.  In the event AGENCY fails to 

comply with any of the  other terms and conditions of this Agreement, then, at the option 

of CSXT, CSXT may elect, by delivery of notice to AGENCY, not to perform CSXT’s 

obligations under this Agreement, up to and including closing the crossing, until the 

AGENCY cures any such default to CSXT’s satisfaction.   

18) At the termination of this Agreement as provided above, all rights of the 

AGENCY shall terminate and the AGENCY shall remove, under CSXT’s supervision and 

direction, at AGENCY’s entire cost and expense, said road and all non-CSXT-owned 

improvements placed upon the CSXT’s right-of-way and restore the ground to its original 

condition. 

19) To the fullest extent permitted by state law, the AGENCY shall indemnify, 

defend and hold harmless CSXT for assessments or other charges of any kind whatsoever 

against the CSXT at any time for any portion of public improvements installed on or within 

two hundred (200) feet of the CROSSING arising out of the existence of the CROSSING. 

20) The AGENCY shall not in any way, or at any time, interfere with or obstruct 

Page 256



 
 

Palm Beach Gardens, Palm Beach County, FL 
New Crossing at Coconut Blvd  

977004C; Florida Zone  
Auburndale Subdivision; SX 953.61  

CSXT OP NO. FL2870  
 

 
Page 8 of 13 

CSXT’s right-of-way, the movement of CSXT’s trains and other railroad operations, or 

interfere with the CSXT’s use thereof, or the use thereof by CSXT’s assigns, invitees, 

lessees or licensees. 

21) To the fullest extent permitted by state law, the AGENCY shall, and shall 

require its contractor to,  indemnify, defend and hold harmless CSXT, its affiliates, officers, 

directors and employees from any and all suits, claims, liability, losses, damages, expenses 

and costs (including reasonable attorney’s fees) incurred by or asserted against CSXT 

whether for personal injury or death or damage to property of any person or persons 

whomsoever, to the extent relating to, resulting from or arising out of any future 

maintenance or replacement of the CROSSING by AGENCY, the performance of work by 

AGENCY hereunder, the negligent acts or omissions of AGENCY, or the use of the 

CROSSING or AGENCY facilities, including but not limited to pedestrian walkways, at 

or near the CROSSING. The AGENCY shall have no indemnification obligation for the 

negligent acts or omissions or the intentional, wrongful acts of CSXT.  Nothing in this 

Agreement shall be construed as a waiver of the protections, immunities, and limitations of 

liability afforded the AGENCY pursuant to the doctrine of sovereign immunity or Section 

768.28, Florida Statutes. 

22) At least thirty (30) days prior to AGENCY’s performance of any work in 

connection with the CROSSING, AGENCY’s performance of any work in connection with 

the CROSSING, AGENCY or its contractor shall notify CSXT or its authorized 

representative. CSXT shall review AGENCY’s request for approval and/or authorization 

to proceed. Such approval and/or authorization to proceed shall include (if applicable) the 

execution of such additional agreement(s) as CSXT deems necessary and CSXT’s 

requirement to furnish protective services including but not limited to flagmen, 

Page 257



 
 

Palm Beach Gardens, Palm Beach County, FL 
New Crossing at Coconut Blvd  

977004C; Florida Zone  
Auburndale Subdivision; SX 953.61  

CSXT OP NO. FL2870  
 

 
Page 9 of 13 

construction watchmen, field construction inspectors,  etc. (“Protective Services”) for the 

protection of CSXT’s employees, property and train operations with respect to AGENCY’s 

work activity.  Any such Protective Services shall be furnished at AGENCY’s sole cost and 

expense (at the time of this Agreement, the rate for this service is approxiamtely $1,680.00 

per day). AGENCY shall abide by all instructions of CSXT’s Regional Engineer, or his or 

her authorized representative, in the performance of any work at the CROSSING. 

 In addition to, but not in limitation of any of the foregoing provisions, if at any 

time CSXT should deem it necessary to place Protective Services for the protection of any 

person or property, during the construction, maintenance, repair, alteration, renewal, or 

removal at the CROSSING, CSXT shall have the right to place such Protective Services, 

or other persons, at the sole cost and expense of the AGENCY. The furnishing or failure to 

furnish Protective Services, or other persons, by the CSXT under this paragraph, however, 

shall not release AGENCY from any and all other liabilities assumed by AGENCY under 

the terms of this Agreement, including its obligations under Paragraph 20 hereof. 

23) Installation, maintenance and replacement of any and all railroad advance 

warning signs and pavement markings on any road approaching the CROSSING shall be 

the sole responsibility and cost of the AGENCY, and at its sole expense. 

24) The AGENCY hereby acknowledges that it has been notified that its personnel 

will or may be working in an area containing active fiber-optic transmission cable as well 

as other cables and other facilities. 

25) If any provision or provisions of this Agreement shall be held to be invalid, 

illegal or unenforceable, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining 

provisions shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby. 

Page 258



 
 

Palm Beach Gardens, Palm Beach County, FL 
New Crossing at Coconut Blvd  

977004C; Florida Zone  
Auburndale Subdivision; SX 953.61  

CSXT OP NO. FL2870  
 

 
Page 10 of 13 

26) This Agreement will be governed by the laws of the State of Florida. It 

constitutes the complete and exclusive statement of the Agreement between the parties 

which supersedes all proposals, oral or written, and all other communications between the 

parties related to the subject matter of this Agreement. Any future change or modification 

of this Agreement must be in writing and signed by both parties. 

27) Upon completion of the Project and except as otherwise provided in this 

Agreement, if any provision contained in this Agreement is in conflict with, or inconsistent 

with, any provision in any of the Project Agreement, the provision contained in this 

Agreement shall govern and control.  

 
{REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK} 

  

Page 259



 
 

Palm Beach Gardens, Palm Beach County, FL 
New Crossing at Coconut Blvd  

977004C; Florida Zone  
Auburndale Subdivision; SX 953.61  

CSXT OP NO. FL2870  
 

 
Page 11 of 13 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CSXT and the AGENCY have caused this instrument 

to be executed in their corporate names in duplicate the day first hereinafter written by their 

undersigned officials thereunto lawfully authorized. 

 
 
 

AVENIR COMMUNITY CSX TRANSPORTATION, INC. 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT  
 

By: ___________________________           By: ____________________________ 
      Virginia Cepero, Chairman  
    Board of Supervisors Name: ___________________________ 
 
 Title: ____________________________  

 
Date: _________________, 2024 

ATTEST: 

 

By: ___________________________     

       Jason Pierman, Secretary 
  

 
Date: _________________, 2024 

  

Page 260



 
 

Palm Beach Gardens, Palm Beach County, FL 
New Crossing at Coconut Blvd  

977004C; Florida Zone  
Auburndale Subdivision; SX 953.61  

CSXT OP NO. FL2870  
 

 
Page 12 of 13 

EXHIBIT “A” 

SCHEDULE OF ANNUAL COST OF AUTOMATIC 
HIGHWAY GRADE CROSSING TRAFFIC CONTROL 

DEVICES 
 
 
 

Annual Maintenance Cost Exclusive of Installation 
  
CLASS DESCRIPTION COST* 
 
    I 2-Quadrant Flashing Lights with One Track $2,386.00 
 
    II 2-Quadrant Flashing Lights with Multiple Tracks $3,158.00 
 
    III 2-Quadrant Flashing Lights and Gates with One Track $3,600.00 
   
   IV 2-Quadrant Flashing Lights and Gates with Multiple Tracks $4,520.00 
 
   V 3 or 4-Quadrant Flashing Lights and Gates with One Track $7,116.00 
 
   VI 3 or 4-Quadrant Flashing Lights and Gates with Multiple Tracks $8,930.00 
 

 
 AUTHORITY: FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE RULE 14-57.011 
    Public Railroad-Highway Grade Crossing Costs 
 
 EFFECTIVE DATE:   July 22. 1982 
 
 GENERAL AUTHORITY:   334.044, F.S. 
 
 SPECIFIC LAW IMPLEMENTED: 335.141, F.S 
 
 
 *This schedule will become effective July 1, 2016 and will be reviewed every 5 years and 
revised as appropriated based on the Consumer Price Index for all Urban consumers published by 
the U.S. Department of Labor.  
 
 

 
 
 

Page 261



 
 

Palm Beach Gardens, Palm Beach County, FL 
New Crossing at Coconut Blvd  

977004C; Florida Zone  
Auburndale Subdivision; SX 953.61  

CSXT OP NO. FL2870  
 

 
Page 13 of 13 

EXHIBIT “B” 

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 

Listed Below are signal installations by type and class: 
 

FLASHING SIGNALS - ONE TRACK 
Type = 1, Class = 1 

 
FLASHING SIGNALS - MULTIPLE TRACKS 
Type = 1, Class = 2 

 
FLASHING SIGNALS AND CANTILEVER - ONE TRACK 
Type = 2, Class = 1 

 
FLASHING SIGNALS AND CANTILEVERS - MULTIPLE TRACKS 
Type = 2, Class = 2 

 
FLASHING SIGNALS AND GATE - ONE TRACK 
Type = 3, Class = 3 

 
FLASHING SIGNALS AND GATE - MULTIPLE TRACKS 
Type = 3, Class = 4 

 
FLASHING SIGNALS AND GATE WITH CANTILEVER - ONE TRACK 
Type = 4, Class = 3 

 
FLASHING SIGNALS AND GATE WITH CANTILEVER - MULTIPLE TRACKS 
Type = 4, Class = 4 

 
 

 
TYPE OF TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES 

 
I Flashing signals 
II Flashing signals with cantilevers  
III  Flashing signals with Gate 
IV Flashing signals with cantilevers & gate 

 
 

CLASS OF TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES 
 

I Flashing signals - one track 
II Flashing signals - multiple track 
III Flashing signals & gates - one track 

IV Flashing signals & gates - multiple track 

FDOT-Type-Clas 

Page 262



Page 263



Page 264



Page 265



Page 266



AVENIR BYPASS ROAD – UNDERGROUND DRY UTILITIES 
  

Page 267



Page 268



 

 

Page 269



 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 270



 

 

 

Page 271



 

 

 

 

 

Page 272



 

 

 

Page 273



 

 

 

Page 274



 

 

Page 275



 

 

 

Page 276



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 277



 

 

BBARBA@SDSINC.ORG

 

Page 278



 

Page 279



Page 280



 

 

 
 
 

Page 281



Page 282



AS
-B

UI
LT

 C
RE

W
 P

RI
N

T

Re
qu

es
t C

AV
T 

Tr
an

sf
er

?

Te
le

. A
tt

ac
hm

en
t P

er

Te
le

ph
on

e 
Co

. J
ob

 N
o.

PE
RM

IT

RE
Q

'D

Ea
se

m
en

t?
   

Ye
s  

   
   

No

Tr
ee

 W
or

k?
   

Ye
s  

   
   

No

Su
rv

ey
/S

ta
ke

? 
  Y

es
   

   
   

No

De
sig

ne
r/

St
ak

e?
Ye

s  
   

   
 N

o

W
or

k 
w

ith
 S

M
O

?Y
es

   
   

  N
o

CT
/S

pe
cia

l M
tr

? 
 Y

es
   

   
  N

o

AL
L 

RE
Q

UI
RE

D 
GR

O
UN

D 
RO

DS
 H

AV
E 

BE
EN

 D
RI

VE
N

 &
 V

ER
IF

IE
D 

TO
BE

 W
IT

HI
N

 F
PL

 S
TA

N
DA

RD
S,

 V
AL

UE
S 

AR
E 

SH
O

W
N

 A
T 

AL
L L

O
CA

TI
O

N
S.

FO
RE

M
AN

'S
 S

IG
N

AT
UR

E
DA

TE
FO

RE
M

AN
'S

 S
IG

N
AT

UR
E

DA
TE

JO
B 

CE
RT

IF
IE

D 
CO

M
PL

ET
ED

 A
S 

SH
O

W
N

 O
N

 T
HI

S 
AS

-B
UI

LT
PR

IN
T.

 M
AT

ER
IA

L 
CH

AN
GE

S 
SH

O
W

N
 O

N
 R

O
S

SU
PE

RV
IS

O
R'

S 
SI

GN
AT

UR
E

DA
TE

AS
-B

UI
LT

 C
O

PY

IN
IT

IA
LS

CE
RT

. D
AT

E

IN
AC

CE
SS

IB
LE

13
 k

V
FU

TU
RE

 2
3 

kV
23

 k
V

FP
L

De
sig

ne
d 

by
:

Dr
aw

n 
by

:
Da

te
:

Dw
g 

No
.

Ch
ec

k 
by

:

Ru
ra

l L
oc

at
io

n 
Se

c.
TW

P.

SC
AL

E:
St

. L
t M

AP
 N

o.

S,
R.

E.
Pr

i M
ap

 N
o.

W
R

M
/A

Re
qu

es
te

d 
Te

l. 
Co

. S
et

 P
ol

es
 ?

Re
qu

es
te

d 
Te

l. 
Co

. T
ra

ns
fe

r ?

YE
S

YE
S

YE
S

YE
S

N
O

NO NO NO

Ci
ty

W
M

D
Co

un
ty

 R
d.

RR
 X

in
g

Co
un

ty
 A

ir
DR

. D
ist

.
St

at
e 

Ro
ad

Tr
an

sm
.

FA
A

PO
LE

 LI
N

E 
FE

ET

PO
LE

 LI
N

E 
FT

. O
N 

TR
AN

SM
. P

O
LE

S

TL
M

/L
DS

 M
O

DE
L N

o.

TR
EN

CH
 F

T.

DU
CT

 B
AN

K 
FT

.

M
ap

 P
os

tin
g?

Po
st

ed
 b

y:

SA
LT

 S
PR

AY

W
ES

T 
PA

LM
 B

EA
CH

, F
L 3

34
12

IN
ST

AL
L (

60
) N

EW
 S

L P
OL

ES
 &

 (6
0)

 N
EW

 F
IX

TU
RE

S 
FO

R 
AV

EN
IR

 
CO

M
M

UN
IT

Y 
DE

VE
LO

PM
EN

T 
DI

ST
RI

CT
 –

BY
PA

SS
 R

D
NO

RT
HL

AK
E 

BL
VD

 C
OC

O
NU

T 
BL

VD
NI

CH
OL

AS
 A

 H
ER

NA
ND

EZ
04

/3
0/

24
xx

x

##
##

##
N.

T.
S

M
AP

#
##

##
##

##
##

#
##

#

0'
0'

-

0'
0'

1
OF

 1
1

PA
GE

-2

PA
GE

-3
PA

GE
-4

PA
GE

-5

PA
GE

-6
PA

GE
-7

PA
GE

-8
PA

GE
-9

PA
GE

-
10

PA
GE

-
11

Sy
m

bo
l

De
sc

rip
tio

n
W

at
ts

Te
m

p 
co

lo
r

Q
ua

nt
ity

CO
O

PE
R 

M
ES

A 
15

0W
 4

00
0K

 1
4,

91
1

15
0 

W
40

00
K

58

AR
EA

 1
7,

50
0L

 4
00

0K
 B

LA
CK

15
0K

40
00

K
2

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 2

1'
 (1

5'
 6

" M
H)

N
/A

N
/A

57

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 1

4'
 6

" (
10

' M
H)

N
/A

N
/A

1

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 3

3’
 (2

4’
 M

H)
N

/A
N

/A
2

Pr
od

uc
t s

um
m

ar
y

A B C

Le
ge

nd
:

Ne
w

 S
tr

ee
t L

ig
ht

 P
ol

e-
---

---
---

---
Ne

w
 H

an
d-

Ho
le

 --
---

---
---

---
---

---
Ne

w
 U

G 
PV

C 
&

 C
ab

le
 --

---
---

---
--

Ne
w

 S
tr

ee
tli

gh
t -

---
---

---
---

---
---

-
Ne

w
 P

M
TX

 --
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
Ne

w
 1

0f
t E

as
em

en
t -

---
---

---
---

-- 
 

Le
ge

nd
:

Ne
w

 S
tr

ee
t L

ig
ht

 P
ol

e-
---

---
---

---
Ne

w
 H

an
d-

Ho
le

 --
---

---
---

---
---

---
Ne

w
 U

G 
PV

C 
&

 C
ab

le
 --

---
---

---
--

Ne
w

 S
tr

ee
tli

gh
t -

---
---

---
---

---
---

-
Ne

w
 P

M
TX

 --
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
Ne

w
 1

0f
t E

as
em

en
t -

---
---

---
---

-- 
 

Le
ge

nd
:

Ne
w

 S
tr

ee
t L

ig
ht

 P
ol

e-
---

---
---

---
Ne

w
 H

an
d-

Ho
le

 --
---

---
---

---
---

---
Ne

w
 U

G 
PV

C 
&

 C
ab

le
 --

---
---

---
--

Ne
w

 S
tr

ee
tli

gh
t -

---
---

---
---

---
---

-
Ne

w
 P

M
TX

 --
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
Ne

w
 1

0f
t E

as
em

en
t -

---
---

---
---

-- 
 

SA
LE

S 
RE

P:
 D

EI
GO

 F
EB

RE
S

FE
ED

ER
: A

CR
EA

GE
 (0

67
61

)

EA
SE

M
EN

T 
W

IL
L B

E 
RE

Q
UI

RE
D

FE
ED

ER
: A

CR
EA

GE
 (0

67
61

)

EA
SE

M
EN

T 
W

IL
L B

E 
RE

Q
UI

RE
D

Page 283



AS
-B

UI
LT

 C
RE

W
 P

RI
N

T

Re
qu

es
t C

AV
T 

Tr
an

sf
er

?

Te
le

. A
tt

ac
hm

en
t P

er

Te
le

ph
on

e 
Co

. J
ob

 N
o.

PE
RM

IT

RE
Q

'D

Ea
se

m
en

t?
   

Ye
s  

   
   

No

Tr
ee

 W
or

k?
   

Ye
s  

   
   

No

Su
rv

ey
/S

ta
ke

? 
  Y

es
   

   
   

No

De
sig

ne
r/

St
ak

e?
Ye

s  
   

   
 N

o

W
or

k 
w

ith
 S

M
O

?Y
es

   
   

  N
o

CT
/S

pe
cia

l M
tr

? 
 Y

es
   

   
  N

o

AL
L 

RE
Q

UI
RE

D 
GR

O
UN

D 
RO

DS
 H

AV
E 

BE
EN

 D
RI

VE
N

 &
 V

ER
IF

IE
D 

TO
BE

 W
IT

HI
N

 F
PL

 S
TA

N
DA

RD
S,

 V
AL

UE
S 

AR
E 

SH
O

W
N

 A
T 

AL
L L

O
CA

TI
O

N
S.

FO
RE

M
AN

'S
 S

IG
N

AT
UR

E
DA

TE
FO

RE
M

AN
'S

 S
IG

N
AT

UR
E

DA
TE

JO
B 

CE
RT

IF
IE

D 
CO

M
PL

ET
ED

 A
S 

SH
O

W
N

 O
N

 T
HI

S 
AS

-B
UI

LT
PR

IN
T.

 M
AT

ER
IA

L 
CH

AN
GE

S 
SH

O
W

N
 O

N
 R

O
S

SU
PE

RV
IS

O
R'

S 
SI

GN
AT

UR
E

DA
TE

AS
-B

UI
LT

 C
O

PY

IN
IT

IA
LS

CE
RT

. D
AT

E

IN
AC

CE
SS

IB
LE

13
 k

V
FU

TU
RE

 2
3 

kV
23

 k
V

FP
L

De
sig

ne
d 

by
:

Dr
aw

n 
by

:
Da

te
:

Dw
g 

No
.

Ch
ec

k 
by

:

Ru
ra

l L
oc

at
io

n 
Se

c.
TW

P.

SC
AL

E:
St

. L
t M

AP
 N

o.

S,
R.

E.
Pr

i M
ap

 N
o.

W
R

M
/A

Re
qu

es
te

d 
Te

l. 
Co

. S
et

 P
ol

es
 ?

Re
qu

es
te

d 
Te

l. 
Co

. T
ra

ns
fe

r ?

YE
S

YE
S

YE
S

YE
S

N
O

NO NO NO

Ci
ty

W
M

D
Co

un
ty

 R
d.

RR
 X

in
g

Co
un

ty
 A

ir
DR

. D
ist

.
St

at
e 

Ro
ad

Tr
an

sm
.

FA
A

PO
LE

 LI
N

E 
FE

ET

PO
LE

 LI
N

E 
FT

. O
N 

TR
AN

SM
. P

O
LE

S

TL
M

/L
DS

 M
O

DE
L N

o.

TR
EN

CH
 F

T.

DU
CT

 B
AN

K 
FT

.

M
ap

 P
os

tin
g?

Po
st

ed
 b

y:

SA
LT

 S
PR

AY

W
ES

T 
PA

LM
 B

EA
CH

, F
L 3

34
12

IN
ST

AL
L (

60
) N

EW
 S

L P
OL

ES
 &

 (6
0)

 N
EW

 F
IX

TU
RE

S 
FO

R 
AV

EN
IR

 
CO

M
M

UN
IT

Y 
DE

VE
LO

PM
EN

T 
DI

ST
RI

CT
 –

BY
PA

SS
 R

D
NO

RT
HL

AK
E 

BL
VD

 C
OC

O
NU

T 
BL

VD
NI

CH
OL

AS
 A

 H
ER

NA
ND

EZ
04

/3
0/

24
xx

x

##
##

##
N.

T.
S

M
AP

#
##

##
##

##
##

#
##

#

0'
0'

-

0'
0'

2
OF

 1
1

PA
GE

-2

PA
GE

-3
PA

GE
-4

PA
GE

-5

PA
GE

-6
PA

GE
-7

PA
GE

-8
PA

GE
-9

PA
GE

-
10

PA
GE

-
11

Sy
m

bo
l

De
sc

rip
tio

n
W

at
ts

Te
m

p 
co

lo
r

Q
ua

nt
ity

CO
O

PE
R 

M
ES

A 
15

0W
 4

00
0K

 1
4,

91
1

15
0 

W
40

00
K

58

AR
EA

 1
7,

50
0L

 4
00

0K
 B

LA
CK

15
0K

40
00

K
2

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 2

1'
 (1

5'
 6

" M
H)

N
/A

N
/A

57

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 1

4'
 6

" (
10

' M
H)

N
/A

N
/A

1

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 3

3’
 (2

4’
 M

H)
N

/A
N

/A
2

Pr
od

uc
t s

um
m

ar
y

A B C

PA
GE

-2
PA

GE
-2

A

A

1

3

A

2

A

4

A

5

PA
GE

 5

CO
NS

TR
UC

TI
O

N 
NO

TE
S:

 
LO

C 
1 

–
5:

 F
PL

 T
O

 IN
ST

AL
L C

O
O

PE
R 

M
ES

A 
15

0W
 4

00
0K

 1
4,

91
1L

 O
N 

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 2

1'
 (1

5'
 6

" M
H)

.  
FP

L S
L H

H 
TO

 B
E 

IN
ST

AL
LE

D 
AT

 B
AS

E 
O

F 
NE

W
 S

L P
O

LE
 

UN
LE

SS
 W

IT
HI

N 
10

FT
 O

F 
EX

IS
TI

NG
 P

AD
M

O
UN

T 
TR

AN
SF

O
RM

ER
 

-F
PL

 T
O

 R
UN

 1
/0

 T
PX

 A
LT

 LE
G 

TO
 A

LL
 LO

CA
TI

O
NS

 

-E
AS

EM
EN

T 
W

IL
L B

E 
RE

Q
UI

RE
D

-C
US

TO
M

ER
 T

O
 IN

ST
AL

L A
LL

 2
" C

O
N

DU
IT

 A
ND

 S
EC

O
N

DA
RY

 H
AN

DH
O

LE
S

-‘C
HE

CK
 V

O
LT

AG
E 

–
CO

NV
ER

T 
48

0V
 T

O
 1

20
V 

O
R 

24
0V

’ O
N 

48
0V

 C
IR

CU
IT

S,
 C

HA
NG

E 
TH

E 
RE

LA
Y 

PR
IO

R 
TO

 IN
ST

AL
LI

NG
 T

HE
 LI

GH
TS

.
VE

RI
FY

 T
HE

 S
O

UR
CE

 A
ND

 A
M

O
UN

T 
O

F 
LI

GH
TS

 O
N 

TH
AT

 R
EL

AY
. C

O
NT

AC
T 

TH
E 

FP
LP

L T
O

 A
SS

IS
T 

W
IT

H 
TH

IS
 P

RO
CE

SS
.

-C
US

TO
M

ER
 T

O
 C

O
NT

AC
T 

FP
L P

L A
ND

 C
O

O
RD

IN
AT

E 
ST

AK
IN

G 
O

F 
AL

L L
O

CA
TI

O
NS

 P
RI

O
R 

LE
D 

IN
ST

AL
LA

TI
O

NS
. C

US
TO

M
ER

 IS
 R

ES
PO

NS
IB

LE
 F

O
R 

AN
Y 

RE
ST

O
RA

TI
O

N 
RE

Q
UI

RE
D.

  

FP
L L

ED
 R

EP
RE

SE
NT

AT
IV

E:
 D

IE
GO

 F
EB

RE
S

24
" H

H

24
" H

H

24
" H

H

24
" H

H

24
" H

H

100'

160'

130'

SL
 H

H

CO
O

PE
R 

M
ES

A 
15

0W
 

40
00

K 
14

,9
11

L 

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 

21
' (

15
' 6

" M
H)

.

AA

A A

Page 284



AS
-B

UI
LT

 C
RE

W
 P

RI
N

T

Re
qu

es
t C

AV
T 

Tr
an

sf
er

?

Te
le

. A
tt

ac
hm

en
t P

er

Te
le

ph
on

e 
Co

. J
ob

 N
o.

PE
RM

IT

RE
Q

'D

Ea
se

m
en

t?
   

Ye
s  

   
   

No

Tr
ee

 W
or

k?
   

Ye
s  

   
   

No

Su
rv

ey
/S

ta
ke

? 
  Y

es
   

   
   

No

De
sig

ne
r/

St
ak

e?
Ye

s  
   

   
 N

o

W
or

k 
w

ith
 S

M
O

?Y
es

   
   

  N
o

CT
/S

pe
cia

l M
tr

? 
 Y

es
   

   
  N

o

AL
L 

RE
Q

UI
RE

D 
GR

O
UN

D 
RO

DS
 H

AV
E 

BE
EN

 D
RI

VE
N

 &
 V

ER
IF

IE
D 

TO
BE

 W
IT

HI
N

 F
PL

 S
TA

N
DA

RD
S,

 V
AL

UE
S 

AR
E 

SH
O

W
N

 A
T 

AL
L L

O
CA

TI
O

N
S.

FO
RE

M
AN

'S
 S

IG
N

AT
UR

E
DA

TE
FO

RE
M

AN
'S

 S
IG

N
AT

UR
E

DA
TE

JO
B 

CE
RT

IF
IE

D 
CO

M
PL

ET
ED

 A
S 

SH
O

W
N

 O
N

 T
HI

S 
AS

-B
UI

LT
PR

IN
T.

 M
AT

ER
IA

L 
CH

AN
GE

S 
SH

O
W

N
 O

N
 R

O
S

SU
PE

RV
IS

O
R'

S 
SI

GN
AT

UR
E

DA
TE

AS
-B

UI
LT

 C
O

PY

IN
IT

IA
LS

CE
RT

. D
AT

E

IN
AC

CE
SS

IB
LE

13
 k

V
FU

TU
RE

 2
3 

kV
23

 k
V

FP
L

De
sig

ne
d 

by
:

Dr
aw

n 
by

:
Da

te
:

Dw
g 

No
.

Ch
ec

k 
by

:

Ru
ra

l L
oc

at
io

n 
Se

c.
TW

P.

SC
AL

E:
St

. L
t M

AP
 N

o.

S,
R.

E.
Pr

i M
ap

 N
o.

W
R

M
/A

Re
qu

es
te

d 
Te

l. 
Co

. S
et

 P
ol

es
 ?

Re
qu

es
te

d 
Te

l. 
Co

. T
ra

ns
fe

r ?

YE
S

YE
S

YE
S

YE
S

N
O

NO NO NO

Ci
ty

W
M

D
Co

un
ty

 R
d.

RR
 X

in
g

Co
un

ty
 A

ir
DR

. D
ist

.
St

at
e 

Ro
ad

Tr
an

sm
.

FA
A

PO
LE

 LI
N

E 
FE

ET

PO
LE

 LI
N

E 
FT

. O
N 

TR
AN

SM
. P

O
LE

S

TL
M

/L
DS

 M
O

DE
L N

o.

TR
EN

CH
 F

T.

DU
CT

 B
AN

K 
FT

.

M
ap

 P
os

tin
g?

Po
st

ed
 b

y:

SA
LT

 S
PR

AY

W
ES

T 
PA

LM
 B

EA
CH

, F
L 3

34
12

IN
ST

AL
L (

60
) N

EW
 S

L P
OL

ES
 &

 (6
0)

 N
EW

 F
IX

TU
RE

S 
FO

R 
AV

EN
IR

 
CO

M
M

UN
IT

Y 
DE

VE
LO

PM
EN

T 
DI

ST
RI

CT
 –

BY
PA

SS
 R

D
NO

RT
HL

AK
E 

BL
VD

 C
OC

O
NU

T 
BL

VD
NI

CH
OL

AS
 A

 H
ER

NA
ND

EZ
04

/3
0/

24
xx

x

##
##

##
N.

T.
S

M
AP

#
##

##
##

##
##

#
##

#

0'
0'

-

0'
0'

3
OF

 1
1

PA
GE

-2

PA
GE

-3
PA

GE
-4

PA
GE

-5

PA
GE

-6
PA

GE
-7

PA
GE

-8
PA

GE
-9

PA
GE

-
10

PA
GE

-
11

Sy
m

bo
l

De
sc

rip
tio

n
W

at
ts

Te
m

p 
co

lo
r

Q
ua

nt
ity

CO
O

PE
R 

M
ES

A 
15

0W
 4

00
0K

 1
4,

91
1

15
0 

W
40

00
K

58

AR
EA

 1
7,

50
0L

 4
00

0K
 B

LA
CK

15
0K

40
00

K
2

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 2

1'
 (1

5'
 6

" M
H)

N
/A

N
/A

57

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 1

4'
 6

" (
10

' M
H)

N
/A

N
/A

1

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 3

3’
 (2

4’
 M

H)
N

/A
N

/A
2

Pr
od

uc
t s

um
m

ar
y

A B C

PA
GE

-3
PA

GE
-3

9

8

7

6

CO
NS

TR
UC

TI
O

N 
NO

TE
S:

 
LO

C 
6 

–
9:

 F
PL

 T
O

 IN
ST

AL
L C

O
O

PE
R 

M
ES

A 
15

0W
 4

00
0K

 1
4,

91
1L

 O
N 

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 2

1'
 (1

5'
 6

" M
H)

.  
FP

L S
L H

H 
TO

 B
E 

IN
ST

AL
LE

D 
AT

 B
AS

E 
O

F 
NE

W
 S

L P
O

LE
 

UN
LE

SS
 W

IT
HI

N 
10

FT
 O

F 
EX

IS
TI

NG
 P

AD
M

O
UN

T 
TR

AN
SF

O
RM

ER
 

LO
C 

A:
IN

ST
AL

L 2
4"

 S
L H

H

-F
PL

 T
O

 R
UN

 1
/0

 T
PX

 A
LT

 LE
G 

TO
 A

LL
 LO

CA
TI

O
NS

 

-E
AS

EM
EN

T 
W

IL
L B

E 
RE

Q
UI

RE
D

-C
US

TO
M

ER
 T

O
 IN

ST
AL

L A
LL

 2
" C

O
N

DU
IT

 A
ND

 S
EC

O
N

DA
RY

 H
AN

DH
O

LE
S

-‘C
HE

CK
 V

O
LT

AG
E 

–
CO

NV
ER

T 
48

0V
 T

O
 1

20
V 

O
R 

24
0V

’ O
N 

48
0V

 C
IR

CU
IT

S,
 C

HA
NG

E 
TH

E 
RE

LA
Y 

PR
IO

R 
TO

 IN
ST

AL
LI

NG
 T

HE
 LI

GH
TS

.
VE

RI
FY

 T
HE

 S
O

UR
CE

 A
ND

 A
M

O
UN

T 
O

F 
LI

GH
TS

 O
N 

TH
AT

 R
EL

AY
. C

O
NT

AC
T 

TH
E 

FP
LP

L T
O

 A
SS

IS
T 

W
IT

H 
TH

IS
 P

RO
CE

SS
.

-C
US

TO
M

ER
 T

O
 C

O
NT

AC
T 

FP
L P

L A
ND

 C
O

O
RD

IN
AT

E 
ST

AK
IN

G 
O

F 
AL

L L
O

CA
TI

O
NS

 P
RI

O
R 

LE
D 

IN
ST

AL
LA

TI
O

NS
. C

US
TO

M
ER

 IS
 R

ES
PO

NS
IB

LE
 F

O
R 

AN
Y 

RE
ST

O
RA

TI
O

N 
RE

Q
UI

RE
D.

  

FP
L L

ED
 R

EP
RE

SE
NT

AT
IV

E:
 D

IE
GO

 F
EB

RE
S

PAGE 4

PA
GE

 6

24
" H

H
24

" H
H

24
" H

H

24
" H

H 24
" H

H

A

10
0'

16
0'

7

Page 285



AS
-B

UI
LT

 C
RE

W
 P

RI
N

T

Re
qu

es
t C

AV
T 

Tr
an

sf
er

?

Te
le

. A
tt

ac
hm

en
t P

er

Te
le

ph
on

e 
Co

. J
ob

 N
o.

PE
RM

IT

RE
Q

'D

Ea
se

m
en

t?
   

Ye
s  

   
   

No

Tr
ee

 W
or

k?
   

Ye
s  

   
   

No

Su
rv

ey
/S

ta
ke

? 
  Y

es
   

   
   

No

De
sig

ne
r/

St
ak

e?
Ye

s  
   

   
 N

o

W
or

k 
w

ith
 S

M
O

?Y
es

   
   

  N
o

CT
/S

pe
cia

l M
tr

? 
 Y

es
   

   
  N

o

AL
L 

RE
Q

UI
RE

D 
GR

O
UN

D 
RO

DS
 H

AV
E 

BE
EN

 D
RI

VE
N

 &
 V

ER
IF

IE
D 

TO
BE

 W
IT

HI
N

 F
PL

 S
TA

N
DA

RD
S,

 V
AL

UE
S 

AR
E 

SH
O

W
N

 A
T 

AL
L L

O
CA

TI
O

N
S.

FO
RE

M
AN

'S
 S

IG
N

AT
UR

E
DA

TE
FO

RE
M

AN
'S

 S
IG

N
AT

UR
E

DA
TE

JO
B 

CE
RT

IF
IE

D 
CO

M
PL

ET
ED

 A
S 

SH
O

W
N

 O
N

 T
HI

S 
AS

-B
UI

LT
PR

IN
T.

 M
AT

ER
IA

L 
CH

AN
GE

S 
SH

O
W

N
 O

N
 R

O
S

SU
PE

RV
IS

O
R'

S 
SI

GN
AT

UR
E

DA
TE

AS
-B

UI
LT

 C
O

PY

IN
IT

IA
LS

CE
RT

. D
AT

E

IN
AC

CE
SS

IB
LE

13
 k

V
FU

TU
RE

 2
3 

kV
23

 k
V

FP
L

De
sig

ne
d 

by
:

Dr
aw

n 
by

:
Da

te
:

Dw
g 

No
.

Ch
ec

k 
by

:

Ru
ra

l L
oc

at
io

n 
Se

c.
TW

P.

SC
AL

E:
St

. L
t M

AP
 N

o.

S,
R.

E.
Pr

i M
ap

 N
o.

W
R

M
/A

Re
qu

es
te

d 
Te

l. 
Co

. S
et

 P
ol

es
 ?

Re
qu

es
te

d 
Te

l. 
Co

. T
ra

ns
fe

r ?

YE
S

YE
S

YE
S

YE
S

N
O

NO NO NO

Ci
ty

W
M

D
Co

un
ty

 R
d.

RR
 X

in
g

Co
un

ty
 A

ir
DR

. D
ist

.
St

at
e 

Ro
ad

Tr
an

sm
.

FA
A

PO
LE

 LI
N

E 
FE

ET

PO
LE

 LI
N

E 
FT

. O
N 

TR
AN

SM
. P

O
LE

S

TL
M

/L
DS

 M
O

DE
L N

o.

TR
EN

CH
 F

T.

DU
CT

 B
AN

K 
FT

.

M
ap

 P
os

tin
g?

Po
st

ed
 b

y:

SA
LT

 S
PR

AY

W
ES

T 
PA

LM
 B

EA
CH

, F
L 3

34
12

IN
ST

AL
L (

60
) N

EW
 S

L P
OL

ES
 &

 (6
0)

 N
EW

 F
IX

TU
RE

S 
FO

R 
AV

EN
IR

 
CO

M
M

UN
IT

Y 
DE

VE
LO

PM
EN

T 
DI

ST
RI

CT
 –

BY
PA

SS
 R

D
NO

RT
HL

AK
E 

BL
VD

 C
OC

O
NU

T 
BL

VD
NI

CH
OL

AS
 A

 H
ER

NA
ND

EZ
04

/3
0/

24
xx

x

##
##

##
N.

T.
S

M
AP

#
##

##
##

##
##

#
##

#

0'
0'

-

0'
0'

4
OF

 1
1

PA
GE

-2

PA
GE

-3
PA

GE
-4

PA
GE

-5

PA
GE

-6
PA

GE
-7

PA
GE

-8
PA

GE
-9

PA
GE

-
10

PA
GE

-
11

Sy
m

bo
l

De
sc

rip
tio

n
W

at
ts

Te
m

p 
co

lo
r

Q
ua

nt
ity

CO
O

PE
R 

M
ES

A 
15

0W
 4

00
0K

 1
4,

91
1

15
0 

W
40

00
K

58

AR
EA

 1
7,

50
0L

 4
00

0K
 B

LA
CK

15
0K

40
00

K
2

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 2

1'
 (1

5'
 6

" M
H)

N
/A

N
/A

57

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 1

4'
 6

" (
10

' M
H)

N
/A

N
/A

1

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 3

3’
 (2

4’
 M

H)
N

/A
N

/A
2

Pr
od

uc
t s

um
m

ar
y

A B C

CO
NS

TR
UC

TI
O

N 
NO

TE
S:

 
LO

C 
10

 –
20

: F
PL

 T
O

 IN
ST

AL
L C

O
O

PE
R 

M
ES

A 
15

0W
 4

00
0K

 1
4,

91
1L

 O
N 

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 2

1'
 (1

5'
 6

" M
H)

.  
FP

L S
L H

H 
TO

 B
E 

IN
ST

AL
LE

D 
AT

 B
AS

E 
O

F 
NE

W
 S

L P
O

LE
 U

NL
ES

S 
W

IT
HI

N 
10

FT
 O

F 
EX

IS
TI

NG
 

PA
DM

O
UN

T 
TR

AN
SF

O
RM

ER
 

LO
C 

B:
IN

ST
AL

L 2
4"

 S
L H

H

-F
PL

 T
O

 R
UN

 1
/0

 T
PX

 A
LT

 LE
G 

TO
 A

LL
 LO

CA
TI

O
NS

 

-E
AS

EM
EN

T 
W

IL
L B

E 
RE

Q
UI

RE
D

-C
US

TO
M

ER
 T

O
 IN

ST
AL

L A
LL

 2
" C

O
N

DU
IT

 A
ND

 S
EC

O
N

DA
RY

 
HA

N
DH

O
LE

S

-‘C
HE

CK
 V

O
LT

AG
E 

–
CO

NV
ER

T 
48

0V
 T

O
 1

20
V 

O
R 

24
0V

’ O
N 

48
0V

 
CI

RC
UI

TS
, C

HA
NG

E 
TH

E 
RE

LA
Y 

PR
IO

R 
TO

 IN
ST

AL
LI

NG
 T

HE
 

LI
GH

TS
.

VE
RI

FY
 T

HE
 S

O
UR

CE
 A

ND
 A

M
O

UN
T 

O
F 

LI
GH

TS
 O

N 
TH

AT
 R

EL
AY

. 
CO

NT
AC

T 
TH

E 
FP

LP
L T

O
 A

SS
IS

T 
W

IT
H 

TH
IS

 P
RO

CE
SS

.

-C
US

TO
M

ER
 T

O
 C

O
NT

AC
T 

FP
L P

L A
ND

 C
O

O
RD

IN
AT

E 
ST

AK
IN

G 
O

F 
AL

L 
LO

CA
TI

O
NS

 P
RI

O
R 

LE
D 

IN
ST

AL
LA

TI
O

NS
. C

US
TO

M
ER

 IS
 R

ES
PO

NS
IB

LE
 F

O
R 

AN
Y 

RE
ST

O
RA

TI
O

N 
RE

Q
UI

RE
D.

  

FP
L L

ED
 R

EP
RE

SE
NT

AT
IV

E:
 D

IE
GO

 F
EB

RE
S

PA
GE

-4
PA

GE
-4

10

11

12

13

15

16

19

20

18

17

PAGE 3

PAGE 5

24
" H

H

24
" H

H
24

" H
H

24
" H

H
24

" H
H

24
" H

H

24
" H

H

24
" H

H
24

" H
H

24
" H

H

A

24
" H

H

14

11
5'

35
'

11
5'

16
0'

80
'

80
'

25'

70
'

65'

95
'

B
24

 H
H

80

Page 286



AS
-B

UI
LT

 C
RE

W
 P

RI
N

T

Re
qu

es
t C

AV
T 

Tr
an

sf
er

?

Te
le

. A
tt

ac
hm

en
t P

er

Te
le

ph
on

e 
Co

. J
ob

 N
o.

PE
RM

IT

RE
Q

'D

Ea
se

m
en

t?
   

Ye
s  

   
   

No

Tr
ee

 W
or

k?
   

Ye
s  

   
   

No

Su
rv

ey
/S

ta
ke

? 
  Y

es
   

   
   

No

De
sig

ne
r/

St
ak

e?
Ye

s  
   

   
 N

o

W
or

k 
w

ith
 S

M
O

?Y
es

   
   

  N
o

CT
/S

pe
cia

l M
tr

? 
 Y

es
   

   
  N

o

AL
L 

RE
Q

UI
RE

D 
GR

O
UN

D 
RO

DS
 H

AV
E 

BE
EN

 D
RI

VE
N

 &
 V

ER
IF

IE
D 

TO
BE

 W
IT

HI
N

 F
PL

 S
TA

N
DA

RD
S,

 V
AL

UE
S 

AR
E 

SH
O

W
N

 A
T 

AL
L L

O
CA

TI
O

N
S.

FO
RE

M
AN

'S
 S

IG
N

AT
UR

E
DA

TE
FO

RE
M

AN
'S

 S
IG

N
AT

UR
E

DA
TE

JO
B 

CE
RT

IF
IE

D 
CO

M
PL

ET
ED

 A
S 

SH
O

W
N

 O
N

 T
HI

S 
AS

-B
UI

LT
PR

IN
T.

 M
AT

ER
IA

L 
CH

AN
GE

S 
SH

O
W

N
 O

N
 R

O
S

SU
PE

RV
IS

O
R'

S 
SI

GN
AT

UR
E

DA
TE

AS
-B

UI
LT

 C
O

PY

IN
IT

IA
LS

CE
RT

. D
AT

E

IN
AC

CE
SS

IB
LE

13
 k

V
FU

TU
RE

 2
3 

kV
23

 k
V

FP
L

De
sig

ne
d 

by
:

Dr
aw

n 
by

:
Da

te
:

Dw
g 

No
.

Ch
ec

k 
by

:

Ru
ra

l L
oc

at
io

n 
Se

c.
TW

P.

SC
AL

E:
St

. L
t M

AP
 N

o.

S,
R.

E.
Pr

i M
ap

 N
o.

W
R

M
/A

Re
qu

es
te

d 
Te

l. 
Co

. S
et

 P
ol

es
 ?

Re
qu

es
te

d 
Te

l. 
Co

. T
ra

ns
fe

r ?

YE
S

YE
S

YE
S

YE
S

N
O

NO NO NO

Ci
ty

W
M

D
Co

un
ty

 R
d.

RR
 X

in
g

Co
un

ty
 A

ir
DR

. D
ist

.
St

at
e 

Ro
ad

Tr
an

sm
.

FA
A

PO
LE

 LI
N

E 
FE

ET

PO
LE

 LI
N

E 
FT

. O
N 

TR
AN

SM
. P

O
LE

S

TL
M

/L
DS

 M
O

DE
L N

o.

TR
EN

CH
 F

T.

DU
CT

 B
AN

K 
FT

.

M
ap

 P
os

tin
g?

Po
st

ed
 b

y:

SA
LT

 S
PR

AY

W
ES

T 
PA

LM
 B

EA
CH

, F
L 3

34
12

IN
ST

AL
L (

60
) N

EW
 S

L P
OL

ES
 &

 (6
0)

 N
EW

 F
IX

TU
RE

S 
FO

R 
AV

EN
IR

 
CO

M
M

UN
IT

Y 
DE

VE
LO

PM
EN

T 
DI

ST
RI

CT
 –

BY
PA

SS
 R

D
NO

RT
HL

AK
E 

BL
VD

 C
OC

O
NU

T 
BL

VD
NI

CH
OL

AS
 A

 H
ER

NA
ND

EZ
04

/3
0/

24
xx

x

##
##

##
N.

T.
S

M
AP

#
##

##
##

##
##

#
##

#

0'
0'

-

0'
0'

5
OF

 1
1

PA
GE

-2

PA
GE

-3
PA

GE
-4

PA
GE

-5

PA
GE

-6
PA

GE
-7

PA
GE

-8
PA

GE
-9

PA
GE

-
10

PA
GE

-
11

Sy
m

bo
l

De
sc

rip
tio

n
W

at
ts

Te
m

p 
co

lo
r

Q
ua

nt
ity

CO
O

PE
R 

M
ES

A 
15

0W
 4

00
0K

 1
4,

91
1

15
0 

W
40

00
K

58

AR
EA

 1
7,

50
0L

 4
00

0K
 B

LA
CK

15
0K

40
00

K
2

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 2

1'
 (1

5'
 6

" M
H)

N
/A

N
/A

57

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 1

4'
 6

" (
10

' M
H)

N
/A

N
/A

1

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 3

3’
 (2

4’
 M

H)
N

/A
N

/A
2

Pr
od

uc
t s

um
m

ar
y

A B C

CO
NS

TR
UC

TI
O

N 
NO

TE
S:

 
LO

C 
21

 –
32

: F
PL

 T
O

 IN
ST

AL
L C

O
O

PE
R 

M
ES

A 
15

0W
 4

00
0K

 1
4,

91
1L

 O
N 

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 2

1'
 (1

5'
 6

" M
H)

.  
FP

L S
L H

H 
TO

 B
E 

IN
ST

AL
LE

D 
AT

 B
AS

E 
O

F 
NE

W
 

SL
 P

O
LE

 U
NL

ES
S 

W
IT

HI
N 

10
FT

 O
F 

EX
IS

TI
NG

 P
AD

M
O

UN
T 

TR
AN

SF
O

RM
ER

 

-F
PL

 T
O

 R
UN

 1
/0

 T
PX

 A
LT

 LE
G 

TO
 A

LL
 LO

CA
TI

O
NS

 

-E
AS

EM
EN

T 
W

IL
L B

E 
RE

Q
UI

RE
D

-C
US

TO
M

ER
 T

O
 IN

ST
AL

L A
LL

 2
" C

O
N

DU
IT

 A
ND

 S
EC

O
N

DA
RY

 H
AN

DH
O

LE
S

-‘C
HE

CK
 V

O
LT

AG
E 

–
CO

NV
ER

T 
48

0V
 T

O
 1

20
V 

O
R 

24
0V

’ O
N 

48
0V

 C
IR

CU
IT

S,
 C

HA
NG

E 
TH

E 
RE

LA
Y 

PR
IO

R 
TO

 IN
ST

AL
LI

NG
 T

HE
 LI

GH
TS

.
VE

RI
FY

 T
HE

 S
O

UR
CE

 A
ND

 A
M

O
UN

T 
O

F 
LI

GH
TS

 O
N 

TH
AT

 R
EL

AY
. C

O
NT

AC
T 

TH
E 

FP
L

PL
 T

O
 A

SS
IS

T 
W

IT
H 

TH
IS

 P
RO

CE
SS

.

-C
US

TO
M

ER
 T

O
 C

O
NT

AC
T 

FP
L P

L A
ND

 C
O

O
RD

IN
AT

E 
ST

AK
IN

G 
O

F 
AL

L L
O

CA
TI

O
NS

 
PR

IO
R 

LE
D 

IN
ST

AL
LA

TI
O

NS
. C

US
TO

M
ER

 IS
 R

ES
PO

NS
IB

LE
 F

O
R 

AN
Y 

RE
ST

O
RA

TI
O

N 
RE

Q
UI

RE
D.

  

FP
L L

ED
 R

EP
RE

SE
NT

AT
IV

E:
 D

IE
GO

 F
EB

RE
S

PA
GE

-5
PA

GE
-5

A
22

A
24

A

21

A

23
A

25

A

30

A
28

A

29

A

31

A

27 A
32

A

26

PA
GE

 2

PAGE 4

24
" H

H

24
" H

H
24

" H
H

24
" H

H
24

" H
H

24
" H

H
24

" H
H

24
" H

H
24

" H
H

24
" H

H

24
" H

H
24

" H
H

15
0'

15
0'

11
5'

20
0'

95'

95'

30
'

10
0'

125'

125'60'

90'

50'

A

PA
GE

 7

A

A

A

Page 287



AS
-B

UI
LT

 C
RE

W
 P

RI
N

T

Re
qu

es
t C

AV
T 

Tr
an

sf
er

?

Te
le

. A
tt

ac
hm

en
t P

er

Te
le

ph
on

e 
Co

. J
ob

 N
o.

PE
RM

IT

RE
Q

'D

Ea
se

m
en

t?
   

Ye
s  

   
   

No

Tr
ee

 W
or

k?
   

Ye
s  

   
   

No

Su
rv

ey
/S

ta
ke

? 
  Y

es
   

   
   

No

De
sig

ne
r/

St
ak

e?
Ye

s  
   

   
 N

o

W
or

k 
w

ith
 S

M
O

?Y
es

   
   

  N
o

CT
/S

pe
cia

l M
tr

? 
 Y

es
   

   
  N

o

AL
L 

RE
Q

UI
RE

D 
GR

O
UN

D 
RO

DS
 H

AV
E 

BE
EN

 D
RI

VE
N

 &
 V

ER
IF

IE
D 

TO
BE

 W
IT

HI
N

 F
PL

 S
TA

N
DA

RD
S,

 V
AL

UE
S 

AR
E 

SH
O

W
N

 A
T 

AL
L L

O
CA

TI
O

N
S.

FO
RE

M
AN

'S
 S

IG
N

AT
UR

E
DA

TE
FO

RE
M

AN
'S

 S
IG

N
AT

UR
E

DA
TE

JO
B 

CE
RT

IF
IE

D 
CO

M
PL

ET
ED

 A
S 

SH
O

W
N

 O
N

 T
HI

S 
AS

-B
UI

LT
PR

IN
T.

 M
AT

ER
IA

L 
CH

AN
GE

S 
SH

O
W

N
 O

N
 R

O
S

SU
PE

RV
IS

O
R'

S 
SI

GN
AT

UR
E

DA
TE

AS
-B

UI
LT

 C
O

PY

IN
IT

IA
LS

CE
RT

. D
AT

E

IN
AC

CE
SS

IB
LE

13
 k

V
FU

TU
RE

 2
3 

kV
23

 k
V

FP
L

De
sig

ne
d 

by
:

Dr
aw

n 
by

:
Da

te
:

Dw
g 

No
.

Ch
ec

k 
by

:

Ru
ra

l L
oc

at
io

n 
Se

c.
TW

P.

SC
AL

E:
St

. L
t M

AP
 N

o.

S,
R.

E.
Pr

i M
ap

 N
o.

W
R

M
/A

Re
qu

es
te

d 
Te

l. 
Co

. S
et

 P
ol

es
 ?

Re
qu

es
te

d 
Te

l. 
Co

. T
ra

ns
fe

r ?

YE
S

YE
S

YE
S

YE
S

N
O

NO NO NO

Ci
ty

W
M

D
Co

un
ty

 R
d.

RR
 X

in
g

Co
un

ty
 A

ir
DR

. D
ist

.
St

at
e 

Ro
ad

Tr
an

sm
.

FA
A

PO
LE

 LI
N

E 
FE

ET

PO
LE

 LI
N

E 
FT

. O
N 

TR
AN

SM
. P

O
LE

S

TL
M

/L
DS

 M
O

DE
L N

o.

TR
EN

CH
 F

T.

DU
CT

 B
AN

K 
FT

.

M
ap

 P
os

tin
g?

Po
st

ed
 b

y:

SA
LT

 S
PR

AY

W
ES

T 
PA

LM
 B

EA
CH

, F
L 3

34
12

IN
ST

AL
L (

60
) N

EW
 S

L P
OL

ES
 &

 (6
0)

 N
EW

 F
IX

TU
RE

S 
FO

R 
AV

EN
IR

 
CO

M
M

UN
IT

Y 
DE

VE
LO

PM
EN

T 
DI

ST
RI

CT
 –

BY
PA

SS
 R

D
NO

RT
HL

AK
E 

BL
VD

 C
OC

O
NU

T 
BL

VD
NI

CH
OL

AS
 A

 H
ER

NA
ND

EZ
04

/3
0/

24
xx

x

##
##

##
N.

T.
S

M
AP

#
##

##
##

##
##

#
##

#

0'
0'

-

0'
0'

6
OF

 1
1

PA
GE

-2

PA
GE

-3
PA

GE
-4

PA
GE

-5

PA
GE

-6
PA

GE
-7

PA
GE

-8
PA

GE
-9

PA
GE

-
10

PA
GE

-
11

Sy
m

bo
l

De
sc

rip
tio

n
W

at
ts

Te
m

p 
co

lo
r

Q
ua

nt
ity

CO
O

PE
R 

M
ES

A 
15

0W
 4

00
0K

 1
4,

91
1

15
0 

W
40

00
K

58

AR
EA

 1
7,

50
0L

 4
00

0K
 B

LA
CK

15
0K

40
00

K
2

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 2

1'
 (1

5'
 6

" M
H)

N
/A

N
/A

57

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 1

4'
 6

" (
10

' M
H)

N
/A

N
/A

1

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 3

3’
 (2

4’
 M

H)
N

/A
N

/A
2

Pr
od

uc
t s

um
m

ar
y

A B C

PA
GE

-6
PA

GE
-6

33
34

35

36

CO
NS

TR
UC

TI
O

N 
NO

TE
S:

 
LO

C 
33

 –
36

: F
PL

 T
O

 IN
ST

AL
L C

O
O

PE
R 

M
ES

A 
15

0W
 4

00
0K

 1
4,

91
1L

 O
N 

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 2

1'
 (1

5'
 6

" M
H)

.  
FP

L S
L H

H 
TO

 B
E 

IN
ST

AL
LE

D 
AT

 B
AS

E 
O

F 
NE

W
 S

L P
O

LE
 

UN
LE

SS
 W

IT
HI

N 
10

FT
 O

F 
EX

IS
TI

NG
 P

AD
M

O
UN

T 
TR

AN
SF

O
RM

ER
 

LO
C 

34
:F

PL
 T

O
 IN

ST
AL

L C
O

O
PE

R 
M

ES
A 

15
0W

 4
00

0K
 1

4,
91

1L
 O

N 
BL

AC
K 

TA
PE

RE
D 

CO
NC

RE
TE

 1
4'

 6
" (

10
' M

H)
.  

FP
L S

L H
H 

TO
 B

E 
IN

ST
AL

LE
D 

AT
 B

AS
E 

O
F 

NE
W

 S
L P

O
LE

 
UN

LE
SS

 W
IT

HI
N 

10
FT

 O
F 

EX
IS

TI
NG

 P
AD

M
O

UN
T 

TR
AN

SF
O

RM
ER

 

-F
PL

 T
O

 R
UN

 1
/0

 T
PX

 A
LT

 LE
G 

TO
 A

LL
 LO

CA
TI

O
NS

 

-E
AS

EM
EN

T 
W

IL
L B

E 
RE

Q
UI

RE
D

-C
US

TO
M

ER
 T

O
 IN

ST
AL

L A
LL

 2
" C

O
N

DU
IT

 A
ND

 S
EC

O
N

DA
RY

 H
AN

DH
O

LE
S

-‘C
HE

CK
 V

O
LT

AG
E 

–
CO

NV
ER

T 
48

0V
 T

O
 1

20
V 

O
R 

24
0V

’ O
N 

48
0V

 C
IR

CU
IT

S,
 C

HA
NG

E 
TH

E 
RE

LA
Y 

PR
IO

R 
TO

 IN
ST

AL
LI

NG
 T

HE
 LI

GH
TS

.
VE

RI
FY

 T
HE

 S
O

UR
CE

 A
ND

 A
M

O
UN

T 
O

F 
LI

GH
TS

 O
N 

TH
AT

 R
EL

AY
. C

O
NT

AC
T 

TH
E 

FP
LP

L T
O

 A
SS

IS
T 

W
IT

H 
TH

IS
 P

RO
CE

SS
.

-C
US

TO
M

ER
 T

O
 C

O
NT

AC
T 

FP
L P

L A
ND

 C
O

O
RD

IN
AT

E 
ST

AK
IN

G 
O

F 
AL

L L
O

CA
TI

O
NS

 P
RI

O
R 

LE
D 

IN
ST

AL
LA

TI
ON

S.
 C

US
TO

M
ER

 IS
 R

ES
PO

NS
IB

LE
 F

O
R 

AN
Y 

RE
ST

O
RA

TI
O

N 
RE

Q
UI

RE
D.

  

FP
L L

ED
 R

EP
RE

SE
NT

AT
IV

E:
 D

IE
GO

 F
EB

RE
S

PA
GE

 3

24
" H

H
24

" H
H

24
" H

H

24
" H

H

80'

24
 H

H

Page 288



AS
-B

UI
LT

 C
RE

W
 P

RI
N

T

Re
qu

es
t C

AV
T 

Tr
an

sf
er

?

Te
le

. A
tt

ac
hm

en
t P

er

Te
le

ph
on

e 
Co

. J
ob

 N
o.

PE
RM

IT

RE
Q

'D

Ea
se

m
en

t?
   

Ye
s  

   
   

No

Tr
ee

 W
or

k?
   

Ye
s  

   
   

No

Su
rv

ey
/S

ta
ke

? 
  Y

es
   

   
   

No

De
sig

ne
r/

St
ak

e?
Ye

s  
   

   
 N

o

W
or

k 
w

ith
 S

M
O

?Y
es

   
   

  N
o

CT
/S

pe
cia

l M
tr

? 
 Y

es
   

   
  N

o

AL
L 

RE
Q

UI
RE

D 
GR

O
UN

D 
RO

DS
 H

AV
E 

BE
EN

 D
RI

VE
N

 &
 V

ER
IF

IE
D 

TO
BE

 W
IT

HI
N

 F
PL

 S
TA

N
DA

RD
S,

 V
AL

UE
S 

AR
E 

SH
O

W
N

 A
T 

AL
L L

O
CA

TI
O

N
S.

FO
RE

M
AN

'S
 S

IG
N

AT
UR

E
DA

TE
FO

RE
M

AN
'S

 S
IG

N
AT

UR
E

DA
TE

JO
B 

CE
RT

IF
IE

D 
CO

M
PL

ET
ED

 A
S 

SH
O

W
N

 O
N

 T
HI

S 
AS

-B
UI

LT
PR

IN
T.

 M
AT

ER
IA

L 
CH

AN
GE

S 
SH

O
W

N
 O

N
 R

O
S

SU
PE

RV
IS

O
R'

S 
SI

GN
AT

UR
E

DA
TE

AS
-B

UI
LT

 C
O

PY

IN
IT

IA
LS

CE
RT

. D
AT

E

IN
AC

CE
SS

IB
LE

13
 k

V
FU

TU
RE

 2
3 

kV
23

 k
V

FP
L

De
sig

ne
d 

by
:

Dr
aw

n 
by

:
Da

te
:

Dw
g 

No
.

Ch
ec

k 
by

:

Ru
ra

l L
oc

at
io

n 
Se

c.
TW

P.

SC
AL

E:
St

. L
t M

AP
 N

o.

S,
R.

E.
Pr

i M
ap

 N
o.

W
R

M
/A

Re
qu

es
te

d 
Te

l. 
Co

. S
et

 P
ol

es
 ?

Re
qu

es
te

d 
Te

l. 
Co

. T
ra

ns
fe

r ?

YE
S

YE
S

YE
S

YE
S

N
O

NO NO NO

Ci
ty

W
M

D
Co

un
ty

 R
d.

RR
 X

in
g

Co
un

ty
 A

ir
DR

. D
ist

.
St

at
e 

Ro
ad

Tr
an

sm
.

FA
A

PO
LE

 LI
N

E 
FE

ET

PO
LE

 LI
N

E 
FT

. O
N 

TR
AN

SM
. P

O
LE

S

TL
M

/L
DS

 M
O

DE
L N

o.

TR
EN

CH
 F

T.

DU
CT

 B
AN

K 
FT

.

M
ap

 P
os

tin
g?

Po
st

ed
 b

y:

SA
LT

 S
PR

AY

W
ES

T 
PA

LM
 B

EA
CH

, F
L 3

34
12

IN
ST

AL
L (

60
) N

EW
 S

L P
OL

ES
 &

 (6
0)

 N
EW

 F
IX

TU
RE

S 
FO

R 
AV

EN
IR

 
CO

M
M

UN
IT

Y 
DE

VE
LO

PM
EN

T 
DI

ST
RI

CT
 –

BY
PA

SS
 R

D
NO

RT
HL

AK
E 

BL
VD

 C
OC

O
NU

T 
BL

VD
NI

CH
OL

AS
 A

 H
ER

NA
ND

EZ
04

/3
0/

24
xx

x

##
##

##
N.

T.
S

M
AP

#
##

##
##

##
##

#
##

#

0'
0'

-

0'
0'

7
OF

 1
1

PA
GE

-2

PA
GE

-3
PA

GE
-4

PA
GE

-5

PA
GE

-6
PA

GE
-7

PA
GE

-8
PA

GE
-9

PA
GE

-
10

PA
GE

-
11

Sy
m

bo
l

De
sc

rip
tio

n
W

at
ts

Te
m

p 
co

lo
r

Q
ua

nt
ity

CO
O

PE
R 

M
ES

A 
15

0W
 4

00
0K

 1
4,

91
1

15
0 

W
40

00
K

58

AR
EA

 1
7,

50
0L

 4
00

0K
 B

LA
CK

15
0K

40
00

K
2

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 2

1'
 (1

5'
 6

" M
H)

N
/A

N
/A

57

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 1

4'
 6

" (
10

' M
H)

N
/A

N
/A

1

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 3

3’
 (2

4’
 M

H)
N

/A
N

/A
2

Pr
od

uc
t s

um
m

ar
y

A B C

CO
NS

TR
UC

TI
O

N 
NO

TE
S:

 
LO

C 
37

 –
42

: F
PL

 T
O

 IN
ST

AL
L C

O
O

PE
R 

M
ES

A 
15

0W
 4

00
0K

 1
4,

91
1L

 O
N 

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 2

1'
 (1

5'
 6

" M
H)

.  
FP

L S
L H

H 
TO

 B
E 

IN
ST

AL
LE

D 
AT

 B
AS

E 
O

F 
NE

W
 S

L P
O

LE
 

UN
LE

SS
 W

IT
HI

N 
10

FT
 O

F 
EX

IS
TI

NG
 P

AD
M

O
UN

T 
TR

AN
SF

O
RM

ER
 

-F
PL

 T
O

 R
UN

 1
/0

 T
PX

 A
LT

 LE
G 

TO
 A

LL
 LO

CA
TI

O
NS

 

-E
AS

EM
EN

T 
W

IL
L B

E 
RE

Q
UI

RE
D

-C
US

TO
M

ER
 T

O
 IN

ST
AL

L A
LL

 2
" C

O
N

DU
IT

 A
ND

 S
EC

O
N

DA
RY

 H
AN

DH
O

LE
S

-‘C
HE

CK
 V

O
LT

AG
E 

–
CO

NV
ER

T 
48

0V
 T

O
 1

20
V 

O
R 

24
0V

’ O
N 

48
0V

 C
IR

CU
IT

S,
 C

HA
NG

E 
TH

E 
RE

LA
Y 

PR
IO

R 
TO

 IN
ST

AL
LI

NG
 T

HE
 LI

GH
TS

.
VE

RI
FY

 T
HE

 S
O

UR
CE

 A
ND

 A
M

O
UN

T 
O

F 
LI

GH
TS

 
O

N 
TH

AT
 R

EL
AY

. C
O

NT
AC

T 
TH

E 
FP

LP
L T

O
 A

SS
IS

T 
W

IT
H 

TH
IS

 P
RO

CE
SS

.

-C
US

TO
M

ER
 T

O
 C

O
NT

AC
T 

FP
L P

L A
ND

 C
O

O
RD

IN
AT

E 
ST

AK
IN

G 
O

F 
AL

L L
O

CA
TI

O
NS

 P
RI

O
R 

LE
D 

IN
ST

AL
LA

TI
O

NS
. C

US
TO

M
ER

 IS
 R

ES
PO

NS
IB

LE
 F

O
R 

AN
Y 

RE
ST

O
RA

TI
O

N 
RE

Q
UI

RE
D.

  

FP
L L

ED
 R

EP
RE

SE
NT

AT
IV

E:
 D

IE
GO

 F
EB

RE
S

PA
GE

-7
PA

GE
-7

A

37
A

38

A

39
A

40

A

41
A

42

PA
GE

 9

24
" H

H
24

" H
H

24
" H

H
24

" H
H

24
" H

H
24

" H
H

120'

85'

85'

50
'

110'

110'

120'

A A
A

9

50
'

A
A

85'

PA
GE

 5

Page 289



AS
-B

UI
LT

 C
RE

W
 P

RI
N

T

Re
qu

es
t C

AV
T 

Tr
an

sf
er

?

Te
le

. A
tt

ac
hm

en
t P

er

Te
le

ph
on

e 
Co

. J
ob

 N
o.

PE
RM

IT

RE
Q

'D

Ea
se

m
en

t?
   

Ye
s  

   
   

No

Tr
ee

 W
or

k?
   

Ye
s  

   
   

No

Su
rv

ey
/S

ta
ke

? 
  Y

es
   

   
   

No

De
sig

ne
r/

St
ak

e?
Ye

s  
   

   
 N

o

W
or

k 
w

ith
 S

M
O

?Y
es

   
   

  N
o

CT
/S

pe
cia

l M
tr

? 
 Y

es
   

   
  N

o

AL
L 

RE
Q

UI
RE

D 
GR

O
UN

D 
RO

DS
 H

AV
E 

BE
EN

 D
RI

VE
N

 &
 V

ER
IF

IE
D 

TO
BE

 W
IT

HI
N

 F
PL

 S
TA

N
DA

RD
S,

 V
AL

UE
S 

AR
E 

SH
O

W
N

 A
T 

AL
L L

O
CA

TI
O

N
S.

FO
RE

M
AN

'S
 S

IG
N

AT
UR

E
DA

TE
FO

RE
M

AN
'S

 S
IG

N
AT

UR
E

DA
TE

JO
B 

CE
RT

IF
IE

D 
CO

M
PL

ET
ED

 A
S 

SH
O

W
N

 O
N

 T
HI

S 
AS

-B
UI

LT
PR

IN
T.

 M
AT

ER
IA

L 
CH

AN
GE

S 
SH

O
W

N
 O

N
 R

O
S

SU
PE

RV
IS

O
R'

S 
SI

GN
AT

UR
E

DA
TE

AS
-B

UI
LT

 C
O

PY

IN
IT

IA
LS

CE
RT

. D
AT

E

IN
AC

CE
SS

IB
LE

13
 k

V
FU

TU
RE

 2
3 

kV
23

 k
V

FP
L

De
sig

ne
d 

by
:

Dr
aw

n 
by

:
Da

te
:

Dw
g 

No
.

Ch
ec

k 
by

:

Ru
ra

l L
oc

at
io

n 
Se

c.
TW

P.

SC
AL

E:
St

. L
t M

AP
 N

o.

S,
R.

E.
Pr

i M
ap

 N
o.

W
R

M
/A

Re
qu

es
te

d 
Te

l. 
Co

. S
et

 P
ol

es
 ?

Re
qu

es
te

d 
Te

l. 
Co

. T
ra

ns
fe

r ?

YE
S

YE
S

YE
S

YE
S

N
O

NO NO NO

Ci
ty

W
M

D
Co

un
ty

 R
d.

RR
 X

in
g

Co
un

ty
 A

ir
DR

. D
ist

.
St

at
e 

Ro
ad

Tr
an

sm
.

FA
A

PO
LE

 LI
N

E 
FE

ET

PO
LE

 LI
N

E 
FT

. O
N 

TR
AN

SM
. P

O
LE

S

TL
M

/L
DS

 M
O

DE
L N

o.

TR
EN

CH
 F

T.

DU
CT

 B
AN

K 
FT

.

M
ap

 P
os

tin
g?

Po
st

ed
 b

y:

SA
LT

 S
PR

AY

W
ES

T 
PA

LM
 B

EA
CH

, F
L 3

34
12

IN
ST

AL
L (

60
) N

EW
 S

L P
OL

ES
 &

 (6
0)

 N
EW

 F
IX

TU
RE

S 
FO

R 
AV

EN
IR

 
CO

M
M

UN
IT

Y 
DE

VE
LO

PM
EN

T 
DI

ST
RI

CT
 –

BY
PA

SS
 R

D
NO

RT
HL

AK
E 

BL
VD

 C
OC

O
NU

T 
BL

VD
NI

CH
OL

AS
 A

 H
ER

NA
ND

EZ
04

/3
0/

24
xx

x

##
##

##
N.

T.
S

M
AP

#
##

##
##

##
##

#
##

#

0'
0'

-

0'
0'

8
OF

 1
1

PA
GE

-2

PA
GE

-3
PA

GE
-4

PA
GE

-5

PA
GE

-6
PA

GE
-7

PA
GE

-8
PA

GE
-9

PA
GE

-
10

PA
GE

-
11

Sy
m

bo
l

De
sc

rip
tio

n
W

at
ts

Te
m

p 
co

lo
r

Q
ua

nt
ity

CO
O

PE
R 

M
ES

A 
15

0W
 4

00
0K

 1
4,

91
1

15
0 

W
40

00
K

58

AR
EA

 1
7,

50
0L

 4
00

0K
 B

LA
CK

15
0K

40
00

K
2

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 2

1'
 (1

5'
 6

" M
H)

N
/A

N
/A

57

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 1

4'
 6

" (
10

' M
H)

N
/A

N
/A

1

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 3

3’
 (2

4’
 M

H)
N

/A
N

/A
2

Pr
od

uc
t s

um
m

ar
y

A B C

CO
NS

TR
UC

TI
O

N 
NO

TE
S:

 
LO

C 
43

 –
47

: F
PL

 T
O

 IN
ST

AL
L C

O
O

PE
R 

M
ES

A 
15

0W
 4

00
0K

 1
4,

91
1L

 O
N 

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 2

1'
 (1

5'
 6

" M
H)

.  
FP

L S
L H

H 
TO

 B
E 

IN
ST

AL
LE

D 
AT

 B
AS

E 
O

F 
NE

W
 S

L P
O

LE
 

UN
LE

SS
 W

IT
HI

N 
10

FT
 O

F 
EX

IS
TI

NG
 P

AD
M

O
UN

T 
TR

AN
SF

O
RM

ER
 

-F
PL

 T
O

 R
UN

 1
/0

 T
PX

 A
LT

 LE
G 

TO
 A

LL
 LO

CA
TI

O
NS

 

-E
AS

EM
EN

T 
W

IL
L B

E 
RE

Q
UI

RE
D

-C
US

TO
M

ER
 T

O
 IN

ST
AL

L A
LL

 2
" C

O
N

DU
IT

 A
ND

 S
EC

O
N

DA
RY

 H
AN

DH
O

LE
S

-‘C
HE

CK
 V

O
LT

AG
E 

–
CO

NV
ER

T 
48

0V
 T

O
 1

20
V 

O
R 

24
0V

’ O
N 

48
0V

 C
IR

CU
IT

S,
 C

HA
NG

E 
TH

E 
RE

LA
Y 

PR
IO

R 
TO

 IN
ST

AL
LI

NG
 T

HE
 LI

GH
TS

.
VE

RI
FY

 T
HE

 S
O

UR
CE

 A
ND

 A
M

O
UN

T 
O

F 
LI

GH
TS

 O
N 

TH
AT

 R
EL

AY
. C

O
NT

AC
T 

TH
E 

FP
LP

L T
O

 A
SS

IS
T 

W
IT

H 
TH

IS
 P

RO
CE

SS
.

-C
US

TO
M

ER
 T

O
 C

O
NT

AC
T 

FP
L P

L A
ND

 C
O

O
RD

IN
AT

E 
ST

AK
IN

G 
O

F 
AL

L L
O

CA
TI

O
NS

 P
RI

O
R 

LE
D 

IN
ST

AL
LA

TI
O

NS
. C

US
TO

M
ER

 IS
 R

ES
PO

NS
IB

LE
 F

O
R 

AN
Y 

RE
ST

O
RA

TI
O

N 
RE

Q
UI

RE
D.

  

FP
L L

ED
 R

EP
RE

SE
NT

AT
IV

E:
 D

IE
GO

 F
EB

RE
S

PA
GE

-8
PA

GE
-8

A
44 47

45

A

43

PAGE 9

46

A

24
" H

H

24
" H

H

24
" H

H
24

" H
H

24
" H

H

120' 90'

65
'

120'

A

PA
GE

 1
0

Page 290



AS
-B

UI
LT

 C
RE

W
 P

RI
N

T

Re
qu

es
t C

AV
T 

Tr
an

sf
er

?

Te
le

. A
tt

ac
hm

en
t P

er

Te
le

ph
on

e 
Co

. J
ob

 N
o.

PE
RM

IT

RE
Q

'D

Ea
se

m
en

t?
   

Ye
s  

   
   

No

Tr
ee

 W
or

k?
   

Ye
s  

   
   

No

Su
rv

ey
/S

ta
ke

? 
  Y

es
   

   
   

No

De
sig

ne
r/

St
ak

e?
Ye

s  
   

   
 N

o

W
or

k 
w

ith
 S

M
O

?Y
es

   
   

  N
o

CT
/S

pe
cia

l M
tr

? 
 Y

es
   

   
  N

o

AL
L 

RE
Q

UI
RE

D 
GR

O
UN

D 
RO

DS
 H

AV
E 

BE
EN

 D
RI

VE
N

 &
 V

ER
IF

IE
D 

TO
BE

 W
IT

HI
N

 F
PL

 S
TA

N
DA

RD
S,

 V
AL

UE
S 

AR
E 

SH
O

W
N

 A
T 

AL
L L

O
CA

TI
O

N
S.

FO
RE

M
AN

'S
 S

IG
N

AT
UR

E
DA

TE
FO

RE
M

AN
'S

 S
IG

N
AT

UR
E

DA
TE

JO
B 

CE
RT

IF
IE

D 
CO

M
PL

ET
ED

 A
S 

SH
O

W
N

 O
N

 T
HI

S 
AS

-B
UI

LT
PR

IN
T.

 M
AT

ER
IA

L 
CH

AN
GE

S 
SH

O
W

N
 O

N
 R

O
S

SU
PE

RV
IS

O
R'

S 
SI

GN
AT

UR
E

DA
TE

AS
-B

UI
LT

 C
O

PY

IN
IT

IA
LS

CE
RT

. D
AT

E

IN
AC

CE
SS

IB
LE

13
 k

V
FU

TU
RE

 2
3 

kV
23

 k
V

FP
L

De
sig

ne
d 

by
:

Dr
aw

n 
by

:
Da

te
:

Dw
g 

No
.

Ch
ec

k 
by

:

Ru
ra

l L
oc

at
io

n 
Se

c.
TW

P.

SC
AL

E:
St

. L
t M

AP
 N

o.

S,
R.

E.
Pr

i M
ap

 N
o.

W
R

M
/A

Re
qu

es
te

d 
Te

l. 
Co

. S
et

 P
ol

es
 ?

Re
qu

es
te

d 
Te

l. 
Co

. T
ra

ns
fe

r ?

YE
S

YE
S

YE
S

YE
S

N
O

NO NO NO

Ci
ty

W
M

D
Co

un
ty

 R
d.

RR
 X

in
g

Co
un

ty
 A

ir
DR

. D
ist

.
St

at
e 

Ro
ad

Tr
an

sm
.

FA
A

PO
LE

 LI
N

E 
FE

ET

PO
LE

 LI
N

E 
FT

. O
N 

TR
AN

SM
. P

O
LE

S

TL
M

/L
DS

 M
O

DE
L N

o.

TR
EN

CH
 F

T.

DU
CT

 B
AN

K 
FT

.

M
ap

 P
os

tin
g?

Po
st

ed
 b

y:

SA
LT

 S
PR

AY

W
ES

T 
PA

LM
 B

EA
CH

, F
L 3

34
12

IN
ST

AL
L (

60
) N

EW
 S

L P
OL

ES
 &

 (6
0)

 N
EW

 F
IX

TU
RE

S 
FO

R 
AV

EN
IR

 
CO

M
M

UN
IT

Y 
DE

VE
LO

PM
EN

T 
DI

ST
RI

CT
 –

BY
PA

SS
 R

D
NO

RT
HL

AK
E 

BL
VD

 C
OC

O
NU

T 
BL

VD
NI

CH
OL

AS
 A

 H
ER

NA
ND

EZ
04

/3
0/

24
xx

x

##
##

##
N.

T.
S

M
AP

#
##

##
##

##
##

#
##

#

0'
0'

-

0'
0'

9
OF

 1
1

PA
GE

-2

PA
GE

-3
PA

GE
-4

PA
GE

-5

PA
GE

-6
PA

GE
-7

PA
GE

-8
PA

GE
-9

PA
GE

-
10

PA
GE

-
11

Sy
m

bo
l

De
sc

rip
tio

n
W

at
ts

Te
m

p 
co

lo
r

Q
ua

nt
ity

CO
O

PE
R 

M
ES

A 
15

0W
 4

00
0K

 1
4,

91
1

15
0 

W
40

00
K

58

AR
EA

 1
7,

50
0L

 4
00

0K
 B

LA
CK

15
0K

40
00

K
2

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 2

1'
 (1

5'
 6

" M
H)

N
/A

N
/A

57

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 1

4'
 6

" (
10

' M
H)

N
/A

N
/A

1

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 3

3’
 (2

4’
 M

H)
N

/A
N

/A
2

Pr
od

uc
t s

um
m

ar
y

A B C

CO
NS

TR
UC

TI
O

N 
NO

TE
S:

 
LO

C 
48

 –
54

: F
PL

 T
O

 IN
ST

AL
L C

O
O

PE
R 

M
ES

A 
15

0W
 4

00
0K

 1
4,

91
1L

 O
N 

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 2

1'
 (1

5'
 6

" M
H)

.  
FP

L S
L H

H 
TO

 B
E 

IN
ST

AL
LE

D 
AT

 B
AS

E 
O

F 
NE

W
 S

L P
O

LE
 U

NL
ES

S 
W

IT
HI

N 
10

FT
 O

F 
EX

IS
TI

NG
 P

AD
M

O
UN

T 
TR

AN
SF

O
RM

ER
 

-F
PL

 T
O

 R
UN

 1
/0

 T
PX

 A
LT

 LE
G 

TO
 A

LL
 LO

CA
TI

O
NS

 

-E
AS

EM
EN

T 
W

IL
L B

E 
RE

Q
UI

RE
D

-C
US

TO
M

ER
 T

O
 IN

ST
AL

L A
LL

 2
" C

O
N

DU
IT

 A
ND

 S
EC

O
N

DA
RY

 H
AN

DH
O

LE
S

-‘C
HE

CK
 V

O
LT

AG
E 

–
CO

NV
ER

T 
48

0V
 T

O
 1

20
V 

O
R 

24
0V

’ O
N 

48
0V

 C
IR

CU
IT

S,
 C

HA
NG

E 
TH

E 
RE

LA
Y 

PR
IO

R 
TO

 IN
ST

AL
LI

NG
 T

HE
 LI

GH
TS

.
VE

RI
FY

 T
HE

 S
O

UR
CE

 A
ND

 A
M

O
UN

T 
O

F 
LI

GH
TS

 O
N 

TH
AT

 
RE

LA
Y.

 C
O

NT
AC

T 
TH

E 
FP

LP
L T

O
 A

SS
IS

T 
W

IT
H 

TH
IS

 P
RO

CE
SS

.

-C
US

TO
M

ER
 T

O
 C

O
NT

AC
T 

FP
L P

L A
ND

 C
O

O
RD

IN
AT

E 
ST

AK
IN

G 
O

F 
AL

L L
O

CA
TI

O
NS

 P
RI

O
R 

LE
D 

IN
ST

AL
LA

TI
O

NS
. C

US
TO

M
ER

 IS
 R

ES
PO

NS
IB

LE
 F

O
R 

AN
Y 

RE
ST

O
RA

TI
O

N 
RE

Q
UI

RE
D.

  

FP
L L

ED
 R

EP
RE

SE
NT

AT
IV

E:
 D

IE
GO

 F
EB

RE
S

PA
GE

-9
PA

GE
-9

5454
53

5252
51

4949
48

50

PAGE 8

24
" H

H
24

" H
H

24
" H

H

24
" H

H
24

" H
H

24
" H

H
24

" H
H

135'

190'

70' 125'

135'

110'

110'

PA
GE

 1
1

PA
GE

 7

Page 291



AS
-B

UI
LT

 C
RE

W
 P

RI
N

T

Re
qu

es
t C

AV
T 

Tr
an

sf
er

?

Te
le

. A
tt

ac
hm

en
t P

er

Te
le

ph
on

e 
Co

. J
ob

 N
o.

PE
RM

IT

RE
Q

'D

Ea
se

m
en

t?
   

Ye
s  

   
   

No

Tr
ee

 W
or

k?
   

Ye
s  

   
   

No

Su
rv

ey
/S

ta
ke

? 
  Y

es
   

   
   

No

De
sig

ne
r/

St
ak

e?
Ye

s  
   

   
 N

o

W
or

k 
w

ith
 S

M
O

?Y
es

   
   

  N
o

CT
/S

pe
cia

l M
tr

? 
 Y

es
   

   
  N

o

AL
L 

RE
Q

UI
RE

D 
GR

O
UN

D 
RO

DS
 H

AV
E 

BE
EN

 D
RI

VE
N

 &
 V

ER
IF

IE
D 

TO
BE

 W
IT

HI
N

 F
PL

 S
TA

N
DA

RD
S,

 V
AL

UE
S 

AR
E 

SH
O

W
N

 A
T 

AL
L L

O
CA

TI
O

N
S.

FO
RE

M
AN

'S
 S

IG
N

AT
UR

E
DA

TE
FO

RE
M

AN
'S

 S
IG

N
AT

UR
E

DA
TE

JO
B 

CE
RT

IF
IE

D 
CO

M
PL

ET
ED

 A
S 

SH
O

W
N

 O
N

 T
HI

S 
AS

-B
UI

LT
PR

IN
T.

 M
AT

ER
IA

L 
CH

AN
GE

S 
SH

O
W

N
 O

N
 R

O
S

SU
PE

RV
IS

O
R'

S 
SI

GN
AT

UR
E

DA
TE

AS
-B

UI
LT

 C
O

PY

IN
IT

IA
LS

CE
RT

. D
AT

E

IN
AC

CE
SS

IB
LE

13
 k

V
FU

TU
RE

 2
3 

kV
23

 k
V

FP
L

De
sig

ne
d 

by
:

Dr
aw

n 
by

:
Da

te
:

Dw
g 

No
.

Ch
ec

k 
by

:

Ru
ra

l L
oc

at
io

n 
Se

c.
TW

P.

SC
AL

E:
St

. L
t M

AP
 N

o.

S,
R.

E.
Pr

i M
ap

 N
o.

W
R

M
/A

Re
qu

es
te

d 
Te

l. 
Co

. S
et

 P
ol

es
 ?

Re
qu

es
te

d 
Te

l. 
Co

. T
ra

ns
fe

r ?

YE
S

YE
S

YE
S

YE
S

N
O

NO NO NO

Ci
ty

W
M

D
Co

un
ty

 R
d.

RR
 X

in
g

Co
un

ty
 A

ir
DR

. D
ist

.
St

at
e 

Ro
ad

Tr
an

sm
.

FA
A

PO
LE

 LI
N

E 
FE

ET

PO
LE

 LI
N

E 
FT

. O
N 

TR
AN

SM
. P

O
LE

S

TL
M

/L
DS

 M
O

DE
L N

o.

TR
EN

CH
 F

T.

DU
CT

 B
AN

K 
FT

.

M
ap

 P
os

tin
g?

Po
st

ed
 b

y:

SA
LT

 S
PR

AY

W
ES

T 
PA

LM
 B

EA
CH

, F
L 3

34
12

IN
ST

AL
L (

60
) N

EW
 S

L P
OL

ES
 &

 (6
0)

 N
EW

 F
IX

TU
RE

S 
FO

R 
AV

EN
IR

 
CO

M
M

UN
IT

Y 
DE

VE
LO

PM
EN

T 
DI

ST
RI

CT
 –

BY
PA

SS
 R

D
NO

RT
HL

AK
E 

BL
VD

 C
OC

O
NU

T 
BL

VD
NI

CH
OL

AS
 A

 H
ER

NA
ND

EZ
04

/3
0/

24
xx

x

##
##

##
N.

T.
S

M
AP

#
##

##
##

##
##

#
##

#

0'
0'

-

0'
0'

10
OF

 1
1

PA
GE

-2

PA
GE

-3
PA

GE
-4

PA
GE

-5

PA
GE

-6
PA

GE
-7

PA
GE

-8
PA

GE
-9

PA
GE

-
10

PA
GE

-
11

Sy
m

bo
l

De
sc

rip
tio

n
W

at
ts

Te
m

p 
co

lo
r

Q
ua

nt
ity

CO
O

PE
R 

M
ES

A 
15

0W
 4

00
0K

 1
4,

91
1

15
0 

W
40

00
K

58

AR
EA

 1
7,

50
0L

 4
00

0K
 B

LA
CK

15
0K

40
00

K
2

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 2

1'
 (1

5'
 6

" M
H)

N
/A

N
/A

57

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 1

4'
 6

" (
10

' M
H)

N
/A

N
/A

1

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 3

3’
 (2

4’
 M

H)
N

/A
N

/A
2

Pr
od

uc
t s

um
m

ar
y

A B C

CO
NS

TR
UC

TI
O

N 
NO

TE
S:

 
LO

C 
55

 –
56

: F
PL

 T
O

 IN
ST

AL
L A

RE
A 

17
,5

00
L 4

00
0K

 O
N 

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 3

3'
 

(2
4'

 M
H)

.  
FP

L S
L H

H 
TO

 B
E 

IN
ST

AL
LE

D 
AT

 B
AS

E 
O

F 
NE

W
 S

L P
O

LE
 U

NL
ES

S 
W

IT
HI

N 
10

FT
 

O
F 

EX
IS

TI
NG

 P
AD

M
O

UN
T 

TR
AN

SF
O

RM
ER

 

LO
C 

C:
IN

ST
AL

L 2
4"

 S
L H

H

-F
PL

 T
O

 R
UN

 1
/0

 T
PX

 A
LT

 LE
G 

TO
 A

LL
 LO

CA
TI

O
NS

 

-E
AS

EM
EN

T 
W

IL
L B

E 
RE

Q
UI

RE
D

-C
US

TO
M

ER
 T

O
 IN

ST
AL

L A
LL

 2
" C

O
N

DU
IT

 A
ND

 S
EC

O
N

DA
RY

 H
AN

DH
O

LE
S

-‘C
HE

CK
 V

O
LT

AG
E 

–
CO

NV
ER

T 
48

0V
 T

O
 1

20
V 

O
R 

24
0V

’ O
N 

48
0V

 C
IR

CU
IT

S,
 C

HA
NG

E 
TH

E 
RE

LA
Y 

PR
IO

R 
TO

 IN
ST

AL
LI

NG
 T

HE
 LI

GH
TS

.
VE

RI
FY

 T
HE

 S
O

UR
CE

 A
ND

 A
M

O
UN

T 
O

F 
LI

GH
TS

 O
N 

TH
AT

 R
EL

AY
. C

O
NT

AC
T 

TH
E 

FP
LP

L T
O

 A
SS

IS
T 

W
IT

H 
TH

IS
 P

RO
CE

SS
.

-C
US

TO
M

ER
 T

O
 C

O
NT

AC
T 

FP
L P

L A
ND

 C
O

O
RD

IN
AT

E 
ST

AK
IN

G 
O

F 
AL

L L
O

CA
TI

O
NS

 P
RI

O
R 

LE
D 

IN
ST

AL
LA

TI
O

NS
. C

US
TO

M
ER

 IS
 R

ES
PO

NS
IB

LE
 F

O
R 

AN
Y 

RE
ST

O
RA

TI
O

N 
RE

Q
UI

RE
D.

  

FP
L L

ED
 R

EP
RE

SE
NT

AT
IV

E:
 D

IE
GO

 F
EB

RE
S

PA
GE

-
10

PA
GE

-
10

5555

PA
GE

 8

PAGE 11

56

24
" H

H

24
" H

H
24

" H
H

145' 115'

60
'

C

Page 292



AS
-B

UI
LT

 C
RE

W
 P

RI
N

T

Re
qu

es
t C

AV
T 

Tr
an

sf
er

?

Te
le

. A
tt

ac
hm

en
t P

er

Te
le

ph
on

e 
Co

. J
ob

 N
o.

PE
RM

IT

RE
Q

'D

Ea
se

m
en

t?
   

Ye
s  

   
   

No

Tr
ee

 W
or

k?
   

Ye
s  

   
   

No

Su
rv

ey
/S

ta
ke

? 
  Y

es
   

   
   

No

De
sig

ne
r/

St
ak

e?
Ye

s  
   

   
 N

o

W
or

k 
w

ith
 S

M
O

?Y
es

   
   

  N
o

CT
/S

pe
cia

l M
tr

? 
 Y

es
   

   
  N

o

AL
L 

RE
Q

UI
RE

D 
GR

O
UN

D 
RO

DS
 H

AV
E 

BE
EN

 D
RI

VE
N

 &
 V

ER
IF

IE
D 

TO
BE

 W
IT

HI
N

 F
PL

 S
TA

N
DA

RD
S,

 V
AL

UE
S 

AR
E 

SH
O

W
N

 A
T 

AL
L L

O
CA

TI
O

N
S.

FO
RE

M
AN

'S
 S

IG
N

AT
UR

E
DA

TE
FO

RE
M

AN
'S

 S
IG

N
AT

UR
E

DA
TE

JO
B 

CE
RT

IF
IE

D 
CO

M
PL

ET
ED

 A
S 

SH
O

W
N

 O
N

 T
HI

S 
AS

-B
UI

LT
PR

IN
T.

 M
AT

ER
IA

L 
CH

AN
GE

S 
SH

O
W

N
 O

N
 R

O
S

SU
PE

RV
IS

O
R'

S 
SI

GN
AT

UR
E

DA
TE

AS
-B

UI
LT

 C
O

PY

IN
IT

IA
LS

CE
RT

. D
AT

E

IN
AC

CE
SS

IB
LE

13
 k

V
FU

TU
RE

 2
3 

kV
23

 k
V

FP
L

De
sig

ne
d 

by
:

Dr
aw

n 
by

:
Da

te
:

Dw
g 

No
.

Ch
ec

k 
by

:

Ru
ra

l L
oc

at
io

n 
Se

c.
TW

P.

SC
AL

E:
St

. L
t M

AP
 N

o.

S,
R.

E.
Pr

i M
ap

 N
o.

W
R

M
/A

Re
qu

es
te

d 
Te

l. 
Co

. S
et

 P
ol

es
 ?

Re
qu

es
te

d 
Te

l. 
Co

. T
ra

ns
fe

r ?

YE
S

YE
S

YE
S

YE
S

N
O

NO NO NO

Ci
ty

W
M

D
Co

un
ty

 R
d.

RR
 X

in
g

Co
un

ty
 A

ir
DR

. D
ist

.
St

at
e 

Ro
ad

Tr
an

sm
.

FA
A

PO
LE

 LI
N

E 
FE

ET

PO
LE

 LI
N

E 
FT

. O
N 

TR
AN

SM
. P

O
LE

S

TL
M

/L
DS

 M
O

DE
L N

o.

TR
EN

CH
 F

T.

DU
CT

 B
AN

K 
FT

.

M
ap

 P
os

tin
g?

Po
st

ed
 b

y:

SA
LT

 S
PR

AY

W
ES

T 
PA

LM
 B

EA
CH

, F
L 3

34
12

IN
ST

AL
L (

60
) N

EW
 S

L P
OL

ES
 &

 (6
0)

 N
EW

 F
IX

TU
RE

S 
FO

R 
AV

EN
IR

 
CO

M
M

UN
IT

Y 
DE

VE
LO

PM
EN

T 
DI

ST
RI

CT
 –

BY
PA

SS
 R

D
NO

RT
HL

AK
E 

BL
VD

 C
OC

O
NU

T 
BL

VD
NI

CH
OL

AS
 A

 H
ER

NA
ND

EZ
04

/3
0/

24
xx

x

##
##

##
N.

T.
S

M
AP

#
##

##
##

##
##

#
##

#

0'
0'

-

0'
0'

11
OF

 1
1

PA
GE

-2

PA
GE

-3
PA

GE
-4

PA
GE

-5

PA
GE

-6
PA

GE
-7

PA
GE

-8
PA

GE
-9

PA
GE

-
10

PA
GE

-
11

Sy
m

bo
l

De
sc

rip
tio

n
W

at
ts

Te
m

p 
co

lo
r

Q
ua

nt
ity

CO
O

PE
R 

M
ES

A 
15

0W
 4

00
0K

 1
4,

91
1

15
0 

W
40

00
K

58

AR
EA

 1
7,

50
0L

 4
00

0K
 B

LA
CK

15
0K

40
00

K
2

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 2

1'
 (1

5'
 6

" M
H)

N
/A

N
/A

57

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 1

4'
 6

" (
10

' M
H)

N
/A

N
/A

1

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 3

3’
 (2

4’
 M

H)
N

/A
N

/A
2

Pr
od

uc
t s

um
m

ar
y

A B C

CO
NS

TR
UC

TI
O

N 
NO

TE
S:

 
LO

C 
57

 –
60

: F
PL

 T
O

 IN
ST

AL
L C

O
O

PE
R 

M
ES

A 
15

0W
 4

00
0K

 1
4,

91
1L

 O
N 

BL
AC

K 
TA

PE
RE

D 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 2

1'
 (1

5'
 6

" M
H)

.  
FP

L S
L H

H 
TO

 B
E 

IN
ST

AL
LE

D 
AT

 B
AS

E 
O

F 
NE

W
 S

L P
O

LE
 U

NL
ES

S 
W

IT
HI

N 
10

FT
 O

F 
EX

IS
TI

NG
 

PA
DM

O
UN

T 
TR

AN
SF

O
RM

ER
 

-F
PL

 T
O

 R
UN

 1
/0

 T
PX

 A
LT

 LE
G 

TO
 A

LL
 LO

CA
TI

O
NS

 

-E
AS

EM
EN

T 
W

IL
L B

E 
RE

Q
UI

RE
D

-C
US

TO
M

ER
 T

O
 IN

ST
AL

L A
LL

 2
" C

O
N

DU
IT

 A
ND

 S
EC

O
N

DA
RY

 
HA

N
DH

O
LE

S

-‘C
HE

CK
 V

O
LT

AG
E 

–
CO

NV
ER

T 
48

0V
 T

O
 1

20
V 

O
R 

24
0V

’ O
N 

48
0V

 
CI

RC
UI

TS
, C

HA
NG

E 
TH

E 
RE

LA
Y 

PR
IO

R 
TO

 IN
ST

AL
LI

NG
 T

HE
 

LI
GH

TS
.

VE
RI

FY
 T

HE
 S

O
UR

CE
 A

ND
 A

M
O

UN
T 

O
F 

LI
GH

TS
 O

N 
TH

AT
 R

EL
AY

. 
CO

NT
AC

T 
TH

E 
FP

LP
L T

O
 A

SS
IS

T 
W

IT
H 

TH
IS

 P
RO

CE
SS

.

-C
US

TO
M

ER
 T

O
 C

O
NT

AC
T 

FP
L P

L A
ND

 C
O

O
RD

IN
AT

E 
ST

AK
IN

G 
O

F 
AL

L 
LO

CA
TI

O
NS

 P
RI

OR
 LE

D 
IN

ST
AL

LA
TI

ON
S.

 C
US

TO
M

ER
 IS

 R
ES

PO
NS

IB
LE

 
FO

R 
AN

Y 
RE

ST
O

RA
TI

O
N 

RE
Q

UI
RE

D.
  

FP
L L

ED
 R

EP
RE

SE
NT

AT
IV

E:
 D

IE
GO

 F
EB

RE
S

PA
GE

-
11

PA
GE

-
11

6060
59

5858
57

PAGE 10

24
" H

H
24

" H
H

24
" H

H
24

" H
H

60'

60'

120'

120'

PA
GE

 9

Page 293



 

 

This instrument prepared by: 
 
Tyrone T. Bongard, Esq. 
Gunster, Yoakley & Stewart, P.A. 
777 South Flagler Drive, Suite 500 East 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________[Space Above This Line for Recording Data]________________________________________ 

 
PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT 

                                                                                                          
 THIS PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT (“Easement”) is made this ___ day of June, 2024, 
by AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of special purpose 
government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, with an address of Special District 
Services, Inc., 2501 Burns Road, Suite A, Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 (the “Grantor”). 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 

Grantor, for and in consideration of the sum of one dollar ($1.00) and other valuable 
consideration, receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged, hereby grants a permanent, non-exclusive 
easement on, over, under, and across that certain real property located in Palm Beach County, 
Florida, which is owned by Grantor and is more particularly described in Exhibit “A” attached 
hereto and made a part hereof (the “Easement Area”), in favor of all applicable governmental 
authorities and all public utilities, and their successors and assigns (collectively “Grantee”) to 
install, operate, maintain, repair, replace and remove their respective utility facilities.   

 
This Easement is expressly subject to Grantor’s reserved right to permit any other person, 

firm or corporation to lay cable, conduit, water and sewer lines, and other facilities within the 
Easement Area, and to make any other use of the Easement Area which is not inconsistent with this 
Easement. All utility facilities installed by Grantee within the Easement Area shall not, to the extent 
applicable, interfere with Grantor’s use of the Easement Area. 
 
 Any party that uses the Easement Area for the purpose stated herein, to the extent allowed by 
law, shall indemnify and hold Grantor and its successors and assigns harmless from and against any 
and all claims, liability, liens, costs, losses, damages, expenses and demands, including reasonable 
attorneys’ fees and costs at trial and all appellate levels, arising from, growing out of, or in 
connection with such use of the Easement Area.   
 

All rights, benefits and burdens created by this Easement shall run with title to the Easement 
Area and shall be binding upon Grantor and its successors and assigns.   

 
[Signature page follows] 

Page 294



ACTIVE:22474652.1 
 

 

-2- 
 

[Signature Page to Public Utility Easement] 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has hereto set its hand and seal the day and year 
first above written. 
 
Witnesses:                  GRANTOR: 
 

AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
       DISTRICT, a local unit of special purpose  
       government established pursuant to Chapter  
       190, Florida Statutes 
       

Print Name:      

Address:      

       

       By: _______________________________ 
        Virginia Cepero, Chairperson 
        Board of Supervisors 
       

Print Name:      

Address:      

       

 
STATE OF FLORIDA ) 
 ) SS: 
COUNTY OF MIAMI-DADE ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of  physical presence or 
 online notarization, this _____ day of June, 2024, by Virginia Cepero, as Chairperson of the 

Board of Supervisors of Avenir Community Development District, a local unit of special purpose 
government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, on behalf of the District, who  
is personally known to me or who  has produced ______________ as identification. 

 
 
 
             

      Notary Public – State of Florida 
 
 

      Notary Stamp/Seal:     

      

Page 295



ACTIVE:22474652.1 
 

 

-3- 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Easement Area 
 

[See attached] 

Page 296



Page 297



Page 298



Page 299



Page 300



Page 301



Page 302



 
 

 
 
 

Monthly Managers Report 
October 24, 2024 

 
Date of Report: 10/16/2024        __Submitted by: Richard Salvatore 
 

o Completed Tasks 

 The approved high voltage work, for the access control project, has been completed by 
Mr. Sparky. 
 Waiting on Automatic access’ site visit, scheduled for 10/18, for final portion of 

project to begin.  
 A new court maintenance company has taken over the clay court maintenance, 

beginning 9/15.  
 Conditions of courts have improved significantly. 

 Arrozoza brothers has taken over landscaping responsibility for clubhouse grounds. 
 Bushes and shrubbery has been trimmed, low hanging palms trimmed, 

tennis/pickleball walkways and fence areas cleaned up. 
 Pre Hurricane tree trimming was completed the week of 10/7. 
 Hurricane damage assessment and clean-up of property has been completed. 
 Entire pool deck, and all pool furniture, has been cleaned and pressure washed. 
 Splash pad flooring has been repaired, splash pad is now operational and open. 
 All Pool heaters have received their yearly service, repairs made as required. All are 

working properly now. 

o Ongoing Tasks 

 Contracting/Scheduling of the low voltage access control expansion is underway, with 
Automatic Access, awaiting vendor site visit for final permitting and invoicing. 

 Awaiting the arrival of the previously approved storage shed, grading of landscaping, 
etc. 

 Attached playground shade was damaged during hurricane, working to remedy solution 
through the original installer. 

 Seeking solutions for increasing the amount of clubhouse furniture, including additional 
interior tables and chairs, to accommodate increased occupancy. 

 
o Future Items 

 Gutter addition on the front of building to reduce washout from heavy rains. 
o Have been instructed to work with Architect to accomplish this. 

 Gutter addition on back pavilions to reduce washout and pool deck staining from the 
copper roof. 

o Have been instructed to work with Architect to accomplish this. 
 Resurfacing/Repairing of hard top tennis courts is being considered due to surface 

cracking. 
o The original install vendor contacted, working to rectify issue in a cost effective 

manner 

Page 303



 
 

 
Lifestyle Directors Report 

 
 

Date of Report: 10/16/2024                                                 Submitted by: Patrice Chiaramonte 
 
 

Labor Day Tiki Tangle:  Saturday, August 31st ,2024 

Over 50 Residents enjoyed a leisurely Labor Day by the 
Avenir pool, complete with live music, food trucks, and a 
vibrant atmosphere. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Par 3 Mixer: Friday, September 6th, 2024 

Avenir hosted a successful gathering at "The Nest," 
featuring social activities, games, and golf. Over 70 
residents attended this engaging event, which required a 
modest fee of $5 per person. The entire top floor of The 
Nest was reserved for Avenir residents, who expressed a 
strong interest in holding similar events in the future. 
Notably, even those without a background in golf 
enjoyed the experience. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 304



 
 

 

 

Avenir Green Market: Saturday, September 28th ,2024  

Avenir proudly hosted the A La Votre Green Market, featuring local vendors offering a variety of organic 
products. This event served as an excellent opportunity for community members to showcase and 
promote their small businesses. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Adult Magic Show: Saturday, September 28th ,2024 

Avenir hosted an exclusive adults-only magic show featuring the talents of Magic Jack Maxwell. Over 80 
Residents enjoyed a cash bar along with hors d'oeuvres provided by The Dancing Crane. 

 

  

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 305



 
 

Field Operations Manager Report 
 

Date Submitted:  10/16/24                       _______________    Submitted by: Jorge Rodriguez 
 
Completed Tasks 

 Pre Hurricane tree trimming was completed the week of 10/7. 
 Hurricane damage assessment and clean-up of property has been completed. 
 Entire pool deck, and all pool furniture, has been cleaned and pressure washed. 
 Splash pad flooring has been repaired, splash pad is now operational and open. 
 All Pool heaters have received their yearly service, repairs made as required. All are working 

properly now. 

 

Weekly Projects 
 All garbage cans outside the clubhouse, within tennis and pickleball courts, and down Avenir 

Drive and Northlake Blvd are emptied and cleaned as needed. 
 All exterior light fixtures are inspected nightly, and Interior lights are inspected daily. 
 The 6 Clay Tennis Courts are raked and rolled thrice weekly. (Mon, Wed, Fri) 
 All 8 hard floor Tennis Courts and pickleball courts are blown daily to clean debris. 
 All Clubhouse grounds, including parking lots, sidewalks, pool deck, playgrounds, etc., are blown 

daily. 
 The playgrounds are being pressure washed weekly. All the equipment safety checked and 

tightened. 
 All pools, splash pad, spa, and fountains are maintained daily to FL DoH standards. 
 All the outside recessed lighting covers have been removed and cleaned, removing all bugs and 

webs.  

 

Current and Ongoing Project 

 All exterior windows, lighting, and walls are set to be cleaned / pressure washed in the coming 
weeks, continuing hurricane clean up efforts. 

 A specialist is being consulted to provide services to properly clean/preserve the buildings rock 
foundation and front stairs/entryway surface. 

Page 306



Page 307



Page 308



Page 309



Page 310



Page 311


	Avenir Community De4velopment District - October 24, 2024 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing Book 
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	August 22, 2024 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing Minutes
	Public Hearing 
	Proof of Publication
	Consider Resolution No. 2024-13 – Amending Club Rates

	New Business
	Consider Award of Contract for Pod 21 Lift Station Project
	Consider Landscaping Proposal (Arazoza)
	Reconsider Approval of Arazoza Brothers Landscape Install 2nd Amendment 2024
	Consider Request for Fountain (Akel)
	Discussion Regarding Board Appointment

	Change Orders
	Consider Approval of CO No. 8 – Northlake Ph 2 (Cheatham) ($226,441.20)
	Consider Ratification of Northlake Phase 1 CO No 6 (Cheatham) ($41,663.00)

	Consent Agenda
	Consider Ratification of Pod 10 Plat
	Consider Ratification of Pod 11 Plat
	Consider Ratification of Pod 21 Plat
	Consider Ratification of Walgreens Drainage Easement Dedication
	Consider Ratification of Bypass Road Public Utility Easement
	Consider Ratification of Avenir Town Center Phase 1 Easements (either FPL or Public Utility)
	Consider Approval of Public Grade Xing Maintenance Agreement (CSXT)
	Consider Approval of FPL Lighting Agreement – Northlake Pkwy
	Consider Ratification of Avenir Bypass Road – FPL Backbone (SPF Underground Agreement)
	Consider Ratification of Town Center Bypass Road Public U.E.

	Clubhouse
	Clubhouse Management Update
	Consider Landscaping Proposal (Arazoza)





